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SECTION I: GENERAL  

 

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS  

 

This Prospectus uses certain definitions and abbreviations which, unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, shall 

have the meaning as provided below. References to any legislation, act, regulation, rules, guidelines or policies shall be to 

such legislation, act, regulation, rules, guidelines or policies as amended, supplemented or re-enacted from time to time, 

and any reference to a statutory provision shall include any subordinate legislation made from time to time under that 

provision. 

The words and expressions used in this Prospectus but not defined herein shall have, to the extent applicable, the same 

meaning ascribed to such terms under the ICDR Regulations, the Companies Act, 2013, the SCRA, the Depositories Act 

and the rules and regulations made thereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms in óMain Provisions of the Articles of 

Associationô, óStatement of Possible Tax Benefitsô, óOur Industryô, óKey Industry Regulations and Policiesô, óFinancial 

Informationô, óOutstanding Litigations and Material Developmentsô, will have the meaning ascribed to such terms in these 

respective sections Page 284, 104, 108, 131, 175 and 226. 

 

  Conventional or General Terms 

 

Term Description 

Newjaisa Technologies 

Limited / Newjaisa / the 

Company / our Company 

Newjaisa Technologies Limited, a public limited company incorporated under the 

Companies Act, 2013 as private limited and having its registered office at 207/B2, 

2nd Cross Road, J.C, Industrial Estate Bikasipura Main Road, Off Kanakpura Road, 

Near Delhi Public School Bangalore, 560078, Karnataka, India. 

We/ us/ our Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to our Company. 

You/ your Prospective investors in this Issue. 

 

 Company Related Terms 

 

Term Description 

AoA/ Articles/ Articles of 

Association 
The Articles of Association of our Company, as amended, from time to time 

Audit Committee 

The committee of our Board of Directors, constituted as our Companyôs Audit 

Committee in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 

made thereunder vide Board resolution dated July 03, 2023 as disclosed under section 

titled óOur Managementô beginning on page 147 of this Prospectus. 

Auditors / Statutory 

Auditors 

The Statutory Auditors of our Company being ñM/s. Abhilashi & Coò (Chartered 

Accountants) (Firm Registration No. 016025N), having their office at Shop No. 4, 

Near Income Tax Office, Model Town Road, Jalandhar City, Punjab-14401, India 

unless provided by the context. 

Banker to our Company 

Bankers to our Company in our case is ñIDFC First Bankò having their office at 

Ground Floor No. 1, (old No. 106 C), PID No. 59-89, 30th Cross Road 7th Block 

Jayanagar, Bangalore 560070 

Board of Directors / the 

Board/ Our Board  

The Board of Directors of our Company, including all duly constituted committees 

thereof, as disclosed under section titled óOur Managementô beginning on page 147 

of this Prospectus. 

Business Day of our 

Company 

It shall mean any day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday and a public holiday) on 

which the SEBI, the stock exchanges or the commercial banks in Karnataka, India, are 

open for business. 

Chairman/ Chairperson 
The Chairman/ Chairperson of Board of Directors of the Company being ñMr. Vishesh 

Handaò, Managing Director 

Chief Financial Officer / 

CFO 
Chief Financial Officer of our Company being ñMr. Ashish Nirmalò 

CIN 
Corporate Identification Number issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs viz., 

U32106KA2020PLC134935 

Companies Act  Unless specified otherwise, this would imply to the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 (to the extent notified by MCA till date) and /or provisions of Companies Act, 

1956 w.r.t. the sections which have not yet been replaced by the Companies Act, 2013 

through any official notification 

Companies Act, 1956 Companies Act, 1956, as amended from time to time  

Companies Act, 2013  Companies Act, 2013 and applicable to the extent notified by MCA till date.  

Company Secretary and 

Compliance Officer/ CS / 

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company being ñMrs. Poonam 

Jainò (Membership No. 44093)  
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Company Secretary / 

Compliance Officer 

Depositories 
National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) 

Limited  

Depositories Act The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time 

DIN Directors Identification Number 

Director(s)/ our Director(s) The Director(s) of our Company, unless otherwise specified 

DP/ Depository Participant A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act 

Draft Red Herring 

Prospectus 
Draft Red Herring Prospectus dated August 01, 2023 filed with NSE Emerge. 

Equity Share(s)  
The equity shares of our Company of a face value of  5.00 each, fully paid-up, unless 

otherwise specified in the context thereof.  

Equity Shareholder(s) Persons/ entities holding the Equity Shares of our Company 

Executive Director(s)  
Executive Directors are the Managing Director and Whole-time Directors of our 

Company 

Group Companies   

Such companies with whom there are related party transactions, during the period for 

which financial information is disclosed, as covered under the applicable Accounting 

Standards, and also other companies as considered material by our Board and as 

disclosed under section titled óOur Group Companiesô beginning on page 172 of this 

Prospectus. 

SEBI ICDR Regulations 

SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 issued by 

SEBI on September 11, 2018, as amended, including instructions and clarifications 

issued by SEBI from time to time 

Independent Director 

A non-executive and Independent Director as defined under Section 2 (47) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and as defined under the SEBI Listing Regulations, disclosed 

under section titled óOur Managementô beginning on page 147 of this Prospectus. 

Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India 

Insider Trading Regulations 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015, as amended, including instructions and clarifications issued by SEBI from time 

to time. 

Internal Complaints 

Committee 

The committee of our Board, constituted as our Companyôs Internal Complaints 

Committee vide Board Resolution dated July 07, 2023 as disclosed under section titled 

óOur Managementô beginning on page 147 of this Prospectus. 
ISIN International Securities Identification Number, in this case being ñINE0PW501021ò  

IT Act/ Income Tax Act Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended, till date 

Joint Venture 
A commercial enterprise undertaken jointly by two or more parties which otherwise 

retain their distinct identities 

Key Management Personnel / 

KMP(s) 

Key Management Personnel of our Company in terms of Section 2 (51) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2 (1) (bb) of the SEBI (Issue of Capital and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and the Companies Act, 2013, as 

disclosed under section titled óOur Managementô beginning on page 147 of this 

Prospectus  

SEBI Listing Regulations 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, including instructions and 

clarifications issued by SEBI from time to time 

LLP 
Limited Liability Partnership as incorporated under the Limited Liability Partnership 

Act, 2008 

Managing Director / MD  Managing Director of our Company, namely ñMr. Vishesh Handaò 

Materiality Policy 

The policy on identification of Group Companies, material creditors and material 

litigation, adopted by our Board on July 07, 2023 in accordance with the requirements 

of the ICDR Regulations, as amended from time to time 

Memorandum of Association / 

Memorandum/ MoA 
Memorandum of Newjaisa Technologies Limited, as amended, from time to time 

Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee 

The committee of our Board, constituted as our Companyôs Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and rules made thereunder vide Board Resolution dated July 03, 2023 as disclosed 

under section titled óOur Managementô beginning on page 147 of this Prospectus. 

Non-Executive Director (s) A Director not being an Executive Director 

Peer Review Auditors 

Unless the context otherwise provides, Independent Auditor having a valid peer 

review certificate in our case, being ñM/s. Abhilashi & Coò (Chartered Accountants) 

(Firm Registration No. 016025N), having their office at Shop No. 4, Near Income Tax 

Office, Model Town Road, Jalandhar City, Punjab-14401, India,  
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Promoter(s) 

Promoters of our Company i.e. ñMr. Vishesh Handa and Mr. Mukunda Raghavendraò, 

as disclosed under section titled in óOur Promoters and Promoter Groupô beginning 

on page 167 of this Prospectus. 

Promoter Group 

Individuals, companies and entities constituting the promoter group of our Company, 

pursuant to Regulation 2 (1) (pp) of the ICDR Regulations, as disclosed under section 

titled óOur Promoters and Promoter Groupô beginning on page 167 of this Prospectus.  

Our Registered Office / 

Registered Office 

The registered office of our Company situated at 207/B2, 2nd Cross Road, J.C, 

Industrial Estate Bikasipura Main Road, Off Kanakpura Road, Near Delhi Public 

School Bangalore, 560078, Karnataka, India, India 

Reserve Bank of India / RBI Reserve Bank of India constituted under the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 

Restated Financial Statements  

The restated financial statements of our Company for the Financial Years ended on 

March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2021 (prepared in accordance with 

Indian GAAP read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and restated in 

accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations) which comprises of the restated balance 

sheet as it March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2021, restated statement 

for the period ended as it March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, of 

profit and loss and the restated cash flow statement, together with the annexures, , 

significant accounting policies and notes to accounts thereto and the examination 

report thereon. 

RoC/ Registrar of Companies 
Registrar of Companies, Bangalore situated at 'E' Wing, 2nd Floor, Kendriya Sadana, 

Kormangala, Banglore-560034, Karnataka, India 

SEBI 
Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 

SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended, from time to time 

Newjaisa ESOP Scheme 

2023/ ESOP 2023 
Newjaisa Technologies Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2023 

SEBI SAST Regulations 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeover) Regulations, 2011, as amended, from time to time 

Stakeholdersô Relationship 

Committee 

The committee of our Board, constituted as our Companyôs Stakeholdersô 

Relationship Committee in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and rules made thereunder vide Board Resolution dated July 03, 2023, as disclosed 

under section titled óOur Managementô beginning on page 147 of this Prospectus 

Stock Exchange 
Unless the context requires otherwise, refers to, National Stock Exchange of India 

Limited  

Whole-time Director(s)  Whole-time Director(s) as specified in section 2(94) of the Companies Act,2013 

 

Issue Related Terms 

 

Term Description 

Abridged Prospectus  
Abridged prospectus means a memorandum containing such salient features of a 

prospectus as may be specified by SEBI in this behalf.  

Acknowledgement Slip  
The slip or documents issued by the Designated Intermediary to an applicant as proof 

of registration of the Application. 

Allotment/Allot/Allotted  

 

Unless the context otherwise requires, means the allotment of Equity Shares, 

pursuant to the Issue to the successful applicants.  

Allocation/ Allocation of 

Equity Shares  

The Allocation of Equity Shares of our Company pursuant to Fresh Issue of Equity 

Shares to the successful Applicants.  

Allotment Advice  

Note or advice or intimation of Allotment sent to the Applicants who have been 

allotted Equity Shares after the Basis of Allotment has been approved by the 

Designated Stock Exchanges 

Allottee (s) A successful applicant to whom the Equity Shares are allotted.  

Anchor Investor(s)  

A Qualified Institutional Buyer, who applied under the Anchor Investor Portion in 

accordance with the requirements specified in the SEBI ICDR Regulations and this 

Prospectus, and who has Bid for an amount of at least  200 lakhs.  

Anchor Investor Allocation 

Price  

 47 per Equity Share, being the price at which Equity Shares were allocated to 

Anchor Investors in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus and this Prospectus, which 

price will be equal to or higher than the Issue Price but not higher than the Cap Price.  

Anchor Investor Application 

Form  

The application form used by an Anchor Investor to make a Bid in the Anchor 

Investor Portion and which was considered as an application for Allotment in terms 

of the Red Herring Prospectus and this Prospectus. 

Anchor Investor Bid/ Issue 

Period  

One Working Day prior to the Bid/ Issue Opening Date, on which Bids by Anchor 

Investors shall be submitted and allocation to the Anchor Investors shall be 

completed viz., September 22, 2023.  
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Anchor Investor Issue Price  
Rs. 47/- per equity share being the final price at which the Equity Shares Allotted to 

the Anchor Investors in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus and this Prospectus.  

Anchor Investor Portion 

Up to 60% of the QIB Portion consisting 24,18,000* which was allocated by our 

Company, in consultation with the Book Running Lead Managers, to the Anchor 

Investors on a discretionary basis in accordance with the SEBI (Issue of Capital and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018. 
One-third of the Anchor Investor Portion was reserved for domestic Mutual Funds, 

subject to valid Bids being received from domestic Mutual Funds at or above the 

Anchor Investor Allocation Price, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.  

* Subject to finalization of Basis of Allotment. 

AOC-4 

Form for filing financial statement and other documents with the Registrar pursuant 

to section 137 of the Companies Act, 2013 and sub-rule (1) of Rule 12 of Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 

Applicant/ Investor  
Any prospective investor who makes an application pursuant to the terms of the Red 

Herring Prospectus and the Application form.  

Application Amount  
The amount at which the Applicant makes an application for the Equity Shares of our 

Company in terms of Red Herring Prospectus.  

Application Form  

The form, whether physical or electronic, used by an Applicant to make an 

application, which will be considered as the application for Allotment for purposes 

of this Prospectus.  

Application Supported by  
Block Amount (ASBA)  

An application, whether physical or electronic, used by ASBA Bidders, to make a 

Bid and authorizing an SCSB to block the Bid Amount in the ASBA Account and 

will include amounts blocked by the SCSB upon acceptance of UPI Mandate 

Request by the UPI Bidders using the UPI Mechanism.  

ASBA Account  

A bank account maintained by ASBA Bidders with an SCSB and specified in the 

ASBA Form submitted by such ASBA Bidder in which funds was blocked by such 

SCSB to the extent of the specified in the ASBA Form submitted by such ASBA 

Bidder and includes a bank account maintained by a Retail Individual Investor linked 

to a UPI ID, which will be blocked in relation to a Bid by a Retail Individual Investor 

Bidding through the UPI Mechanism.  

ASBA Specified Location(s)  

 

Collection centres where the SCSBs shall accept application form, a list of which is 

available on the website of SEBI (https://www.sebi.gov.in/) and updated from time 

to time. 

ASBA Bidder  
Any prospective investor(s) / Bidder (s) in this Issue who apply(ies) through the 

ASBA process except Anchor Investor.  

ASBA Form/ Bid cum  

Application Form 

An Application form (with or without UPI ID, as applicable), whether physical or  

electronic, used by Bidders which was considered as the application for Allotment 

in terms of the Daft Red Herring Prospectus, Red Herring Prospectus or this 

Prospectus.  

Bankers to the Issue/ / Sponsor 

Bank  

Banks which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as Bankers to an Issue 

and with whom the Public Issue Account have been opened, in this case being HDFC 

Bank Limited  

Banker to the Issue 

Agreement  

Agreement dated September 11, 2023 entered into amongst the Company, Book 

Running Lead Manager, the Registrar, Sponsor Bank and the Banker to the Issue.  

Basis of Allotment  

The basis on which the Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful applicants under 

the issue and which is described in the section titled ñIssue Procedureò beginning on 

page 258 of this Prospectus.  

Bid  

An indication to make an offer during the Bid/ Issue Period by a Bidder (other than 

an Anchor Investor) pursuant to submission of the ASBA Form, or during the Anchor 

Investor Bid/ Issue Period by an Anchor Investor, pursuant to submission  
of the Anchor Investor Application Form, to subscribe to or purchase the Equity 

Shares at a price within the Price Band, including all revisions and modifications 

thereto as permitted under the SEBI ICDR Regulations and in terms of the Red 

Herring Prospectus and the Bid cum Application Form.  
The term ñBiddingò shall be construed accordingly.  

Bid Amount  

The highest value of optional Bids indicated in the Bid cum Application Form and in 

the case of Retail Individual Bidders Bidding at Cut Off Price, the Cap Price 

multiplied by the number of Equity Shares Bid for by such Retail Individual Bidder 

and mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form and payable by the Retail Individual 

Bidder or blocked in the ASBA Account upon submission of the Bid in the Issue.  
Bid Lot  3,000 equity shares and in multiples of 3,000 equity shares thereafter  

Bid/ Issue Closing Date  
Except in relation to any Bids received from the Anchor Investors, the date after 

which the Syndicate, the Designated Branches and the Registered Brokers did not 
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accept the Bids, which was published in in all editions of the English national 

newspaper  ñFinancial Expressò, all editions of Hindi national newspaper ñJansattaò  

and Bangalore Edition of Regional newspaper ñVishwaniò where the registered 

office of the company is situated, each with wide circulation, and in case of any 

revision, the extended Bid/ Issue closing Date also to be notified on the website and 

terminals of the Syndicate, SCSBôs and Sponsor Bank, as required under the SEBI 

ICDR Regulations.  

Bid/ Issue Opening Date  

Except in relation to any Bids received from the Anchor Investors, the date on which 

the Syndicate, the Designated Branches and the Registered Brokers started accepting 

Bids, which was published in in all editions of the English national newspaper 

ñFinancial Expressò, all editions of Hindi national newspaper  ñJansattaò and 

Bangalore Edition of Regional newspaper ñVishwaniò where the registered office of 

the company is situated, each with wide circulation, and in case of any revision, the 

extended Bid/ Issue Opening Date also to be notified on the website and terminals of 

the Syndicate and SCSBs, as required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations.  

Bid/ Issue Period  

Except in relation to any Bids received from the Anchor Investors, the period between 

the Bid/ Issue Opening Date and the Bid/ Issue Closing Date or the QIB Bid/ Issue 

Closing Date, as the case may be, inclusive of both days, during which Bidders can 

submit their Bids, including any revisions thereof.  

Bidder/ Applicant  

Any prospective investor who makes a bid pursuant to the terms of the Red 

Herring Prospectus and the Bid-Cum-Application Form and unless otherwise 

stated or implied, which includes an ASBA Bidder and an Anchor Investor.  

Bidding  The process of making a Bid.  

Collection Centers  

Centers at which the Designated intermediaries shall accept the ASBA Forms, i.e.  
Designated SCSB Branches for SCSBs, ASBA Specified Locations for syndicates, 

broker centers for registered brokers, designated RTA Locations for RTAs and 

designated CDP locations for CDPs.  

Book Building Process  
Book building process, as provided in Part A of Schedule XIII of the SEBI ICDR  

Regulations, in terms of which the Issue is being made.  

BRLM / Book Running Lead  

Manager  

Book Running Lead Manager to the Issue in this case being Indorient Financial 

Services Limited, SEBI Registered Category I Merchant Banker.  

Broker Centers  

Broker centres notified by the Stock Exchanges, where the investors can submit the  
Application Forms to a Registered Broker. The details of such Broker Centers, along 

with the names and contact details of the Registered Brokers are available on the 

websites of the Stock Exchange.  

Business Day  Monday to Friday (except public holidays).  

CAN or Confirmation of 

Allocation Note  

The Note or advice or intimation sent to each successful Applicant indicating the 

Equity which will be allotted, after approval of Basis of Allotment by the 

designated Stock Exchange.  

Cap Price  
The higher end of the price band i.e.  47 above which the Issue Price will not be 

finalized and above which no Bids (or a revision thereof) will be accepted.  

Client Id  
Client Identification Number maintained with one of the Depositories in relation 

to Demat account  

Collecting Depository  

Participants or CDPs  

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996, registered 

with SEBI and who is eligible to procure Applications at the Designated CDP 

Locations in terms of circular no. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated 

November 10, 2015 issued by SEBI  

Cut Off Price  

The Issue Price, which shall be any price within the Price Band as finalized by 

our Company in consultation with the BRLM. Only Retail Individual Investors 

were entitled to Bid at the Cut-off Price. QIBs (including Anchor Investor) and 

Non-Institutional Investors were not entitled to Bid at the Cut-off Price.  

Demographic Details  

The demographic details of the applicants such as their Address, PAN, name of 

the applicants father/husband, investor status, Occupation and Bank Account 

details.  

Depository / Depositories  

A depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996 as amended from time to 

time, being NSDL and CDSL.  
Depositories Act  The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time.  

Designated CDP Locations  

Such locations of the CDPs where Applicant submitted the Application Forms to 

Collecting Depository Participants. 
The details of such Designated CDP Locations, along with names and contact 

details of the Collecting Depository Participants eligible to accept Application 

Forms were available on the website of the Stock Exchange i.e. 

www.nseindia.com  
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Designated Date  

On the Designated Date, the amounts blocked by SCSBs are transferred from the 

ASBA Accounts to the Public Issue Account and/ or unblocked in terms of the 

Red Herring Prospectus  

Designated Intermediaries 

A SCSBôs with whom the bank account was blocked, is maintained, a syndicate 

member (or sub-syndicate member), a Stock Broker registered with recognized 

Stock Exchange, a Depositary Participant, a registrar to an issue and share 

transfer agent (RTA) (whose names were mentioned on website of the stock 

exchange as eligible for this activity).  
Designated Market Maker  Nikunj Stock Brokers Limited  

Designated RTA Locations  

Such locations of the RTAs where Applicant can submit the Application Forms 

to RTAs. The details of such Designated RTA Locations, along with names and 

contact details of the RTAs eligible to accept Application Forms are available on 

the websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. www.nseindia.com  
Designated Stock Exchange  National Stock Exchange of India Limited (ñNSE Emergeò)  

DP ID  Depositoryôs Participantôs Identity Number  

DP/ Depository Participant  A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996.  

Draft Red Herring Prospectus  Draft Red Herring Prospectus dated August 1, 2023 filed with NSE Emerge.  

Eligible NRI  A Non Resident Indian in a jurisdiction outside India where it is not unlawful to make 

an offer or invitation under the Issue and in relation to whom the Red Herring 

Prospectus will constitute an invitation to subscribe for the Equity Shares.  
Equity Shares  Equity Shares of our Company of face value  5.00 each. 

Electronic Transfer of Funds  Refunds through NACH, NEFT, Direct Credit or RTGS as applicable.  

Eligible QFIs  

QFIs from such jurisdictions outside India where it is not unlawful to make an 

issue or invitation under the Issue and in relation to whom the Prospectus 

constitutes an invitation to purchase the Equity shares issued thereby and who 

have opened Demat accounts with SEBI registered qualified depository 

participants.  

Escrow Account(s)  
The account(s) to be opened with the Escrow Collection Bank and in whose favour 

the Anchor Investors will transfer money through NACH/direct credit/ NEFT/ 

RTGS in respect of the Bid Amount when submitting a Bid.  

FII 

Foreign Institutional Investor as defined under SEBI (Foreign Institutional 

Investors) Regulations, 1995, as amended) registered with SEBI under applicable 

laws in India.  

First Bidder/ Applicant/ 

Bidders  

Bidder(s) whose name was mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form or the 

Revision Form and in case of joint bids, whose name shall also appear as the first 

holder of the beneficiary account held in joint names.  

Floor Price  

The lower end of the Price Band i.e.  44, subject to any revision(s) thereto, at or 

above which the Issue Price and the Anchor Investor Issue Price will be finalised 

and below which no Bids will be accepted  
FVCI / Foreign Venture 

Capital Investors   

Foreign Venture Capital Investors registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Foreign 

Venture Capital Investor) Regulations, 2000.  

FPI / Foreign Portfolio  

Investor  

A Foreign Portfolio Investor who has been registered pursuant to the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014, 

provided that any FII or QFI who holds a valid certificate of registration shall be 

deemed to be a foreign portfolio investor till the expiry of the block of three years 

for which fees have been paid as per the SEBI (Foreign Institutional Investors) 

Regulations, 1995, as amended  

Fugitive Economic Offender  
An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of 

the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018.  

General Corporate Purposes  

Include such identified purposes for which no specific amount is allocated or any 

amount so specified towards general corporate purpose or any such purpose by 

whatever name called, in the offer document. Provided that any issue related 

expenses shall not be considered as a part of general corporate purpose merely 

because no specific amount has been allocated for such expenses in the offer 

document.  

General Information 

Document (GID)  

The General Information Document for investing in public issues prepared and 

issued in accordance with the circulars (CIR/CFD/DIL/12/2013) dated October 

23, 2013, notified by SEBI and updated pursuant to the circular 

CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015) dated March 17, 2020 and 

(SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL/CIR/P/2016/26) dated January 21, 2016 notified by the 

SEBI and (SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/22) dated February 15, 2018 and 

the UPI circular as amended from time to time. 
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The General Information Document was available on the websites of the Stock 

Exchange and the BRLM.   

Issue Agreement  
The Issue Agreement dated July 31, 2023 between our Company and Book 

Running Lead Manager, Indorient Financial Services Limited.  
Issue/Public Issue/Issue 
size /Initial 
Public Offer/ IPO  

The initial public offer of 84,96,000 Equity Shares aggregating up to  3993.12 lakhs.  

 

Issue Closing Date  

The date after which the Lead Manager, Branches of SCSBs and Registered 

Brokers did not accept any Application for this Issue, which shall be notified in 

an English national newspaper, Hindi national newspaper and a regional 

newspaper each with wide circulation as required under the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations. In this case being September 27, 2023. 

Issue Opening Date  

The date on which the Lead Manager, Designated Branches of SCSBs and Registered 

Brokers started accepting Application for this Issue, which was the date notified in 

an English national newspaper, Hindi national newspaper and a regional newspaper 

each with wide circulation as required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. In this case 

being September 25, 2023  

Issue Period  
The period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date inclusive 

of both days and during which prospective Applicants can submit their 

Applications.  

Issue Price  

Rs. 47/- per equity share i.e. the final Price at which the Equity Shares will be 

allotted in terms of this Prospectus as determined by our Company in consultation 

with BRLM. 

Issue Proceeds  

Proceeds to be raised by our Company through this Issue, for further details 

please refer section titled ñObjects of the Issueò beginning on page 85 of this 

Prospectus.  

Listing Agreement  
The Equity Listing Agreement to be signed between our Company and the Stock 

Exchange.  

Lot Size  3,000 equity shares and in multiples of 3,000 equity shares thereafter. 

Mandate Request  

Mandate Request means a request initiated on the Retail Individual Investor by 

sponsor bank to authorize blocking of funds equivalent to the application amount 

and subsequent debit to funds in case of allotment.  

Market Maker  

Member Brokers of NSE who are specifically registered as Market Makers with 

the NSE Emerge Platform. In our case, Nikunj Stock Brokers Limited is the sole 

Market. Maker 

Market Making Agreement  
The Market Making Agreement dated August 25, 2023 between our Company, 

Book Running Lead Manager and Market Maker, Nikunj Stock Brokers Limited  

Market Maker Reservation  

Portion  

The reserved portion of 4,26,000 Equity Shares of  5 each at an Issue price of  

47 each is aggregating to  200.22 Lakhs to be subscribed by Market Maker in 

this issue.  

MGT-14 

Filing of Resolutions and agreements to the Registrar pursuant to section 94(1), 

117(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and section 192 of The Companies Act, 1956 

and rules made thereunder 

Mutual Funds  
A mutual fund registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 

1996, as amended from time to time  

Mutual Fund Portion  

5% of the Net QIB Portion, or upto 81,000* Equity Shares, which was available 

for allocation to Mutual Funds only on a proportionate basis, subject to valid Bids 

being received at or above the Issue Price.  

* Subject to finalization of Basis of Allotment. 

Net Issue  

The Issue (excluding the Market Maker Reservation Portion) of 80,70,000 equity 

Shares of  5/- each at a price of  47 per Equity Share (the ñIssue Priceò), 

including a share premium of  42 per equity share aggregating to  3,792.90 

Lakhs.  

Net Proceeds  

The Issue Proceeds received from the fresh Issue excluding Issue related 

expenses. For further information on the use of Issue Proceeds and Issue 

expenses, please refer to the section titled ñObjects of the Issueò beginning on 

page 85 of this Prospectus.  

Net QIB Portion  
The portion of the QIB Portion less the number of Equity Shares Allocated to the 

Anchor Investors  

Non- Resident  
A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA and includes NRIs, FPIs 

and FVCIs  

Non-Institutional Bidders  

All Bidders that are not QIBs, RIBs or Eligible Employees Bidding in the 

Employee Reservation Portion and who have Bid for Equity Shares, for an 

amount of more than 200,000 (but not including NRIs other than Eligible NRIs)  
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Non-Institutional Portion  

The portion of the Issue being not less than 15% of the Issue, consisting of 12,12,000*  

Equity Shares, which was available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Non 

Institutional Investors, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue 

Price.  

*Subject to finalization of Basis of Allotment. 

Overseas Corporate Body/ 

OCB  

Overseas Corporate Body means and includes an entity defined in clause (xi) of 

Regulation 2 of the Foreign Exchange Management (Withdrawal of General 

Permission to Overseas Corporate Bodies (OCBôs) Regulations 2003 and which 

was in existence on the date of the commencement of these Regulations and 

immediately prior to such commencement was eligible to undertake transactions 

pursuant to the general permission granted under the 

Regulations. 

Person/ Persons  

Any individual, sole proprietorship, unincorporated association, unincorporated 

organization, body corporate, corporation, company, partnership, limited liability 

company, joint venture, or trust or any other entity or organization validly 

constituted and/ or incorporated in the jurisdiction in which it exists and operates, 

as the context requires.  

Price Band  

Price Band of a minimum price (Floor Price) of  44 and the maximum price 

(Cap Price) of  47. The Price Band has been decided by our Company in 

consultation with the BRLM.  

Pricing Date  
The date on which our Company in consultation with the BRLM, finalized the 

Issue Price.  

Prospectus  

This Prospectus dated September 29, 2023, to be filed with the RoC in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 26 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

containing, inter alia, the Issue Price will be determined before filing the 

Prospectus with RoC. 

Public Issue Account  
Account to be opened with the Bankers to the Issue to receive monies from the 

SCSBs from the bank account of the Applicant, on the Designated Date.  

QIB Category/ QIB Portion  

The portion of the Net Issue (including the Anchor Investor Portion) being not 

more than 50% of the Net Issue, consisting of 40,32,000*  Equity Shares 

aggregating to  1,895.04 lakhs which were Allocated to QIBs (including Anchor 

Investors) on a proportionate basis, including the Anchor Investor Portion (in 

which allocation shall be on a discretionary basis, as determined by our Company 

in consultation with the BRLM), subject to valid Bids being received at or above 

the Issue Price or Anchor Investor Issue Price (for Anchor Investors). 

 

* Subject to finalization of Basis of Allotment 

Qualified Institutional 

Buyers/QIBs/ QIB Bidders 

Qualified institutional buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI 

ICDR Regulations. 

Red Herring Prospectus / RHP  

The Red Herring Prospectus to be issued in accordance with Section 32 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, which 

did not have complete particulars of the price at which the Equity Shares were 

Issued and the size of the Issue, including any addenda or corrigenda thereto. 

Refund Bank/ Refund Banker  

Bank which is / are clearing member(s) and registered with the SEBI as Bankers 

to the Issue at which the Refund Account will be opened, in this case being HDFC 

Bank Limited. 

Registered Broker 
The stockbrokers registered with the stock exchanges having nationwide 

terminals, other than the members of the Syndicate and eligible to procure Bids. 

Registrar/ Registrar to the 

Issue/ RTA 

Registrar to the Issue being ñBigshare Services Private Limitedò. 

Registrar Agreement 

The agreement dated July 31, 2023 entered into between our Company and the 

Registrar to the Issue in relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the 

Registrar to the Issue pertaining to the Issue. 

Regulation S 
Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended from time to 

time. 

Reserved Category/ 

Categories 

Categories of persons eligible for making application under reservation portion. 

Retail Individual Bidders/ 

RIBs/ Retail Individual 

Investors/ RIIs 

Individual Bidders, submitting Bids, who have Bid for Equity Shares for an 

amount not more than  2,00,000/- in any of the bidding options in the Net Issue 

(including HUFs applying through their Karta and Eligible NRIs and does not 

include NRIs other than Eligible NRIs). 

Retail Portion 

The portion of the Issue being not less than 35% of the Issue consisting of 

28,26,000* Equity Shares, which were available for allocation to Retail 

Individual Bidders as per the SEBI ICDR Regulations, which shall not be less 
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than the minimum Bid Lot, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the 

Issue Price. 

* Subject to finalization of Basis of Allotment. 

Revision Form 

Form used by the Bidders to modify the quantity of the Equity Shares or the Bid 

Amount in any of their ASBA Form(s) or any previous Revision Form(s), as 

applicable. 

QIB Bidders and Non-Institutional Bidders were not allowed to withdraw or 

lower their Bids (in terms of quantity of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any 

stage. Retail Individual Bidders could revise their Bids during the Bid / Offer 

Period and withdraw their Bids until Bid / Offer Closing Date. 

Registrar and Share Transfer 

Agents or RTAs 

Registrar and share transfer agents registered with SEBI and eligible to procure 

Applications at the Designated RTA Locations in terms of circular no. 

CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 DATED November 10, 2015 issued by SEBI. 

SCSB Branches  

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the ASBA Application Form 

from the Applicant and a list of which is available on the website of SEBI at 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes. 

Recognized-Intermediaries or at such other website as may be prescribed by 

SEBI from time to time  

Securities laws 

Means the Act, the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, the Depositories Act, 

1996 and the rules and regulations made thereunder and the general or special orders, 

guidelines or circulars made or issued by the Board thereunder and the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 or any previous company law and any subordinate 

legislation framed thereunder, which are administered by the Board. 

SEBI ICDR Regulation/ 

Regulation 

SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 issued 

by SEBI on September 11, 2018, as amended, including instructions and 

clarifications issued by SEBI from time to time. 

SEBI Act/ SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended from time to time. 

SEBI Listing 

Regulations 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended, including instructions and 

clarifications issued by SEBI from time to time. 

SEBI (SAST) Regulations 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeover) Regulations, 2011, as amended from time to time. 

Self-Certified Syndicate 

Bank(s) / SCSB(s) 

Shall mean a Banker to an Issue registered under Securities and Exchange Board 

of India (Bankers to an Issue) Regulations, 1994, as amended from time to time, 

and which offer the service of making Application/s Supported by Blocked 

Amount including blocking of bank account and a list of which is available on 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes or at 

such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time. 

SME Exchange SME Platform of the NSE i.e. NSE Emerge. 

SPOS Special Pre-Open Session 

Specified Securities Equity shares offered through the Red Herring Prospectus. 

Sponsor Bank 

Sponsor Bank means a Banker to the Issue registered with SEBI, which is 

appointed by the Issuer to act as a conduit between the Stock Exchanges and 

NPCI (National Payments Corporation of India) in order to push the mandate, 

collect requests and / or payment instructions of the Retail Investors into the UPI, 

using the UPI Mechanism and carry out any other responsibilities in terms of the 

UPI Circulars, in this case being HDFC Bank Limited. 

Systemically Important Non- 

Banking Financial Company 

Systemically important non-banking financial company as defined under Regulation 

2(1)(iii) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

Transaction Registration 

Slip/TRS 

The slip or document issued by the member of the Syndicate or SCSB (only on 

demand) as the case may be, to the Applicant as proof of registration of the 

Application. 

U.S. Securities Act U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended 

US Fed The Federal Reserve System is the central bank of the United States 

Underwriter Indorient Financial Services Limited 

Underwriting Agreement 
The Agreement dated September 16, 2023entered between the Underwriter, 

BRLM and our Company. 

UPI 

UPI is an instant payment system developed by the NCPI, it enables merging several 

banking features, seamless fund routing & merchant payment into one hood. UPI 

allow instant transfer of money between any two bank accounts using a payment 

address which uniquely identifies a personôs bank account. 

UPI Circulars 

SEBI circular no. CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/22 dated February 15, 2018, SEBI 

circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 1, 2018, 

SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/50 dated April 3, 2019, 
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SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76 dated June 28, 2019, 

SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019 

SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DCR2/CIR/P/2019/133 dated November 8, 

2019, SEBI Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/50 dated March 30, 

2020, SEBI Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/2480/1/M dated 

March 16, 2021, SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/47 dated 

March 31, 2021, SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2021/570 dated 

June 2, 2021, SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/45 dated April 

5, 2022, SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/51 dated April 20, 

2022 SEBI Circular No: SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/76 

dated May 30, 2022, SEBI circular SEBI/HO/CFD/TPD1/CIR/P/2023/140 dated 

August 9, 2023 and any subsequent circulars or notifications issued by SEBI in 

this regard. 

UPI ID 
ID created on the UPI for single-window mobile payment system developed by 

the NPCI 

UPI Mechanism 
The mechanism that was used by an RIB to make a Bid in the Offer in accordance 

with the UPI Circulars on Streamlining of Public Issues 

Venture Capital Fund/ VCF 

Foreign Venture Capital Funds (as defined under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996) registered with SEBI 

under applicable laws in India. 

Wilful Defaulter(s) 
Wilful defaulter as defined under Regulation 2(1)(lll) of the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations. 

Working Day 

In accordance with Regulation 2(1) (mmm) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, working 

days means, all days on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for 

business. However, in respect ofï 

(a) announcement of Price Band; and 

(b) Issue period, working days shall mean all days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays 

and public holidays, on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for 

business; 

(c) the time period between the Issue Closing Date and the listing of the Equity 

Shares on the Stock Exchange, working day shall mean all trading days of the 

Stock Exchange, excluding Sundays and bank holidays, as per circulars issued 

by SEBI. 

 

Technical and Industry Related Terms  

 

Term Description 

AI  Artificial Intelligence 

AIO All in One 

ARS Asset Recovery Services 

B2B Business-to-business 

CAD Current Account Deficits 

CAGR Compound Annual Growth Rate 

Capex  Capital Expenditure  

CoE Centre of Excellence 

CPU Central Processing Unit 

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility 

D2C Direct-to-Consumer 

ESG Environmental, Social, & Governance 

e-NAM National Agriculture Market or e-NAM (where e is to be construed as electronic or 

digital) is an online trading platform for agricultural commodities in India. 

ECLGS Emergency Credit Linked Guarantee Scheme 

ERP Enterprise resource planning (ERP) is a type of software system that helps organizations 

automate and manage core business processes for optimal performance 

GDP Gross Domestic Product 

GEM Government e-Marketplace 

GST Goods and Services Tax 

HaaS Hardware as a Service 

HP Hewlett-Packard 

IoT Internet of things 

IT Information Technology 

ICT Information and communications technology 
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IMF International Monetary Fund 

JIIT Jaypee Institute of Information Technology 

MAR Microsoft Authorized Refurbisher 

MGNREGS Mahatma Gandhi National Rural Employment Guarantee Scheme 

Mn Million  

MSME Micro, Small, and Medium Enterprises 

MyScheme MyScheme is a National Platform that aims to offer one-stop search and discovery of 

the Government schemes 

NFHS National Family Health Survey 

OEM Original Equipment Manufacturers 

PCs Personal Computers 

PM  Prime Minister 

PR Public Relation 

QC Quality check 

SFF Small form factor 

SKU Stock Keeping Unit 

SME Small and Medium Enterprise 

SFT Secure File Transfer 

SOPs Standard Operating Procedures 

SWOT Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats 

TrEDS Traffic Records Electronic Data System 

UI/ UX User interface / User experience 

UMANG Unified Mobile Application for New-age Governance 

UNDP United Nations Development Programme 

UPI Unified Payment Interface 

WEO World Economic Outlook 

WTO World Trade Organization 

 

 

Conventional Terms and General Terms  

Term Description 

AIF(s) Alternative Investment Fund as defined in and registered with SEBI under the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investments Funds) Regulations, 2012 

AIF Regulations  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investments Funds) Regulations, 

2012, as amended  

Banking Regulation Act  Banking Regulation Act, 1949  

CA Chartered Accountant 

Category I AIF AIFs who are registered as ñCategory I Alternative Investment Fundsò under the AIF 

Regulations 

Category I FPIs FPIs who are registered as ñCategory I Foreign Portfolio Investorsò under the FPI 

Regulations 

Category II AIF AIFs who are registered as ñCategory II Alternative Investment Fundsò under the AIF 

Regulations 

Category II FPIs FPIs who are registered as ñCategory II Foreign Portfolio Investorsò under the FPI 

Regulations 

Category III AIF AIFs who are registered as ñCategory III Alternative Investment Fundsò under the AIF 

Regulations 

CGST  Central GST  

CS Company Secretary 

Competition Act  Competition Act, 2002  

Consolidated FDI Policy  Consolidation FDI Policy Circular of 2020 dated October 15, 2020, issued by the 

Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion, Ministry of Commerce and Industry, 

Government of India, and any modifications thereto or substitutions thereof, issued 

from time to time 

COVID-19 A public health emergency of international concern as declared by the World Health 

Organization on January 30, 2020 and a pandemic on March 11, 2020 

CST Act Central Sales Tax  

EPF Employee Provident Fund 

FDI  Foreign Direct Investment 

FEMA  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, read with rules and regulations thereunder  

FEMA Non-Debt 

Instruments 

Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019 issued by the 

Ministry of Finance, GoI 
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Rules 

FEMA Regulations  Foreign Exchange Management (Transfer or Issue of Security by a Person Resident 

Outside India) Regulations, 2017  

FII(s)  Foreign Institutional Investor (as defined under SEBI (Foreign Institutional Investors) 

Regulations, 1995, as amended) registered with SEBI under applicable laws in India 

FII Regulations SEBI (Foreign Institutional Investors) Regulations, 1995, as amended 

Fiscal Year/ Financial Year / 

F.Y. 

Period of twelve months ended March 31 of that particular year, unless otherwise stated  

SEBI FVCI Regulations  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investor) 

Regulations, 2000, as amended  

Gazette Gazette of India 

IND AS Rules  Indian Accounting Standards, Rules 2015  

ICAI  Institute of Chartered Accountants of India  

ICSI  Institute of Company Secretaries of India  

IFSC Code Indian Financial System Code 

IGST Integrated Goods and Services Tax 

IGST Act Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017  

IMF  International Monetary Fund  

India Republic of India 

IND AS  Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015  

ISIN  International Securities Identification Number  

ISO  International Organization for Standardization  

IST  Indian Standard Time  

Merchant Banker  Merchant Banker as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992  

Merchant Banker 

Regulations 

SEBI (Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992 

Mutual Funds Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 

NSE  National Stock Exchange of India Limited  

NOC No objection certificate 

PAN  Permanent Account Number  

R&D Research and Development 

RBI Act Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 

Regulation S  Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act  

RTA Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agent) Regulations, 1993 

SEBI SBEBSE Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 

Equity) Regulations, 2021 

SCRA  Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956, as amended, from time to time  

SCRR  Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended, from time to time  

State Government The government of a state in India 

SGST State Goods and Services Tax 

SGST Act State Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017  

 SS  Secretarial Standards as issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India 

Sub-account Sub-accounts registered with SEBI under the FII Regulations other than sub-accounts 

which are foreign corporate or foreign individuals 

TDS  Tax Deducted at Source  

UGST Union Territory Goods and Services Tax 

UGST Act  Union Territory Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017  

VCFs Venture Capital Funds as defined in and registered with SEBI under the VCF 

Regulations 

 

 Abbreviations 

Terms Descriptions 

 or Rupees or INR Rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India 

A/c Account 

AGM Annual General Meeting 

AS/Accounting Standards Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

A.Y. Assessment year 

CARO Companies (Auditorôs Report) Order, 2003 

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited 
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CFO Chief Financial Officer 

CLB Company Law Board 

Cr PC Criminal Procedure Code, 1973, as amended 

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility 

C.Y. Calendar Year 

DDT Dividend Distribution Tax 

DIN Director Identification Number 

ECS Electronic Clearing System 

EBITDA Earnings before Interest, Tax Depreciation and Amortisation 

EGM Extraordinary General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company 

EPF Act Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 

EPS Earnings Per Share 

FDI Foreign Direct Investment 

GAAR General Anti Avoidance Rules 

GBP Great Britain Pound 

GoI/Government Government of India 

GST Goods & Service Tax 

HNI High Net Worth Individual 

HUF Hindu Undivided Family 

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards 

IT Rules The Income Tax Rules, 1962, as amended 

ISACA Information Systems Audit and Control Association 

MoU Memorandum of Understanding 

N.A. Not Applicable 

NAV/ Net Asset Value 

Net asset value being paid up Equity Share capital plus free reserves (excluding 

reserves created out of revaluation) less deferred expenditure not written off 

(including miscellaneous expenses not written off) and debit balance of profit and 

loss account, divided by number of issued Equity Shares 

NECS National Electronic Clearing Services 

NoC No Objection Certificate 

No. Number 

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited 

NTA Net Tangible Assets 

p.a. Per annum 

PAT Profit After Tax. 

PBT Profit Before Tax. 

P/E Price per Earnings 

Pvt. Private. 

RoE Return on Equity 

RoNW Return on Net Worth. 

SCN Show Cause Notice. 

STT Securities Transaction Tax 

US/United States United States. 

USD/ US$/ $  United States Dollar, the official currency of the Unites States of America  

w.e.f. With effect from 

YoY Year on Year. 

 

The words and expressions used but not defined in this Prospectus will have the same meaning as assigned to such terms 

under the Companies Act, 2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, the SCRA, the Depositories Act 

and the rules and regulations made thereunder. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the terms defined ï 

a) In the section titled óRisk Factorsô beginning on page 29 of this Prospectus, shall have the meaning given to such terms 

in that section; 

 

b) In the section titled óStatement of Possible Tax Benefitsô beginning on page 104 of this Prospectus, shall have the 

meaning given to such terms in that section; 

 

c) In the section titled óOur Industryô beginning on page 108 of this Prospectus, shall have the meaning given to such 

terms in that section; 

 

d) In the section titled óKey Industry Regulations and Policiesô beginning on page 131 of this Prospectus, shall have the 

meaning given to such terms in that section; 
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e) In the section titled óFinancial Informationô beginning on page 175 of this Prospectus, shall have the meaning given 

to such terms in that section; 

 

f) In the section titled óManagementôs Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsô 

beginning on page 216 of this Prospectus, shall have the meaning given to such terms in that section; and 

 

g) In the section titled óOutstanding Litigations and Material Developmentsô beginning on page 226 of this Prospectus, 

shall have the meaning given to such terms in that section; 

 

h) In the section titled óMain Provisions of the Articles of Associationô beginning on page 284 of this Prospectus, shall 

have the meaning given to such terms in that section; 
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CERTAIN CONVENTIONS, CURRENCY OF PRESENTATION , USE OF FINANCIAL  INFORMATION  AND 

MARKET DATA  

 

In this Prospectus, the terms ñweò, ñusò, ñourò, the ñCompanyò, ñour Companyò, ñNewjaisa Technologies Limitedò and 

ñNewjaisaò, unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to Newjaisa Technologies Limited. 

 

CERTAIN CONVENTIONS  

 

All references in this Prospectus to ñIndiaò are to the Republic of India and all references to the ñGovernmentò are to the 

Government of India.  

 

FINANCIAL DATA  

 

Unless stated otherwise, the financial data included in this Prospectus are extracted from the Restated Financial Statements 

of our Company, prepared in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 Indian GAAP and 

restated in accordance with ICDR Regulations, as stated in the report of our Peer Reviewed Auditors, set out in the section 

titled óFinancial Informationô beginning on page 175 of this Prospectus. Our Restated Financial Statements are derived 

from our audited financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP and the Companies Act, 2013, and have 

been restated in accordance with the ICDR Regulations and Guidance Note on ñReports in Company Prospectus (Revised 

2019) issued by ICAI as amended from time to time. 

 

Our Financial Year commences on April 1st of each year and ends on March 31st of the following year, so all references to 

a particular Financial Year are to the 12month period ended March 31st of that year. In this Prospectus, discrepancies in any 

table, graphs or charts between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due to rounding-off. Further, figure 

represented in the BRACKET or with the sign ñ ï ò indicates NEGATIVE data in this Prospectus in relation to our Company 

and industry. There are significant differences between Indian GAAP, IFRS and U.S. GAAP. Our Company has not 

attempted to explain those differences or quantify their impact on the financial data included herein, nor do we provide a 

reconciliation of our financial statements to those under U.S. GAAP or IFRS and the investors should consult their own 

advisors regarding such differences and their impact on the financial data. Accordingly, the degree to which the Restated 

Financial Statements included in this Prospectus will provide meaningful information is entirely dependent on the readerôs 

level of familiarity with Indian accounting practices/ Indian GAAP, the Companies Act, 2013 and the ICDR Regulations. 

Any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian accounting practices on the financial disclosures presented in this 

Prospectus should accordingly be limited. 

 

All  figures in decimals (including percentages) have been rounded off up to Second decimals and all percentage figures have 

been rounded off to two decimal places. In certain instances, discrepancies in any table between the sums of the amounts 

listed in the table and totals are due to rounding off. However, where any figures may have been sourced from third-party 

industry sources, such figures may be rounded-off to such number of decimal points as provided in such respective sources. 

In this Prospectus, (i) the sum or percentage change of certain numbers may not conform exactly to the total figure given; 

and (ii)  the sum of the numbers in a column or row in certain tables may not conform exactly to the total figure given 

for that column or row. Any such discrepancies are due to rounding off. 

  

Any percentage amounts, as set forth in the section titled óRisk Factorsô, sections titled óOur Businessô and óManagementôs 

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsô beginning on page 29 nos. 121 and 216 of this 

Prospectus, respectively, and elsewhere in this Prospectus, unless otherwise indicated, have been calculated on the basis of 

our audited financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP and the Companies Act, 2013 and restated in 

accordance with the ICDR Regulations. 

 

CURRENCY AND UNITS OF PRESENTATION  

 

In Red Herring Prospectus, unless the context otherwise requires, all references to; 

 

¶ óRupeesô or óRs.ô Or óINRô or óô are to Indian rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India. 

¶ óUS Dollarsô or óUS$ô or óUSDô or ó$ô are to United States Dollars, the official currency of the United States of 

America.   

 

All references to the word ñLakh/ Lakhs or Lacò means ñOne Hundred Thousandò, the word ñCrore/Croresò means 

ñHundred Lakhsò, the word ñMillion (million)  or Mnò means ñTen Lakhsò, the word ñCroresò means ñTen Millionò and 

the word ñBillion (bn)ò means ñOne Hundred Croresò.  

 

Our Company has presented certain numerical information in this Prospectus in ñLakhsò units. One lakh represents 

1,00,000. In this Prospectus, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed therein are 

due to rounding-off. 
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TIME  

 

All references to time in this Prospectus are to Indian Standard Time. 

 

INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA  

 

Unless stated otherwise, the industry and market data and forecasts used throughout this Prospectus has been obtained from 

internal company reports, industry sources as well as Government Publications. Industry sources as well as Government 

Publications generally state that the information contained in those publications has been obtained from sources believed 

to be reliable but that their accuracy and completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability 

cannot be assured. Further, the extent to which the industry and market data presented in this Prospectus is meaningful 

depends on the readerôs familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data. Although, 

we believe industry and market data used in the Red Herring Prospectus is reliable, it has not been independently verified 

by us or the BRLM or any of their affiliates or advisors. Similarly, internal Company reports and data, while believed by 

us to be reliable, have not been verified by any independent source. There are no standard data gathering methodologies in 

the industry in which we conduct our business, and methodologies and assumptions may vary widely among different 

industry sources. 

 

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations the section titled ñBasis for Issue Priceò on page 98 of this Prospectus 

includes information relating to our peer group companies. Such information has been derived from publicly available 

sources, and neither we, nor the BRLM, have independently verified such information.  
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS  

 

This Prospectus contains certain ñforward-looking statementsò. All statements contained in this Prospectus that are not 

statements of historical fact constitute ñforward-looking statementsò. All statements regarding our expected financial 

condition and results of operations, business, plans and prospects are ñforward-looking statementsò. These forward-looking 

statements generally can be identified by words or phrases such as ñaimò, ñanticipateò, ñbelieveò, ñexpectò, ñestimateò, 

ñintendò, ñlikely toò, ñseek toò, ñshallò, ñobjectiveò, ñplanò, ñprojectò, ñwillò, ñwill continueò, ñwill pursueò or other words 

or phrases of similar import. Similarly, statements that describe our strategies, objectives, plans or goals are also forward-

looking statements. All forward-looking statements whether made by us in this Prospectus are based on our current plans, 

estimates, presumptions and expectations and are subject to corresponding risks, uncertainties and assumptions about us 

that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by the relevant forward looking statement, 

including but not limited to, regulatory changes pertaining to the industries we serve and our ability to respond to them, our 

ability to successfully implement our strategy, our growth and expansion, technological changes, our exposure to market 

risks, general economic and political conditions, which have an impact on our business activities or investments, the 

monetary and fiscal policies of India, inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, 

equity prices or other rates or prices, the performance of the financial markets in India and globally, changes in domestic 

laws, regulations and taxes and changes in competition. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially 

from our expectations include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 

¶ Our commercial success is largely dependent upon our ability to successfully anticipate market needs and leverage 

our systems, processes and operations to upgrade, develop, enhance existing products and introduce new products 

that meets our customerôs requirements.  

¶ Our expansion into new product categories and an increase in the number of products offered by us may expose 

us to new challenges and more risks. 

¶ One of the objects of our issue is to undertake expenditure towards branding and marketing via social media 

channels to increase sales and growth. 

¶ Our inability to maintain product quality, attractive pricing and delivery schedules could result in loss of market 

share, brand value, thereby impacting our sales, also leading to warranty claims and replacement cost.  

¶ Our operations are labour intensive and could be adversely affected by strikes or increased wage demands by our 

employees or any other kind of disputes with our employees. 

¶ Our industry is competitive and we  face  significant  competition  from  both  established  and  un-organised 

companies  offering refurbished products,  which  may have  a  negative  effect  on  our  ability  to  add  new  

customers,  retain  existing  customers  and  grow  our business. Our inability to compete  effectively  will  adversely  

affect  our  business,  results  of  operations, financial condition and cash flows 

¶ Failure to obtain or renew the required accreditations, licenses and permits from government, regulatory authorities 

in a timely manner; and to comply with changes in laws, regulations, government policies and regulatory actions 

relating to the sectors/ areas in which we operate will adversely affect  our  business,  results  of  operations, 

financial condition and cash flows. 

For further discussion of factors that could cause the actual results to differ from the expectations, please refer the óRisk 

Factorsô, óOur Businessô and óManagementôs Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsô 

beginning on page 29, 121 and 216, respectively. By their nature, certain market risk disclosures are only estimates and 

could be materially different from what actually occurs in the future. As a result, actual future gains or losses could 

materially differ from those that have been estimated and are not a guarantee of future performance. 

  

Forward-looking statements reflect our current views as of the date of this Prospectus and are not a guarantee of our future 

performance. There can be no assurance to investors that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements 

will prove to be correct. Given these uncertainties, investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-

looking statements and not to regard such statements to be a guarantee of our future performance. 

 

These statements are based on our managementôs belief and assumptions, which in turn are based on currently available 

information. Although we believe the assumptions upon which these forward looking statements are based on are 

reasonable, any of these assumptions could prove to be inaccurate and the forward looking statements based on these 

assumptions could be incorrect. Given these uncertainties, investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such 

forward-looking statements and not to regard such statements as a guarantee of future performance. Neither our Company, 

our Promoter, our Directors, the Book Running Lead Manager nor any of their respective affiliates have any obligation to 

update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence 

of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition. In accordance with the requirements of 

SEBI, our Company (in respect of statements/ disclosures made by them in this Prospectus) shall ensure that investors in 

India are informed of material developments from the date of this Prospectus until the date of Allotment. 

  



 

Page 23 of 329 

 

 

 

SECTION II: SUMMARY OF THE PROSPECTUS  

 

This section is a general summary of certain disclosures included in this Prospectus and is not exhaustive, nor does it 

purport to contain a summary of all the disclosures in the Red Herring Prospectus or this Prospectus when filed, or all 

details relevant to prospective investors. This summary should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety 

by, the more detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Prospectus, including the sections titled ñRisk Factorsò, 

ñThe Issueò, ñCapital Structureò, ñObjects of the Issueò, ñOur Industryò, ñOur Businessò, ñOutstanding Litigations and 

Material Developmentsò, ñIssue Procedureò, and ñMain Provisions Of Articles Of Associationò beginning on pages 29, 

51 , 70,85, 108, 121, 226, 258 and  284 respectively of this Prospectus. 

 

A. OVERVIEW OF INDUSTRY  

 

(Source: Global Market Outlook) 

 

Refurbished laptops segment is expected to dominate the global refurbished computers and laptops market and will 

contribute the largest share of 74.2% in 2023. The segment will create opportunity of US$ 23,782.7 Mn during the 

forecast period. The refurbished laptops segment would be the most attractive segment during the forecast period. The 

refurbished desktop computers segment is expected to grow at a CAGR of 8.4% during forecast period. 

 

For further details please refer the section titled óOur Industryô beginning on page 108 of this Prospectus. 

 

B. OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS 

 

Started in 2020, we are a Technology driven Direct to consumer refurbished IT electronics company providing quality 

refurbished electronics at significant discount as compared to new products. Our business model encompasses end to 

end reverse supply chain for IT assets. It involves procuring used IT assets (laptops, desktops and peripherals), 

refurbishing them to as close to new computer condition, and selling them directly to end use customers ï businesses 

or retail. We currently are focused and operate in Indian market and cater to our Pan India customer base via 

ecommerce and our online platforms. Our business is helping us to reduce growing e-waste problem on one hand and, 

at same time, help serve large underserved Indian population that currently has low personal computing ownership, 

by delivering quality product at very affordable prices with service guarantee via our warranties. 

 

C. OUR PROMOTERS 

 

As on date of this Prospectus, our Promoters are Mr. Vishesh Handa and Mr. Mukunda Raghavendra. 

 

For further details please refer the section titled óOur Promoters and Promoter Groupô beginning on page 167 of this 

Prospectus. 

  

 

D. DETAILS OF THE ISSUE  

 

Fresh Issue: 

 

Issue(1) Fresh Issue of 84,96,000* Equity Shares for cash at price of  47 per Equity Share (including a 

premium of 42 per Equity Share), aggregating  3,993.12 Lakhs. 

* Subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment 

(1) The Issue has been authorized by a resolution of our Board dated July 07, 2023 and by our Shareholders pursuant 

to a special resolution passed on July 10, 2023. 

 

The Issue shall constitute 26.40% of the post-Issue paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company. For further 

details, please see ñThe Issueò and ñCapital Structureò on page 51 and 70 respectively. 

  

Offer for Sale:  

 

There is no offer for sale as our Company is making only a Fresh Issue. 

 

 

E. OBJECT OF THE ISSUE  

 

Our Company intends to utilize the Net Proceeds of the Issue (Issue Proceeds less the issue expenses) towards the 

following objects: 



 

Page 24 of 329 

 

 

(  in Lakh) 

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars Estimated 

Amount 

% of Gross 

Proceed 

% of Net 

Proceed 

1 Expansion of refurbishment facility and purchase 

of plant, machinery and equipment 

100.00 100.00 -- 

2 Investment in technology development  200.00 100.00 100.00 

3 Branding & Marketing 200.00 100.00 100.00 

4 Funding Working Capital requirement 1,545.44 1,545.44 -- 

5 Repayment of Bank facilities 730.00 730.00 -- 

6 General Corporate purposes # 717.68 717.68 -- 

 TOTAL (Net Proceeds) 3,493.12 3,293.12 200.00 
             #The amount utilized for general corporate purpose shall not exceed 25% of the gross proceeds of the Fresh issue. 

 

F. PRE-ISSUE SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTER AND PROMOTER GROUP  

 

The aggregate pre-Issue shareholding of our Promoter as a percentage of the pre-Issue paid-up Equity Share capital 

of our Company is set out below: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of the Shareholder *Pre-Issue 

Number of Equity Shares 

held 

% of the pre-Issue paid-

up Equity Share Capital  

(A) Promoter   

1.  Mr. Vishesh Handa 2,12,03,690 89.51  

2.  Mr. Mukunda Raghavendra 11,16,062 4.71 

 Total (A) 2,23,19,752 94.22 

(B) Promoter Group   

 Mrs. Ankita Handa 62 Negligible  

 Mrs. Kiran Handa 62 Negligible 

 Mr. Arun Handa 62 Negligible 

 Total (B) 186 Negligible 

 Total (A) + (B) 2,23,19,938 94.23 

*After share split and bonus issue. 

 

G. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION   

 

Based on Restated Financial Statements: 

                               (  in lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended March 31 

2023 2022 2021 

Share Capital 36.00 36.00 1.00 

Net Worth 930.12 254.55 74.36 

Revenue from Operation 4,452.98 2,791.90 960.67 

Total Income 4,453.23 2,792.50 960.71 

Profit After Tax 675.57 180.19 73.36 

Earnings per share (basic and diluted) (Face Value  5/- 

each) (in )  
   

(i) Basic  3.03 0.81 0.33 

(ii)  Diluted NA NA NA 

Net asset value (NAV) per Equity Share (in )  4.17 1.14 0.34 

Total borrowings 743.70 181.82 162.64 

          

1) Net Worth has been defined as the aggregate value of the paid-up share capital and all reserves created out of 

the profits and securities premium account and debit or credit balance of profit and loss account, after deducting 

the aggregate value of the accumulated losses, deferred expenditure and miscellaneous expenditure not written 

off, as per the audited balance sheet, but does not include reserves created out of revaluation of assets as 

attributable to the owners of the holding company as on March 31, 2023. Net worth represents equity attributable 

to owners of the holding company and does not include amounts attributable to non-controlling interests. 

2) Basic & Diluted earnings per share (Rs) -Net profit after tax as restated for calculating basic EPS / Weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the period or year 

3) Net assets value per share ï Net Worth at the end of the period or year / Total number of equity shares 

outstanding at the end of the period or year. 

4) Total Borrowing ï aggregate value of Long term borrowing and short term borrowings 
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For further details, see ñRestated Financial Statementsò on page 175. 

 

H. AUDITOR QUALIFICATIONS  WHICH HAVE NOT BEEN GIVEN EFFECT TO IN THE RESTATED 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 

The Auditor report of Restated Financial Statements of our Company, for the Financial Year ended on March 31 2023, 

2022 and 2021 does not contain any qualification which have not been given effect to in Restated Financial Statements. 

 

I.  SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS  

 

Except as stated below, as on the date of this Prospectus, there are no outstanding litigations against our Company, 

Directors, Promoters and/or there are no outstanding litigations filed by our Company, Directors, Promoters: 

 

I.  Litigation involving our Company  

 

A. Litigation against our Company 

Sr. No. Litigation Involving  No. of Proceedings 

a)  Criminal Proceedings 1 

b)  Civil Proceedings Nil  

c)  Actions by Statutory/ Regulatory Authorities1  Nil  

d)  Other Pending Litigations based on Materiality Policy Nil  

e)  Wilful Defaulter: 

Our Company does not appear on the Wilful Defaultersô list as per the Reserve Bank of India circular 

on Wilful Defaultersô. 

 

II.  Litigation involving Director /s of our Company 

 

A. Litigation against Director/s of our Company 

Sr. No. Litigation Involving  No. of Proceedings 

a)  Criminal Proceedings 1 

b)  Civil Proceedings Nil  

c)  Actions by Statutory/ Regulatory Authorities  Nil  

d)  Other Pending Litigations based on Materiality Policy Nil  

e)  Wilful Defaulter: 

None of our Directors appear on the Wilful Defaultersô list as per the Reserve Bank of India circular on 

Wilful Defaultersô. 

 

III.  Litigation involving our Promoter/s  

 

A. Litigation against our Promoter/s 

Sr. No. Litigation Involving  No. of Proceedings 

a)  Criminal Proceedings 1 

b)  Civil Proceedings Nil  

c)  Actions by Statutory/ Regulatory Authorities  Nil  

d)  Other Pending Litigations based on Materiality Policy Nil  

e)  Disciplinary Action Including Penalty Imposed By SEBI/ Stock 

Exchanges Against Our Promoters in the last 5 Financial Years including 

Outstanding Action 

Nil  

f)  Wilful Defaulter: 

None of our Promoters appear on the Wilful Defaultersô list as per the Reserve Bank of India circular on 

Wilful Defaultersô. 

 

 

IV.  Tax Proceedings 

 

Nature of Proceedings Number of cases Amount involved* ( . in lakhs) 

Against the company   

Direct Tax (Income Tax) 1 13.35 

Indirect Tax Nil  Nil  

Filed by the company   

Direct Tax (Income Tax) Nil  Nil  

Indirect Tax Nil  Nil  
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Total 1 13.35 

Against the Promoters and Directors   

Mr. Vishesh Handa   

Direct Tax (Income Tax) 1 19.79 

Indirect Tax Nil  Nil  

Total 1 19.79 

 

For further details in relation to legal proceedings involving our Company, Promoters and Directors, please refer 

section titled óOutstanding Litigations and Material Developmentsô on beginning page 226 of this Prospectus. 

 

J. RISK FACTORS  

 

Please refer the section titled óRisk Factorsô beginning on page 29 of this Prospectus. 

 

K.  SUMMARY OF CONTIGENT LIABILITIES  

 

The details of contingent liabilities as at March 31, 2023 is set forth in the below table: 

(  in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Contingent liabilities in 

respect of TDS & Income 

Tax matters 

13.35 Nil  Nil  

Total 13.35 Nil  Nil  

 

For further details, please refer to Note Annexure-XXVII  ï Contingent Liabilities of the section titled ñFinancial 

Informationò of theò on page 175  of this Prospectus. 

 

L.  SUMMARY OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  

 

The summary detail of the related party transactions entered by our Company as per the Restated Financial Statements 

for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021.  

 

List of Related parties 

 

Names of the related parties with whom transactions were carried out during the years and description of 

relationship:  

 

Name Nature of Relationship 

Mukunda Raghavendra  Director - since March 03, 2023  

Prathibha Director - upto February 10, 2023  

Vishesh Handa  Director - since September 01, 2021 (Previous Appointment dated 

March 16, 2021 and ceased to be director dated July 01, 2021) 

Ankita Handa Director - since January 13, 2023 

Arun Kumar Handa  Relatives of the Directors 

Kiran Handa Relatives of the Directors 

Rajalakshmi Gururajan  Relatives of the Directors 

Vijay Kumar Relatives of the Directors 

Vanshya Enterprises LLP Mr. Vishesh Handa and Mrs. Ankita Handa are designated partners and 

have profit sharing ratio of their respective contribution made in 

Vanshya Enterprises LLP. 

 

                                                                                                                                               (  in Lakhs) 

Name Nature of Transaction For the year Financial Year ended March 31 
  

2023 2022 2021 

 

 

Vishesh Handa 

Directors Remunerations 20.00 11.76 - 

Unsecured loan from Director 

Received 

86.89 281.88 283.19 

Unsecured loan from Director 

Repaid 

118.27 314.92 215.50 
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Vanshya 

Enterprises LLP 

Trade Advance for Supply of 

Materials / Services (Net of 

Supply) 

8.76 5.35 1.45 

Vanshya 

Enterprises LLP 

Loan from related party received - - 530.30 

Loan from related party repaid - - 530.30 

 

Prathibha 

Directors Remunerations - 10.00 10.02 

Unsecured loan from Director (net 

of repayment) 

19.32 - - 

Mukunda 

Raghavendra 

Salary to Relative of Director 19.00 11.76 10.99 

Arun Kumar 

Handa  

Professional Charges paid to the 

Relative of the Director 

- 10.00 10.00 

Kiran Handa Professional Charges paid to the 

Relative of the Director 

- 10.00 10.00 

Rajalakshmi 

Gururajan 

Professional Charges paid to the 

Relative of the Director 

- 10.00 10.00 

For further details in relation of the same, please refer the section titled óRestated Financial Statementsô beginning on 

page 175 of this Prospectus.  

 

M.  DETAILS OF FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS  

 

There are no financing arrangements whereby our Promoters, members of Promoter Group, the Directors of our 

Company and their relatives have financed the purchase by any other person of securities of our Company other than 

in the normal course of the business of the financing entity during the period of 6 (six) months immediately preceding 

the date of filing of this Prospectus.  

 

N. WEIGHTED AVERAGE PRICE AT WHICH THE EQUITY SHARES ACQUIRED BY EACH OF OUR 

PROMOTERS IN THE LAST 1 (ONE) YEAR PRECEDING THE DATE OF THIS PROSPECTUS. 

 

Name of the Person Number of Equity Shares 

Acquired 

Weighted average price per equity 

share (In )  

Mr. Vishesh Handa 2,09,15,690 0.18 

Mr. Mukunda Raghavendra 11,16,062 0.000009 

Note: Pursuant to the certificate dated September 15, 2023, issued by, M/s. Abhilashi & Co Chartered Accountants 

 

O. AVERAGE COST OF ACQUISITION OF SHARES  

 

The average cost of acquisition of or subscription to Equity Shares by our Promoters is set forth in the table below: 

 

Name of the Promoters No. of Equity Shares held Average cost of acquisition (in )*# 

Mr. Vishesh Handa 2,12,03,690 0.18 

Mr. Mukunda Raghavendra 11,16,062 0.000009 

* Pursuant to the certificate dated September 15, 2023, issued by M/s. Abhilashi & Co, Chartered Accountants 

# Computed based on the Equity Shares acquired/allotted/purchased (including acquisition pursuant to transfer). 

However, the Equity Shares disposed of have not been considered while computing number of Equity Shares held.) 

 

P. WEIGHTED AVERAGE COST OF ACQUISITION OF ALL SHARES TRANSACTED  IN  THE   THREE  

YEARS,  18  MONTHS  AND  ONE  YEAR PRECEDING THE DATE OF THIS PROSPECTUS 

 

Period Weighted 

Average Cost of 

Acquisition (in ) 

Cap Price is óXô times the 

Weighted Average Cost of 

Acquisition^  

Range of acquisition 

price: Lowest Price*  - Highest 

Price (in ) 

Last 1 year 2.18 21.56  Nil -36.56 

Last 18 months 2.18 21.56 Nil -36.56 

Last 3 years 2.11 22.27 Nil -36.56 

               Pursuant to the certificate dated September 15, 2023, issued by M/s. Abhilashi & Co, Chartered Accountants 

          The above figures are adjusted for split and bonus. 

         *ôNilô represents bonus 
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Q. ACQUISITION OF EQUITY SHARES IN THE LAST THREE YEARS  

 

The details of price at which equity shares were acquired by Promoters and the members of the Promoter Group in 

the last three years preceding the date of this Prospectus is set forth below: 

 

Name of 

Shareholders 

Nature of 

Acquisition 

Date of 

Acquisition 

Number of 

Equity Shares 

Acquired 

Face 

Value 

(in ) 

Acquisition 

Price Per Equity 

Share (in )*  

  Promoters 

Mr. Vishesh Handa Transfer February 18, 2022 2,88,000 10 Nil **  

Transfer February 10, 2023 54,000 10 71.39/-^^ 

Bonus Issue July 17, 2023 2,05,19,700 5 Nil ^ 

Mr. Mukunda 

Raghavendra 

Transfer May 04, 2023 1 10 10/-# 

Transfer June 19, 2023 18000 10 NIL **  

Bonus Issue July 17, 2023 10,80,060 5 Nil  

  Promoter Group (other than Promoters) 

Mr. Arun Kumar 

Handa 

Transfer May 04, 2023 1 10 10/-# 

Bonus Issue July 17, 2023 60 5 Nil ^ 

Mrs. Kiran Handa Transfer May 04, 2023 1 10 10/-# 

Bonus Issue July 17, 2023 60 5 Nil ^ 

Mrs. Ankita Handa Transfer May 04, 2023 1 10 10/-# 

Bonus Issue July 17, 2023 60 5 Nil ^ 

*As certified by M/s. Abhilashi & Co, Chartered Accountants, by way of their certificate dated September 15, 2023 

** Equity Shares transferred through gift. 

#Equity Shares transferred at face value of 10 per equity share. 

^Equity Shares issued pursuant to a bonus issue of Equity Shares in the ratio of 30 Equity Shares for 1 existing Equity 

Shares held, authorised by a resolution of our Board dated July 07, 2023 and a resolution of our Shareholders dated 

July 10, 2023. 

^^Equity Shares transferred at  71.39/- per equity share. 

 

R. DETAILS OF PRE-IPO PLAC EMENT  

 

Our Company has not made any pre-IPO placement. Further, our Company does not contemplate any issuance or 

placement of Equity Shares from the date of this Prospectus till the listing of the Equity Shares.  

 

S. EQUITY SHARES ISSUED FOR CONSIDERATION OTHER THAN CASH IN LAST 1 (ONE) YEAR  

 

Other than as disclosed in the section ñCapital Structureò on page 70, our Company has not issued any Equity Shares 

for consideration other than cash except bonus issue in the 1 (one) year preceding the date of this Prospectus. 

 

T. SPLIT / CONSOLIDATION OF EQUITY SHARES IN THE LAST 1 (ONE) YEAR  

 

Pursuant to a resolution of our Board dated July 03, 2023 and Shareholdersô resolution dated July 06, 2023, 1 (one) 

equity shares of face value of  10 each of our Company were sub-divided into 2 (two) equity shares of face value of 

 5 each. Consequently, the issued and subscribed share capital of our Company comprising 1,18,43,736 equity shares 

of face value of  10 each was sub-divided into 2,36,87,472 equity shares of face value of  5 each. Other than this, 

our Company has not undertaken any split or consolidation of Equity Shares in one year preceding the date of this 

Prospectus 

 

For further details, see ñCapital Structureò on page 70 

 

U. EXEMPTION FROM COMPLYING WITH ANY PROVISIONS OF SECURITIES LAWS, IF ANY, 

GRANTED BY SEBI  

 

Our Company has not applied to SEBI for any exemption from complying with any provisions of securities laws, as 

on the date of this Prospectus.   
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SECTION III: RISK FACTORS 

 

 

An investment in Equity Shares involves a high degree of financial risk. You should carefully consider all information in 

this Prospectus, including the risks described below, before making an investment in our Equity Shares.  

 

The risk factors set forth below do not purport to be complete or comprehensive in terms of all the risk factors that may 

arise in connection with our business or any decision to purchase, own or dispose of the Equity Shares. This section 

addresses general risks associated with the industry in which we operate and specific risks associated with our Company. 

Any of the following risks, as well as the other risks and uncertainties discussed in this Prospectus, could have a material 

adverse effect on our business and could cause the trading price of our Equity Shares to decline and you may lose all or 

part of your investment. In addition, the risks set out in this Prospectus are not exhaustive. Additional risks and 

uncertainties, whether known or unknown, may in the future have material adverse effect on our business, financial 

condition and results of operations, or which we currently deem immaterial, may arise or become material in the future. 

To obtain a complete understanding of our Company, prospective investors should read this section in conjunction with 

the sections titled óOur Businessô and óManagementôs Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 

Operationsô on page 121 and 216 of this Prospectus respectively as well as other financial and statistical information 

contained in this Prospectus.  

 

This Prospectus also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our results could 

differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including 

events described below and elsewhere in this Prospectus. Unless otherwise stated, the financial information used in 

this section is derived from and should be read in conjunction with Restated Financial Statements of our Company 

prepared in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and restated in accordance with the ICDR Regulations, 

including the schedules, annexure and notes thereto. 

 

Materiality  

 

The Risk factors have been determined on the basis of their materiality. The following factors have been considered for 

determining the materiality. 

 

1. Some events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively; 

2. Some events may not be material individually but may be found material collectively; 

3. Some events may not be material at present but may be having material impact in future.  

 

The financial and other related implications of risks concerned, wherever quantifiable, have been disclosed in the risk 

factors mentioned below. However, there are risk factors where the impact may not be quantifiable and hence the same has 

not been disclosed in such risk factors. Unless otherwise stated, we are not in a position to specify or quantify the financial 

or other risks mentioned herein. For capitalized terms used but not defined in this section, please refer to the section titled 

óDefinitions and Abbreviationsô as described on the beginning of page 6 of this Prospectus 

 

The numbering of the risk factors has been done to facilitate ease of reading and reference and does not in any manner 

indicate the importance of one risk factor over another. 

 

In this Prospectus, discrepancies, if any, between total and the sums of the amount listed are due to rounding off. 

 

 

INTERNAL RISKS FACTORS:  

 

1. A First Information Report ref. No. 0-2/2023 dated September 23, 2023 (ñFIRò) has been filed against our Company 

and our Promoter, Mr. Vishesh Handa at Hyderabad ï Telangana State. Adverse action, if any, taken by prosecution 

authority or any regulatory authorities against our Company or our Promoters from criminal proceeding arising from 

the allegation made in the FIR, may have an adverse effect on the operations and reputation of our Company and could 

have an adverse impact on our ability to conduct our business, our financial condition and our results of operations. 

 

A First Information Report ref. No. 0-2/2023 dated September 23, 2023 (ñFIRò) has been filed against our Company and 

our Promoter, Mr. Vishesh Handa at Hyderabad PS, Central Crime Station before the DCP, CCS, DD, Hyderabad by Mr. 

Shekhar Ranjan, (ñComplainantò) an employee/director of Salori E-Commerce Pvt. Ltd. (ñSaloriò) under section 379, 

406, 420 of the Indian Penal Code (ñIPCò) and under Section 43, 65, 66B, 66C of the Information Technology Act (ñIT 

Actò) inter-alia, alleging breach of trust, theft of software and cheating due to fraudulent and dishonest use of ERP software 

password and other credentials of Salori E-commerce Pvt Ltd. For further details on the FIR, please refer to the section titled 

óOutstanding Litigation and Material Developments ï Criminal Litigation against our Company and our Promoter' starting 

on pages 226 of the RHP. Whilst the Company and our promoters are seeking legal recourse against these allegations in 
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the FIR and will take appropriate course of actions, we cannot assure you that criminal proceedings, as and when initiated, 

will not result in prosecution. Adverse action, if any, taken by prosecution authority or any regulatory authorities against 

our Company or our Promoters from criminal proceeding arising from the allegation made in the FIR, may have an adverse 

effect on the operations and reputation of our Company and could have an adverse impact on our ability to conduct our 

business, our financial condition and our results of operations. 

 

2. Our commercial success is largely dependent upon our ability to successfully anticipate market needs and utilize and 

manage our resources to upgrade and enhance existing products, develop and introduce new products that meet the end 

usersô needs on a timely basis. Any failure to do so, might impact our ability to compete effectively and could make our 

products obsolete, thereby adversely affecting our revenue, reputation, financial conditions, results of operations and 

cash flow 

Our market is characterized by rapid technological change, evolving industry standards, and changing regulations, as well 

as changing customer needs, requirements, and preferences. The success of our business is dependent, in part, on our ability 

to anticipate, adapt, and respond effectively to these changes on a timely and cost-effective basis. The success of any 

enhancement to our existing products or the deployment of new products depends on several factors, including the timely 

completion and market acceptance of our offerings. Any enhancement to our existing offerings or new offerings that we 

develop and introduce involves significant commitment of time and resources and is subject to a number of risks and 

challenges including:  

 

¶ ensuring the timely release and availability of new products  

¶ resolving defects, errors, or failures in our products  

¶ ensure seamless supply chain process to manage logistics and deliveries to end customers 

 

Although there have been no such instances/issues in the past wherein we have failed to anticipate, adapt, and respond 

effectively to the changes in the market needs on a timely and cost-effective basis or failed to successfully manage the risks 

and challenges in relation to new offerings, or where our new products were not competitive, however, in the event if we 

are not successful in managing these risks and challenges, or if our new offerings are not competitive or do not achieve 

market acceptance, our business, financial condition, and results of operations could be adversely affected. 

 

3. We do not have long-term agreements with our suppliers and an inability to procure the desired quality, quantity of our 

IT Supplies in a timely manner and at reasonable costs, or at all, may have a negative impact on our business, results 

of operations, financial. 

 

Our purchases of IT Supplies are concentrated from a few suppliers with our top 10 suppliers contributing 85.69%,           

67.73 % and 95.20% of the total purchases of IT Supplies during the Fiscal 2023, 2022 and 2021 respectively. Our ability 

to remain competitive, maintain costs and profitability depend, in part, on our ability to source and maintain a stable and 

sufficient supply of IT supplies at acceptable prices. The absence of long-term supply contracts subjects us to risks such as 

price volatility caused by various factors. 

 

Further there is a ban on import of used computers and computer peripherals as the Ministry of Commerce has restricted 

the import of used computers including personal computers/ laptops and refurbished/reconditioned spares for use in 

domestic market. As a result, we continue to remain susceptible to the risks arising out of price of IT Supplies, which could 

result in a decline in our operating margins. If we cannot fully offset the increase in prices of IT Supplies with increase in 

the prices for our products, we will experience lower profit margins, which in turn may have a material adverse effect on 

our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. In the absence of such contracts, we are also exposed to the 

risk of unavailability of IT Supplies in desired quantities and qualities, in a timely manner and that can have an adverse 

effect on our business and reputation. 

 

Further, we cannot assure you of our ability to enter into any agreements with our existing suppliers on terms acceptable to 

us, which could have an adverse effect on our ability to source IT Supplies in a commercially viable and timely manner 

which may impact our business and profitability. 

 

In addition, if all or a significant number of our suppliers for any particular IT Supplies are unable or unwilling to meet our 

requirements or if our estimates fall short of the demand, we could suffer shortages or significant cost increases. Continued 

supply disruptions in IT Supplies could exert pressure on our costs, and we cannot assure you that all or part of any increased 

costs can be passed along to our customers in a timely manner or at all, which could negatively affect our business, overall 

profitability and financial performance. 
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4. Failure to manage our inventory and increase in the prices of used computer and laptops and other related products 

(ñInputsò) could raise our cost of refurbished products and could have an adverse effect on our net sales, profitability, 

cash flow and liquidity. 

The results of operations of our business are dependent on our ability to effectively manage our inventory and to estimate 

our sales based on the demand and customer product preferences specifications. To effectively manage our inventory, we 

must be able to accurately estimate customer demand and accordingly manage supply side procurements of IT assets and 

inventory of spares. Our inability to accurately estimate demand and manage our supply chain process could result in 

shortage of products and inability to meet demand or excess inventory which will impacts our business, financial condition 

and results of operations. 

 

Further, if we fail to sell the inventory we purchase, we may be required to write-down our inventory, which could have an 

adverse impact on our financial statements. 

 

If we over-stock inventory, our capital requirements will increase and we will incur additional financing costs. If we under-

stock inventory, our ability to meet customer demand may be adversely affected. Any mismatch in our inventory planning 

could lead to potential excess inventory or out-of-stock situations, either of which could have an adverse effect on our 

business, financial condition and results. 

 

We have no control on the prices of input components such as RAM, Hard-disk etc that are used in the refurbishment 

process. The prices of these items fluctuate due to demand and supply factors. Such fluctuations in prices of Inputs and our 

inability to negotiate at optimum rates may affect our profitability. To remain competitive, we may not be able to pass on 

any increase in cost of such inputs to our clients and may thereby affect our margins and profitability, resulting in a adverse 

effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

 

5. Disruptions in supply -chain logistics can impact our sales and results of operation 

We use third party transportation providers for the delivery of supplies as well as dispatch of products to customers 

including reverse logistics to handle returns from customers. We do not have any long term contract with such third party 

logistics providers for the deliveries and returns from the customers. Apart from Covid19 induced disruption period, we 

have not experienced any significant disruption with third party logistics service providers. However, it's imperative to 

acknowledge the potential impact should these third-party logistics providers encounter operational disruptions, display 

reluctance to fulfill assigned tasks, or become inaccessible to support our operations. Such circumstances have the potential 

to impede our company's ability to adhere to its projections and forecasts. 

 

6. We provide guarantees and warranties on our products. A significant increase in returns and activation of warranty 

provisions by customers may impact our business and results from operations. 

 

As part of our business, we have a policy to provide product guarantees and warranties to our customers. Some of these 

policies are supported by warranty policies of online e-commerce channels we use to sell our products.  

 

Cost of merchandise returns in an e-commerce business is mainly absorbed by the business. This includes cost of delivery, 

freight and risk of fraud returns that may lead to additional cost. In some cases, the returned inventory is not suitable for 

resale which further impacts our overall margins.  

 

Disputes over warranties of our products can arise in the ordinary course of our business. In extreme situations, we may be 

exposed to various liabilities relating to non performance of our products. We may experience material product liability 

losses, and we may be unable to defend these claims at a contained level of cost or at all. The cost of product replacements 

or product returns in the future may be substantial, particularly given our increasing product categories and models, and we 

could incur substantial costs to implement modifications or replace products. As per the Restated Financial Statement, an 

amount of  1.04 Lakh has been provided in FY 2023 towards warranty liabilities  

 

7. Employee fraud or misconduct could harm us by impairing our ability to attract and retain clients and subject us to 

significant legal liability and reputational harm. 

 

Our business is exposed to the risk of employee misappropriation, fraud or misconduct. Our employees could make 

improper use or disclose confidential information, which could result in regulatory sanctions and serious reputational or 

financial harm. While we strive to monitor, detect and prevent fraud or misappropriation by our employees, through various 

internal control measures, we may be unable to adequately prevent or deter such activities in all cases. While we have not 

been able to identify such issues in the past, there could be instances of fraud and misconduct by our employees, which 

may go unnoticed for certain periods of time before corrective action is taken.  

 

In addition, we may be subject to regulatory or other proceedings, penalties or other actions in connection with any, fraud 

or misappropriation by our employees, which could adversely affect our goodwill, business prospects and future financial 

performance. We may also be required to make good any monetary loss to the affected party. Even when we identify 
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instances of fraud and other misconduct and pursue legal recourse or file claims with our insurance carriers, we cannot 

assure you that we will recover any amounts lost through such fraud or other misconduct. 

 

8. Intellectual property rights are important to our business. Failure to get approval for intellectual property rights may 

adversely affect our business. We may be unable to protect them from being infringed by others, including our current 

and / or future competitors/employees which may adversely affect our business value, financial condition and results of 

operations.  

Our Company has applied for registration of our trademarks and corporate logo ñò (Wordmark and Device), with 

the Trademarks Registry, out which the application for registration of ñ ò Device is objected and the application 

for registration of Wordmark is pending for approval as on the date of this Prospectus.  

Our Company has filed its reply to the aforesaid objection. For further details, see ñGovernment and Other Approvalsò on 

page 231 of this this Prospectus. However, there can be no assurance that said application will succeed or we will be 

successful in removal of the said objection. If our Company is unable to obtain registration or if the trademark or corporate 

logo that we use are registered in favour of or used by a third party in India or abroad, we may not be able to claim registered 

ownership of such trademark. We may still continue to use the tradename and the corporate logo but remain vulnerable to 

litigations, infringement and passing-off by third parties and will not be able to enforce any rights against them. We may 

also need to change our corporate logo which may adversely affect our reputation and business and could require us to 

incur additional costs. Further, our efforts to protect our intellectual property may not be adequate and may lead to erosion 

of our business value and our operations could be adversely affected. This may also lead to litigations and any such 

litigations could be time consuming and costly and their outcome cannot be guaranteed. Our Company may not be able to 

detect any unauthorized use or take appropriate and timely steps to enforce or protect our intellectual property, which may 

adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Further, if we do not maintain our brand name 

and identity, which is a principal factor that differentiates us from our competitors, we may not be able to maintain our 

competitive edge in India and abroad. If we are unable to compete successfully, we could lose our customers, which would 

negatively affect our financial performance and profitability.  Moreover, our ability to protect, enforce or utilize our brand 

name is subject to risks, including general litigation risks.  

 

Furthermore, we cannot assure you that such brand name will not be adversely affected in the future by actions that are 

beyond our control, including customer complaints or adverse publicity from any other source in India and abroad. Any 

damage to our brand name, if not immediately and sufficiently remedied, could have an adverse effect on our business and 

competitive position in India and abroad. Further, while we take care to ensure that we comply with the intellectual property 

rights of others, we cannot determine with certainty that we are not infringing any existing third-party intellectual property 

rights and we may also be susceptible to claims from third parties asserting infringement and other related claims in India 

and abroad. For further details pertaining to our intellectual property, see ñOur Businessò on page 121 of this Prospectus. 

 
9. Our Industry is labour intensive and our business operations may be adversely affected by strikes, work stoppages or 

increased wage demands by our employees. 

 

Our industry being labour intensive is dependent on labour force for carrying out its operations. Shortage of 

skilled/unskilled personnel or work stoppages caused by disagreements with employees could have an adverse effect on 

our business and results of operations. Though we have not experienced any major disruptions in our business operations 

due to disputes or other problems with our work force in the past; however, there can be no assurance that we will not 

experience such disruptions in the future. Such disruptions may adversely affect our business and results of operations and 

may also divert the managementôs attention and result in increased costs. India has stringent labour legislation that protects 

the interests of workers, including legislation that sets forth detailed procedures for the establishment of unions, dispute 

resolution and employee removal and legislation that imposes certain financial obligations on employers upon 

retrenchment. We are also subject to laws and regulations governing relationships with employees, in such areas as 

minimum wage and maximum working hours, overtime, working conditions, hiring and terminating of employees and work 

permits. Although our employees are not currently unionized, there can be no assurance that they will not unionize in the 

future. If our employees unionize, it may become difficult for us to maintain, flexible labour policies, and we may face the 

threat of labour unrest, work stoppages and diversion of our managementôs attention due to union intervention, which may 

have a material adverse impact on our business, results of operations and financial condition. 

 

10. Our business is subject to seasonality (as we see higher demand of our products from our customers during the festive 

seasons), which may contribute to fluctuations in our periodical results of operations and financial condition. 

Our business is subject to seasonality as we see higher demand of our products from our customers during the festive 

seasons which generally starts from Dusshrea/Diwali/ Christmas / New Year onwards and higher demand from SME clients 

in month of February and March. Accordingly, our results of operations and financial condition in one quarter/period may 

not accurately reflect the trends for the entire financial year and may not be comparable with our results of operations and 

financial condition for other quarters/periods. Additionally, any significant event such as unforeseen economic slowdown, 

political instabilities or epidemics during these peak seasons may adversely affect our business and results of operations.ò  
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11. Our Company requires significant amount of working capital for a continuing growth. Our inability to meet our working 

capital requirements may adversely affect our results of operations. 

 

Our business requires a significant amount of working capital. We need to fund cost of procurement of used IT inventory 

in advance, the inventory is then passed through the refurbishment process including internal test and controls before it is 

ready for sales and dispatch. As per restated financial statement, our average working capital requirement was  883.97 

Lakhs,  223.51 Lakhs and  48.63 Lakhs during the Fiscal 2023, 2022 and 2021 respectively. In view of the above, we 

propose to utilise a portion of the Net Proceeds of this Offer amounting to  1,545.44 Lakhs towards funding our working 

capital requirements for the Financial Years 2024. While we believe that utilization of Net Proceeds towards funding of 

working capital would enable effective utilization of funds for further investment in business growth and expansion, such 

funding will not result in the creation of any tangible assets for our Company. 

 

Given our growth and expansion strategies could result in an increase in the working capital requirements. If we decide to 

raise additional funds through the incurrence of debt, our interest and debt repayment obligations will increase, and could 

have a significant effect on our profitability and cash flows and we may be subject to additional covenants, which could 

limit our ability to access cash flows from operations. Any issuance of equity, on the other hand, could result in a dilution 

of your shareholding. Accordingly, continued increases in our working capital requirements may have an adverse effect on 

our financial condition and results of operations. 

 

12. We may not be able to scale our business quickly enough to meet our customersô growing needs and if we are not able 

to grow efficiently, our operating results could be harmed.  

 

Since our incorporation, we have experienced significant growth in our operations, which has placed a strain on our 

management, administrative, operational and financial infrastructure. We anticipate that additional investments in our 

infrastructure spending will be required to scale our operations and increase productivity, to address the needs of our 

customers, to further develop and enhance our products. 

 

Our success will depend in part upon the ability of our senior management to manage our projected growth effectively. To 

do so, we must continue to increase the productivity of our existing employees and to hire, train and manage new employees 

as needed. To manage the expected growth of our operations and personnel, we will need to continue to improve our 

operational, financial and management controls and our reporting systems and procedures. The additional investments we 

are making will increase our cost base, which will make it more difficult for us to offset any future revenue shortfalls by 

reducing expenses in the short term. While we have not experienced any shortcomings in the past in successfully scaling 

our operations and increasing productivity, however if we fail to achieve the same in the future, we will be unable to execute 

our business plan, which could materially adversely affect our business prospects and results of operations. 

 

13. Our expansion into new product categories and an increase in the number of products offered by us may expose us to 

new challenges and more risks. 

 

In order to achieve our goals, we are constantly evaluating the possibilities of expanding our business through newer models 

of existing products or introducing newer product categories aligned with our current expertise. Although we believe that 

there are synergies between our current business and our expansion plans, we may not have the depth of expertise in these 

new product categories. Such initiatives may pose significant challenges to our administrative, financial and operational 

resources, and additional risks, including some of which we are not aware of. Our product expansion initiatives may require 

capital and other resources, as well as management attention, which could place a burden on our resources and abilities. If 

we cannot successfully manage our product mix, address new challenges or compete effectively, we may not be able to 

recover costs of our investments and eventually achieve profitability, and our future results of operations and growth 

prospects may be materially and adversely affected. 

 

14. If our products fail to perform properly due to defects, or similar problems, and if we fail to develop enhancements to 

resolve any defect or other problems, we could lose customers, become subject to negative publicity which could affect 

our business and operations. 

All our products are subject to rigorous testing and quality checks before these are dispatched to customers. Our returns 

rate was 14.91%, 18.06% and 11.99% during the Fiscal 2023, 2022 and 2021 respectively. While our internal quality testing 

process are set up to minimise / reduce defects and other issues, we may not be able to identify and remediate any/all 

product related issues before these are sold to customers.  

 

Any defects or other performance issues in our products could result in, among other things:  

 

¶ lost revenue or delayed market acceptance in relation to our products;  

¶ early termination of customer agreements or loss of customers;  

¶ credits or refunds to customers;  
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¶ product liability lawsuits and other claims against us;  

¶ diversion of development resources;  

¶ increased expenses associated with remedying any defect, including increased technical support costs; 

¶ injury to our brand and reputation; and  

¶ increased maintenance and warranty costs.  

 

We list our products on various e-commerce websites and our customers are increasingly using such platforms to provide 

feedback and information about products, in a manner which leads to such feedback being disseminated quickly and 

broadly.  Our brands could be damaged by any negative publicity on social media platforms or by claims or perceptions 

about the quality or safety of the products sold, regardless of whether such claims or perceptions are true. Any negative 

publicity regarding our company or the products may affect our reputation and image which leads to the adverse effect on 

our business and our goodwill.   

 

The combination of our insurance coverage, cash flows and reserves may not be adequate to satisfy product liabilities we 

may incur in the future. While there has been no significant performance or warranty claims against our Company for 

failure of performance or defect of our product, any future meritless claims could subject us to adverse publicity, hinder us 

from securing insurance coverage in the future, require us to incur significant legal fees, decrease demand for our products, 

divert managementôs attention, and force us to limit or forgo further development and commercialisation of these products, 

thereby impacting our business, financial condition, and results of operations. 

 

15. Our company generates e-waste during the process of refurbishment of used IT products. Major for which our company 

has not been able to have sustainable, efficient and effective arrangement for disposal of e-waste. 

 

E-waste can be toxic, is not biodegradable and accumulates in the environment, in the soil, air, water and among living 

things. Electronic waste contain substantial quantities of toxic elements like lithium, mercury, arsenic, barium, cadmium, 

cobalt, etc. These chemicals cause detrimental impacts on the environment and human health calling for urgent responsible 

e-waste management. India has very few recognised and government-approved recycling centres to dismantle and 

repurpose electronic waste efficiently and purposefully. The majority of the e-waste collected in India is managed by 

unorganized sector. Our company works with a government registered e-waste company for disposal of its e-waste. 

However, we cannot assure you that our vendor would necessarily comply with all e-waste handling rules and government 

guidelines which indirectly could make our company susceptible and liable for adherence to any such environmental 

regulations and further could lead to additional cost and an impact on our business, overall profitability and financial 

performance 

 

16. Our inability to receive or renew the necessary licenses, approvals and registrations in a timely manner or at all may 

lead to interruption of our Companyôs operations. 

 

Our business is subject to government regulations and we require certain approvals, licenses, registrations and permissions 

for operating our business. In addition, we may not be in compliance with certain conditions prescribed by such approvals 

or licences. Our failure to obtain such licences and approvals and comply with the applicable laws and regulations could 

lead to imposition of sanctions by the relevant authorities, including penalties. We believe that our units have the required 

permits and agreements, and that they also meet the required reporting and control requirements. For further details, see 

ñGovernment and Other Approvalsò on page 231. 

 

Further, in future we will be required to apply for the renewal of approvals and permits for our business operations to 

continue. If we are unable to make applications and renew or obtain necessary permits, licenses and approvals on acceptable 

terms, in a timely manner or at all, we may be required to shut down or relocate our offices or warehouses and face other 

consequences due to which our business operations may be adversely affected. Changes in legislation and current 

regulations entailing stricter requirements and changes in conditions in terms of health, safety and environment or progress 

towards a stricter official application of legislation and regulations may require additional investment and lead to higher 

costs and other undertakings which may impact our business and operations. 

 

17. Industry information included in this Prospectus has been derived from third party industry reports. 

 

We have relied on the reports of certain independent third party for purposes of inclusion of such information in this 

Prospectus. There can be no assurance that such third-party statistical, financial and other industry information is either 

complete or accurate. These reports are subject to various limitations and based upon certain assumptions that are subjective 

in nature. We have not independently verified data from such industry reports and other sources. Although we believe that 

the data may be considered to be reliable, their accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and 

their dependability cannot be assured. While we have taken reasonable care in the reproduction of the information, the 

information has not been prepared or independently verified by us, or any of our respective affiliates or advisors and, 

therefore, we make no representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of such facts and 

statistics. Due to possibly flawed or ineffective collection methods or discrepancies between published information and 

market practice and other problems, the statistics herein may be inaccurate or may not be comparable to statistics produced 
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for other economies and should not be unduly relied upon. Further, there is no assurance that they are stated or compiled 

on the same basis or with the same degree of accuracy as may be the case elsewhere.  

 

18. The market for our refurbished products is relatively new and evolving. If the market does not develop further, develops 

more slowly, or in a way  that we  do not expect,  our business will be adversely affected 

 

The market size of new PC shipment currently stands at 12.4 MM units for fiscal year 2023 (as per report in MINT dated 

April 16 2023) vis- a - vis the refurbished IT equipment market which is at 2.9 MM units (source ñFuture Market Reportò) 

and therefore aggregates to approx. 20% of the overall market size. The market is currently growing at a CAGR of 6.3% 

(source ñFuture Market Reportò) and is largely serviced by un-organised sector. As highlighted in the section titled ñOur 

Industryò on Page 108 the key factors driving demand for refurbished products include product pricing, quality, remote 

work, online learning and penetration of e-commerce sales channels and we expect that these factors will continue to 

influence the demand and growth for refurbished IT equipment. However given that the supply side is dominated by un-

organised players, the segment runs the risk of negative publicity and loss of consumer confidence if product quality, 

durability and other performance factors are not maintained improved which could have the impact on overall sales of such 

refurbished IT products, reduce the overall market size and impact our business and financials.     

 

19. We are dependent on our Promoters and Directors for the execution of our business strategy. We are also dependent on 

a number of Key Managerial Personnel and our senior management, and the loss of, or our inability to attract or retain 

such persons could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. 

 

We are highly dependent on the continued contributions and customer relationships of our Promoters and Directors.  Our 

promoters Mr. Vishesh Handa and Mr. Mukunda Raghavendra are responsible for the execution of our business strategy 

and have been actively involved in the dayïto-day operations and management since the incorporation of the Company. If 

our Promoter and Directors are unable or unwilling to continue in their present position, we may not be able to replace them 

easily or at all. The loss of their services could impair our ability to implement our strategy, and our business, financial 

condition, results of operations and prospects may be materially and adversely affected. 

 

Our performance also depends largely on the efforts, expertise and abilities of our Key Managerial Personnel, senior 

management, and our operational personnel who possess significant experience in the industry in which we operate. Our 

Key Management Personnel, Company Secretary is associated with the Company for a period of less than one year therefore 

they may not have been accustomed to the company affairs till date. We believe that the inputs and experience of our KMP 

and senior management, in particular, and other key personnel are valuable for the development of our business, operations 

and the strategic directions taken by our Company. We cannot assure you that these individuals or any other member of 

our senior management team will not leave us or join a competitor or that we will be able to retain such personnel or find 

adequate replacements in a timely manner, or at all. We may require a long period of time to hire and train replacement 

personnel when qualified personnel terminate their employment with our Company. Moreover, we may be required to 

substantially increase the number of our qualified personnel in connection with any future growth plans, and we may face 

difficulty in doing so due to the intense competition in the technology industry for such personnel. We may also be required 

to increase our levels of employee compensation more rapidly than in the past in order to remain competitive in retaining 

our workforce. 

 

20. We have not made any alternate arrangements for meeting our capital requirements for the Objects of the Issue. Further 

we have not identified any alternate source of financing the Objects of the Issue. Any shortfall in raising / meeting the 

same could adversely affect our growth plans, business operations and financial condition 

 

As on date of this Prospectus, we have not made any alternate arrangements for meeting our capital requirements for some 

of the objects of the Issue. We meet our capital requirements through, owned funds and internal accruals. Any shortfall in 

our net owned funds, internal accruals and our inability to raise debt in future would result in us being unable to meet our 

capital requirements, which in turn will negatively affect our financial condition and results of operations. Further we have 

not identified any alternate source of funding and hence any failure or delay on our part to raise money from this Issue or 

any shortfall in the Issue proceeds may delay the implementation schedule and could adversely affect our growth plans. For 

further details, please refer to the section titled ñObjects of the Issueò beginning on page 85  of this Prospectus. 

 

21. Our Company proposes to utilize part of the  Net  Proceeds  for  repayment  or  pre-payment,  in  full  or  in part,  of  all  

or  certain  borrowings  availed  by  our  Company  from  various banks and financial institutions and accordingly, the 

utilization of that portion of the Net Proceeds will not result in creation of any tangible assets. 

 

Our Company intends to utilise a part of the Net Proceeds for repayment or pre-payment, in full or in part, of all or certain 

borrowings availed by our Company from various banks and financial institutions. The loans were availed from various 

banks and financial institutions aggregating to  1,150 Lakhs to meet working capital requirement. 
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The details of the loans identified to be repaid or prepaid using the Net Proceeds and the purpose for which the said loans 

have been utilized have been disclosed in the section titled ñObjects of the Issue - Repayment or pre-payment, in full or in 

part, of all or certain borrowings availed by our Companyò on page 85 of this Prospectus. While we believe that utilization 

of Net Proceeds for repayment of secured loans would help us to reduce our cost of debt and enable the utilization of our 

funds for further investment in business growth and expansion, the pre-payment of loans will not result in the creation of 

any tangible assets for our Company. 

 

22. We do not own our registered office and the premises where we conduct our operations and the said premises have been 

taken on leave and licence or lease. Any termination of these agreements may require us to vacate such premises and 

adversely affect our business operations: 

 

We currently operate from our registered office, located at 207/B2, 2nd Cross Road, J.C, Industrial Estate Bikasipura Main 

Road, Off Kanakpura Road, Near Delhi Public School Bangalore, 560078, Karnataka, India and the same is not owned by 

us. We have taken the said premises on leave and licence basis from Mr. Jai Singh Jain and the same is valid until August 

31, 2024.  

 

We are expanding our refurbishment facility at a premises located at Land Survey No.38/1B, 39/1, 39/2 and 39/3 of Arekere 

Village, Begur Hobli, Bangalore South Taluk, Bangalore- 560 076 and the said premises is not owned by us. We have 

obtained this property on lease basis from Licensor 1. Mr. Vishal Bansilal Asrani, 2. Mrs. Sharmila S Parwani, 3. Mrs. 

Sapna P Punjabi, 4. Mrs. Sheetal B Asrani, and 5. M/s. VB Asrani Energy Ventures, Partnership firm through Lease Deed 

dated March 31, 2023 for a period of 5 years i.e. from March 31, 2023 to March 31, 2028. In addition, our principal place 

of business and additional place of business (as per GST Certificate) are located in Karnataka, Telangana, Maharashtra and 

Haryana. We have obtained these properties based on no objection certificate from the owners and/or and leave and licence 

arrangements. Periodic renewals of such lease may increase our costs, since it is subject to rent escalation. Any termination 

of the lease and/or rental deed in connection with this property or our failure to renew the same, and upon favourable 

conditions, in a timely manner or at all could adversely affect our operations.   

 

If any such lease agreement under which we occupy the premises is not renewed on terms and conditions that are favourable 

to us, or at all, we may suffer a disruption in our operation which could have a material adverse effect on our business, 

financial condition and results of operations. If we do not comply with certain conditions of the lease, the lessor may 

terminate the lease, which could have an adverse effect on our operations and there can be no assurance that renewal of 

lease agreement with the owner will be entered into. In the event of non-renewal of lease, we may be required to shift our 

office to a new location and there can be no assurance that the arrangement we enter into in respect of new premises would 

be on such terms and conditions as the present one. For more details on properties taken on lease by our Company, please 

refer section titled ñOur Businessò beginning on page 121 of the Red Herring Prospectus 
 

23. There are certain discrepancies/errors noticed in some of our corporate records relating to forms filed with the Registrar 

of Companies and other provisions of Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Our company has missed on compliance with certain statutory provisions in the past including but not limited to the details 

as mentioned in this risk factor. There are few discrepancies noticed in some of our corporate records relating to adhering 

with the provisions of SS-1 and SS-2 of the Companies Act, 2013, however upon identifying such non-compliance, the 

company has rectified and started complying with the provisions of SS-1 and SS-2 of companies act 2013. Our Company 

has inadvertently missed out on the following compliance in the past: 

 

Form Discrepancy Rectification 

MGT-14 Inadequate documents attached to the Form The non-compliance being not 

material, no rectification steps were 

required. 

PAS-3 Inadequate documents attached to the Form The non-compliance being not 

material, no rectification steps were 

required. 

AOC-4 Authorized Capital written as  1,00,000 instead of  

35,00,000 

Rectified in subsequent filings 

 

Any penalty or action taken by any regulatory authority in future for non- compliance with provisions of corporate and 

other law could impact financial position of the company to that extent. 

 

24. We have had certain inaccuracy in relation to regulatory filings and our company has made non-compliances of certain 

provision under applicable law. 

 

In the past, company has made clerical mistakes in form filed with RoC. Further we have frequently delayed in filing of 

GST Returns and depositing the EPF with the concerned offices of the departments on several instances on account of 
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technical, operational, and personnel challenges.  We have accordingly been subjected to penalty and interest for delayed 

deposit of tax the details of which are as follows: 

 

GST 

Financial Year Locations Number of 

Times of 

Delay 

Range of Delay (in 

Days) 

Interest, Penalty & Late 

fees 

2023-2024 

Karnataka 3 19 to 52 Not yet charged 

Haryana 2 1 71 

Telangna 2 1 70 

Maharashtra 2 1 40 

2022- 2023 

Karnataka 3 6 to 25 9610 

Haryana 4 1 to 29 3344 

Telangna 4 1 to 29 4240 

Maharashtra 4 1 to 29 3843 

2021-2022 

Karnataka 4 1 to 33 2413 

Haryana 3 3 to 40 112 

Telangna 3 3 to 40 101 

Maharashtra 3 3 to 33 171 

2020-2021 Karnataka 3 21 to 47  3577 

 

EPF 

 

Financial Year Number of Times of 

Delay 

Range of Delay (in 

Days) 

Interest Penalty 

2022 ï 2023 7 2 to 94 6532 4860 

 

The company has successfully settled the interest and penalty dues, fulfilling all necessary requirements under the prevailing 

GST Acts and EPF Acts up to July 2023. While no- show cause notice has been issued against our Company till date, in 

the event of any cognizance being taken by the concerned authorities in respect of above errors and delays in filings, actions 

may be taken against our Company and its directors, which could impact our business and financial performance. 

 

25. Our Independent Directors were director of companies which has been struck off from the register of companies 

maintained by the RoC. 

 

Our Independent Directors were director of following companies which have been compulsorily struck off from the register 

of companies maintained by the relevant RoC pursuant to Section 248(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

  

Sr. No. Name of Independent Director & DIN Name of the Strike-off Companies  

1.  Mr. Purav Dineshchandra Shah 

DIN: 05126728 
¶ Infinio Techsol (India) Private Limited 

¶ Infinion Consulting Private Limited 

2.  Mr. Gaurav Jindal 

DIN: 06892227 
¶ Trring Media Private Limited 

 

In the event of any action being taken against these companies or the directors of these Companies our Independent 

Directors may be held liable under the relevant provisions of the applicable law. Although, no notice has been received by 

our Independent Directors for the above, but there cannot be any assurance that the regulatory authority will not take any 

penal action against those companies or our Independent Directors. In case any such action is taken it may have an adverse 

effect on our Independent Directors and may affect the reputation of our Company. 

 

26. If we are unable to continue to innovate or if we fail to adapt to changes in our industry, our business, financial 

condition, cash flows and results of operations would be adversely affected. 

 

Our future success will depend on our ability to adapt and innovate. To attract new customers we will need to enhance and 

improve our existing products and introduce new products, features and functionality based on continuing changes in 

technology, industry standards and client preferences. Enhancements and new products that we develop may not be 

introduced in a timely or cost-effective manner, may contain errors or defects and may have interoperability difficulties 

with our platform or other products. If we are unable to respond in a timely, user-friendly and cost-effective manner to 

these rapid technological developments, or successfully adopt such advancements and deploy it profitably, our products 

may become less marketable and less competitive or obsolete, and our business, results of operations and financial condition 

may be adversely affected.  
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27. Certain agreements may be inadequately stamped or may not have been registered as a result of which our operations 

may be impaired. 

 

Certain leave and license agreement(s) /rent agreement(s) entered into by us in the past may not have been adequately 

stamped and registered, however, the term of the said agreement(s) have expired and are no longer valid. The effect of 

inadequate stamping is that the document is not admissible as evidence in legal proceedings and parties to that agreement 

may not be able to legally enforce the same, except after paying a penalty for inadequate stamping. Any potential dispute 

vis-à-vis our noncompliance of local laws relating to stamp duty and registration may adversely impact our business, results 

of operations and financial condition. We shall initiate the process of payment of stamp duty and/or adjudication, as may 

be required in respect of any such agreement(s). 

 

28. Any deficiency in our products could make our Company liable for customer claims, which in turn could affect our 

Company's results of operations. 

 

Our Company is bound by the terms and conditions as placed before its customers. There are no specific regulations 

governing the supply of the same, other than the general law of contracts. Any claims made by customers for deficiency in 

our products, would be subject to these terms and conditions, which are in the nature of normal contractual obligations in 

India. Any violation of these obligations could impact our Companyôs results of operations.  

 

29. Our industry  is  competitive  and  we  face  significant  competition  from  both  established  and  un-organised companies  

offering refurbished products,  which  may have  a  negative  effect  on  our  ability  to  add  new  customers,  retain  

existing  customers  and  grow  our business. Our inability to compete  effectively  will  adversely  affect  our  business,  

results  of  operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

 

Our company faces competition from organised as well as un-organised players in the IT refurbishment market. We 

compete on the basis of a number of factors, including execution, depth of product and service offerings, innovation, 

reputation and price. Our competitors may have advantages over us, including, but not limited to:  

¶ Substantially greater financial resources;  

¶ Longer operating history than in certain of our businesses;  

¶ Greater brand recognition among consumers;  

¶ Larger customer bases in and outside India; or  

¶ More diversified operations which allow profits from certain operations to support others with lower profitability.  

 

These competitive pressures may affect our business, and our growth will largely depend on our ability to respond in an 

effective and timely manner to these competitive pressures. 

 
30. We may not be able to successfully manage the growth of our business if we are unable to maintain adequate internal 

systems, processes and controls 

 

We have experienced considerable growth over the past three years and we have expanded our operations and product 

portfolio. Our total revenue grew at a CAGR of 66.67% between Fiscals 2021 and 2023, while our restated profit after tax 

grew at a CAGR of 109.60% between Fiscals 2021 and 2023.  

 

We cannot assure you that our growth strategies will continue to be successful or that we will be able to continue to expand 

further, or at the same rate.  

 

Our inability to execute our growth strategies in a timely manner or within budget estimates or our inability to meet the 

expectations of our customers and other stakeholders, could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations 

and financial condition. Our future prospects will depend on our ability to grow our business and operations. Further, in 

order to manage our growth effectively, we must implement, upgrade and improve our operational systems, procedures and 

internal controls on a timely basis. While there have been no such intances in the past, however, if we fail to implement 

these systems, procedures and controls on a timely basis, or if there are weaknesses in our internal controls that would result 

in inconsistent internal standard operating procedures, we may not be able to meet our customersô needs, hire and retain 

new employees or operate our business effectively. Failure to manage growth effectively could adversely affect our business 

and results of operations. 

 

31. Brand recognition is important to the success of our business, and our inability to build and maintain our brand names 

will harm our business, financial condition and results of operation 

 

Brand recognition is important to the success of our business. Establishing and maintaining our brand name in the industry 

or for people relying on products is critical to the success of our customer acquisition strategy and for the continued growth 

of our business. Although, we expect to allocate significant number of resources, financial and otherwise, on establishing 

and maintaining our brands, no assurance can be given that our brand names will be effective in attracting and growing our 
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user and client base or that such efforts will be cost-effective, which may negatively affect our business, financial condition 

and results of operations. 

 

32. About 45% of our sales come from the states of Tamil Nadu (26%) and Karnataka (19%). Due to this geographic 

concentration of our sales, our results of operations and growth might be impacted if there are adverse economic and 

demographic conditions in these states. 

About 45% of our sales come from the states of Tamil Nadu (26%) and Karnataka (19%). Though, our products are sold 

through the online channels including third party e-commerce websites and our own website, the delivery of products is 

not restricted to a particular geography in India. The states of Tamil Nadu and Karnataka account for about (45%) of our 

total deliveries. In the event of a natural calamity, economic slowdown, logistical challenges or any disruption in these 

states we may experience adverse impact on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows than if it were 

further diversified across different geographical locations. 

 

33. Our business depends on sale of our products through third party online e-commerce platforms 

 

Although we have our own website viz., www.newjaisa.com, we are reliant on e-commerce online platforms for the sale 

of our products. For the Fiscal 2023, 2022 and 2021 our online sales from e-commerce platforms constituted 96.44%, 

95.08% and 82.05% of our revenue from operations respectively. Factors that might prevent potential consumers from 

purchasing products from e-commerce platforms, including our website, include: - concerns about buying products online 

without a physical storefront, face-to-face interaction with sales personnel and the ability to physically handle and examine 

products; - concerns about delayed shipments or the inconvenience and cost of returning or exchanging items purchased 

online; - concerns about the security of online transactions and the privacy of personal information; and Å usability, 

functionality and features of online platforms. Any disruption in telecommunication infrastructure in India or Failure or 

disruption of our Information Technology systems may impact the e-commerce websites and thus impacting our business. 

Our business and our results of operations, financial condition, cash flows and prospects could be adversely affected if any 

of the third party e-commerce platform decide to unfavourably revise the terms of business including any fee charged by 

them for sale of our products, inventory level, delivery conditions, returns mechanism, etc. 

 

34. Our Promoters  and  members  of  the  Promoter  Group  have  significant  control  over  the  Company  and have  the  

ability  to  direct  our  business  and  affairs;  their  interests  may  conflict  with  your  interests  as  a shareholder. 

 

Upon completion of the Issue, our Promoter and Promoter Group will own 69.35 % of the Post-Issue Equity Share capital 

of the Company. As a result, the Promoter and Promoter Group will have the ability to exercise significant influence over 

all matters requiring shareholdersô approval, including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate 

transactions. The Promoter and Promoter Group will also have an effective veto power with respect to any shareholder 

action or approval requiring a majority vote. Such concentration of ownership may also have the effect of delaying, 

preventing or deterring a change in control. For further details of Promoterô shareholding, please refer section titled ñCapital 

Structureò beginning on Page 70 of Red Herring Prospectus. 

 

35. Our Company has not insured for specific risks associated with the business. Our inability to maintain adequate 

insurance cover in connection with our business may adversely affect our operations and profitability. 

 

Except for standard fire and special perils for furniture and electronics and burglary & house break, the Company has not 

insured for any other risks related to running the business. Such risks include the following but not limited to: 

 

¶ Professional Liability/ Error and Omissions; 

¶ General Liability; 

¶ Workersô Compensation; and  

¶ Commercial Property 

 

Although our Company has not experienced any such risk affecting the business and company at large, we cannot assure 

you that, we will not experience any such event in the future. We cannot assure you that our Company will be able to 

mitigate the loss or protect the business or its employees in case of any unfortunate event. Our business can be affected due 

to unexpected events, which could cause us to suffer various damages and losses, ultimately affecting our business and 

results of operations. 
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36. Our Promoters/Directors/Promoter Group have given personal guarantees and properties in relation to certain debt 

facilities provided to our Company by our lender. In event of default of the debt obligations, the personal guarantees 

may be invoked thereby adversely affecting our Promoterôs ability to manage the affairs of our Company and our 

Companyôs profitability and consequently this may impact our business, prospects, financial condition and results of 

operations 

 

Some of the debt facilities provided to our Company by our lenders stipulate that the facility shall be secured by a personal 

guarantee and properties of our Promoters/ Directors/ Promoter Group. In event of default on the debt obligations, the 

personal guarantees and properties may be invoked thereby adversely affecting our Promoters/ Directors/ Promoter Group 

ability to manage the affairs of our Company and consequently this may impact our business, prospects, financial condition 

and results of operations.  

 

Further, in an event our Promoters/ Directors/ Promoter Group withdraws or terminates his/their guarantee/s or security, 

the lender for such facilities may ask for alternate guarantee/s or securities or for repayment of amounts outstanding under 

such facilities or even terminate such facilities. We may not be successful in procuring guarantee/s or collateral securities 

satisfactory to the lender and as a result may need to repay outstanding amounts under such facilities or seek additional 

sources of capital, which could adversely affect our financial condition. For more information, please see the section titled 

ñFinancial Informationò beginning on page 175 of Red Herring Prospectus. 

 

37. The unsecured loan availed by our Company from Directors and related party may be recalled at any given point of time 

 

Our Company has been availing unsecured loans from Directors and related party from time to time. The total outstanding 

payable to them as on March 31, 2023 amounts to  19.56 Lakh as per Restated Financials Statement. Although there are 

no terms and condition prescribed for repayment of unsecured loan from our Director and Promoter and related parties 

which can be recalled at any given point of time during ordinary course of business and thus may affect the business 

operations and financial performance of our Company. For further details regarding loans availed by our Company, please 

refer section titiled ñFinancial Informationò on page 175 of this Prospectus. 

 

38. Our ability to pay dividends in the future may be affected by any material adverse effect on our future earnings, financial 

condition or cash flows. 

 

Our ability to pay dividends in future will depend on our earnings, financial condition and capital requirements. Our 

business is working capital intensive and we are required to obtain consents from certain of our lenders prior to the 

declaration of dividend as per the terms of the agreements executed with them. We may be unable to pay dividends in the 

near or medium term, and our future dividend policy will depend on our capital requirements and financing arrangements 

in respect of our operations, financial condition and results of operations. Our Company has not declared dividends in the 

past and there can be no assurance that our Company will declare dividends in the future. For further details, please refer 

to the section titled ñFinancial Indebtednessò and the section titled ñDividend Policyò on pages and 174 respectively, of 

this Prospectus. 

 

39. The agreements executed by our Company with lenders for financial arrangements contain restrictive  covenants  for  

certain  activities  and  if  we   are  unable  to  get  their approval, it might restrict our scope of activities and impede our 

growth plans 

 

We have entered into agreements for our borrowings with certain lenders. These borrowings include secured fund based 

and non-fund based facilities. These agreements include restrictive covenants which mandate certain restrictions in terms 

of our business operations such as change in capital structure, formulation of any scheme of amalgamation or reconstruction, 

declaring dividends, further expansion of business, granting loans to directors, repaying loans, undertake guarantee 

obligations on behalf of any other borrower, which require our Company to obtain prior approval of the lenders for any of 

the above activities. We cannot assure you that our lenders will provide us with these approvals in the future. For details of 

these restrictive covenants, please refer to section titled ˈ ñFinancial Indebtednessò on 224  of this Prospectus. 

 

40. There are outstanding legal proceedings involving our Company, Promoters and Directors. Any adverse decision in 

such proceeding may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. 

 

We are involved in certain legal proceedings which are pending at different levels of adjudication before various courts, 

tribunals, enquiry officers, and appellate authorities. We cannot provide assurance that these legal proceedings will be 

decided in our favour. Any adverse decisions in any of the proceedings may have a significant adverse effect on our 

business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. The contingent liability in respect of the tax litigation 

against the our Company have been disclosed in the section titled ñRestated Financial Statementsò ï ñDetails of Contingent 

Liabilities & Commitments as Restatedò on 175 of this Prospectus.  
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A summary of the pending civil and other proceedings involving our Company is provided below: 

 

Nature of Proceedings Number of cases Amount involved  

( . in lakhs) 

Against the Company 
  

Direct Tax (Income Tax) 1 13.35 

Indirect Tax Nil Nil 

Filed by the Company 
  

Direct Tax (Income Tax) Nil Nil 

Indirect Tax Nil Nil 

Total 1 13.35 

Against the Promoters and Directors     

Mr. Vishesh Handa   

Direct Tax (Income Tax) 1 19.79 

Indirect Tax Nil Nil 

Total 1 19.79 

 

A summary of the pending criminal and other proceedings involving our Director and our Promoter of our Company is 

provided below: 

 

I.  Litigation involving our Company  

 

A. Litigation against our Company 

Sr. No. Litigation Involving  No. of Proceedings 

a)  Criminal Proceedings 1 

b)  Civil Proceedings Nil  

c)  Actions by Statutory/ Regulatory Authorities1  Nil  

d)  Other Pending Litigations based on Materiality Policy Nil  

e)  Wilful Defaulter: 

Our Company does not appear on the Wilful Defaultersô list as per the Reserve Bank of India circular 

on Wilful Defaultersô. 

 

II.  Litigation involving Director/s of our Company 

 

A. Litigation against Director/s of our Company 

Sr. No. Litigation Involving  No. of Proceedings 

a)  Criminal Proceedings 1 

b)  Civil Proceedings Nil  

c)  Actions by Statutory/ Regulatory Authorities  Nil  

d)  Other Pending Litigations based on Materiality Policy Nil  

e)  Wilful Defaulter: 

None of our Directors appear on the Wilful Defaultersô list as per the Reserve Bank of India circular on 

Wilful Defaultersô. 

 

III.  Litigation involving our Promoter/s  

 

A. Litigation against our Promoter/s 

Sr. No. Litigation Involving  No. of Proceedings 

a)  Criminal Proceedings 1 

b)  Civil Proceedings Nil  

c)  Actions by Statutory/ Regulatory Authorities  Nil  

d)  Other Pending Litigations based on Materiality Policy Nil  

e)  Wilful Defaulter: 

None of our Directors appear on the Wilful Defaultersô list as per the Reserve Bank of India circular 

on Wilful Defaultersô. 

 

For further details, see the section titled ñOutstanding Litigations And Material Developmentsò on beginning on page 226 

of this Prospectus. 
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41. We have issued equity shares (excluding Bonus issue) during the last 12 months at a price which may be below the Offer 

Price 

 

We have issued certain Equity shares (excluding Bonus issue) in the last 12 months at a price which may be lower than the 

Offer Price. Details of such issuances are given in the table below: 

 

 

Date of 

Allotment 

Number of Equity 

Shares 

Face Value (in ) Offer Price (in 

) 

Name of Investor 

June 5, 2023 44,112 5* 1133.50* Negen Tech Opportunities Angel 

Fund 

*The face value of the Equity Shares of the Company was reduced from Rs. 10/- per share to Rs. 5/- per share vide 

Shareholders resolution dated July 06, 2023. Further, post the allotment of shares to the above investor, the Company has 

issued bonus shares in the ratio of thirty Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each for every one Equity Share held. Accordingly, the 

effective issue price of Equity Shares allotted to Negen Tech Opportunities Angel Fund will be Rs. 36.56/-. 

 

42. Our Company has a negative cash flow in its operating activities in previous three financial years details of which are 

given below. 

 

Cash flow of a company is a key indicator to show the extent of cash generated from operations to meet capital expenditure, 

pay dividends, repay loans, and make new investments without raising finance from external resources. Our Company had 

negative cash flows from our operating activities as per the Restated Financial Statements and the same are summarized as 

under: 

 

Particulars March 31, 

2023 

March 31, 

2022 

March 31, 

2021 

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating 

activities  

-409.89 -143.31 -3.86 

Net cash (used in) investing activities  -19.2 -6.20 -21.53 

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing 

activities  

561.89 19.18 163.64 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 

equivalents  

132.8 -130.34 138.25 

 

For further details on our cash flows, see the section titled ñManagementôs Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 

and Result of Operationò on beginning on page 216 of this Prospectus. If we are not able to generate sufficient cash flows 

in future, it may adversely affect our business and financial operations. 

 

43. Information relating to our capacities and the historical capacity utilization of our facilities included in this Prospectus 

is based on various assumptions and estimates and capacity utilization may vary. 

Information relating to our capacities and the historical capacity utilization of our facilities included in this Prospectus is 

based on various assumptions and estimates of our management, including proposed operations, assumptions relating to 

availability and quality of supplies and assumptions relating to potential utilization levels and operational efficiencies. 

Actual utilization rates may differ significantly from the estimated capacities or historical estimated capacity utilization 

information of our facilities. Undue reliance should therefore not be placed on our capacity or historical estimated capacity 

utilization information for our existing facilities included in this Prospectus. 

 

We cannot assure that we shall be able to utilize our facility to their full capacity or up to an optimum capacity, and non-

utilization of the same may lead to loss of profits or can result in losses, and may adversely affect our business, results of 

operations and financial condition.  

 
44. The deployment of funds raised through this Issue shall not be subject to any Monitoring Agency  

 

Since, the Issue size is less than 10,000 Lakhs, there is no mandatory requirement of appointing an Independent Monitoring 

Agency for overseeing the deployment of utilization of funds raised through this Issue. The funds raised from this Issue, 

will be deployed as defined in the Objects. For further details, please refer to the section titled ñObjects of the Issueò 

beginning on page 85 of this Prospectus. The fund requirement and deployment mentioned in the Objects of the Issue is 

based on internal management estimates and have not been appraised by any bank or financial institution. Any inability on 

our part to effectively utilize the Issue proceeds could adversely affect our financials. However, our Audit Committee will 

monitor the utilization of the proceeds of this Issue and prepare the statement for utilization of the proceeds of this Issue. 

Also, in accordance with Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company shall not vary the objects of the Issue without 

the Company being authorized to do so by our shareholders by way of special resolution and other compliances as applicable 
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in this regard. Our Promoters and controlling shareholders shall provide exit opportunity to such shareholders who do not 

agree to the proposal to vary the objects, at such price, and in such manner, as may be prescribed by SEBI in this regard. 

 

45. We may need to seek additional financing in the future to support our growth strategies. Any failure  to raise additional 

financing could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows 

 

Our strategy to grow our business may require us to raise additional funds for our working capital or long-term business 

plans. While we have historically funded our capital expenditure primarily through internal accruals, bank credit facilities 

and cash flow from operations, we cannot assure you that we will have sufficient capital resources for our current operations 

or any future expansion plans that we may have. If our internally generated capital resources and available credit facilities 

are insufficient to finance our capital expenditure and growth plans, we may, in the future, have to seek additional financing 

from third parties, including banks, venture capital funds, joint-venture partners and other strategic investors. Our ability 

to arrange financing and the costs of capital of such financing are dependent on numerous factors, including general 

economic and capital market conditions, credit availability from banks, investor confidence, the continued success of our 

operations and other laws that are conducive to our raising capital in this manner. If we decide to meet our capital 

requirements through debt financing, we may be subject to certain restrictive covenants. Our financing agreements may 

contain terms and conditions that may restrict our ability to operate and manage our business, such as terms and conditions 

that require us to maintain certain pre-set debt service coverage ratios and leverage ratios and require us to use our assets, 

including our cash balances, as collateral for our indebtedness. If we are unable to obtain such financing in a timely manner, 

at a reasonable cost and on acceptable terms or at all, we may be forced to delay our expansion plans, downsize or abandon 

such plans, which may materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations, as well 

as our future prospects. 
 

46. We have in past entered into related party transactions and we may continue to do so in the future. 

 

As of March 31, 2023 we have entered into related party transactions with our Promoters, individuals and entities forming 

a part of our promoter group and our Subsidiaries relating to our operations. In addition, we have in the past also entered 

into transactions with other related parties. Our Company has entered into related party transactions for the nine month 

period ended December 31, 2021 and the Fiscal ended March 31, 2021. For further details, please refer to the section titled 

ñFinancial Information ï óFinancial Informationò ï Annexure VI - : Notes to the Related Financial Informationò beginning 

on page  175.  While we believe that all our related party transactions have been conducted on an armôs length basis, we 

cannot assure you that we may not have achieved more favourable terms had such transactions been entered into with 

unrelated parties. There can be no assurance that such transactions, individually or taken together, will not have an adverse 

effect on our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition, including because of potential conflicts of 

interest or otherwise. In addition, our business and growth prospects may decline if we cannot benefit from our relationships 

with them in the future. The related party transactions entered by the Company are in compliance with the applicable 

provisions of Companies Act, 2013. 

 

47. In addition to the existing indebtedness our Company, may incur further indebtedness during the course of business. 

 

As on March 31, 2023 the total fund based indebtedness of our Company is  743.70 Lakhs. In addition to the indebtedness 

for the existing operations, our Company may incur further indebtedness during the course of the business. We cannot 

assure you that our Company will be able to obtain further loans at favourable terms. Increased borrowings, if any, may 

adversely affect our debt-equity ratio and our ability to borrow at competitive rates. In addition, we cannot assure you that 

the budgeting of our working capital requirements for a particular year will be accurate. There may be situations where we 

may under-budget our working capital requirements, which may lead to delays in arranging additional working capital 

requirements, loss of reputation, levy of liquidated damages and can cause an adverse effect on our cash flows. 

 

We have not defaulted in our loans. However, any failure to service the indebtedness of our Company or otherwise perform 

our obligations under our financing agreements entered with our lenders or which may be entered into by our Company, 

could trigger cross default provisions, penalties, acceleration of repayment of amounts due under such facilities which may 

cause an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. For details of our indebtedness, please 

refer to the section titled ˈ ñFinancial Indebtednessò on page 224 of this Prospectus. 

 

48. Increases in operational costs could adversely affect our results of operations. 

 

Factors such as inflation, increased employee benefit costs (by regulation or otherwise), increased rental costs, and increased 

energy costs may increase our operating costs. Further, to maintain our operational costs and margins, it is imperative to 

optimize the expansion of business operations and product portfolio. Many of the factors may also affect our vendors and 

channel partners, which are beyond their control. Although, there have been no such instances in the past, any future 

increase in the operational costs may cause such third parties to pass costs on to us and our end users by increasing prices, 

which would likely an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. 
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49. Our future fund requirements, in the form of further issue of capital or securities and/or loans taken by us, may be 

prejudicial to the interest of the Shareholders depending upon the terms on which they are eventually raised. 

 

We may require additional capital from time to time depending on our business needs. Any further issue of Equity Shares 

or convertible securities would dilute the shareholding of the existing Shareholders and such issuance may be done on terms 

and conditions, which may not be favorable to the then existing Shareholders. If such funds are raised in the form of loans 

or debt or preference shares, then it may substantially increase our fixed interest/dividend burden and decrease our cash 

flows, thus adversely affecting our business, results of operations and financial condition. 

 

50. Our Company does not have any listed peer companies for comparison of performance and therefore, investors must 

rely on their own examinations of accounting ratios of our Company for the purposes of investment in this Issue. 

 

Business models of some of the listed companies which undertake certain business, which may be considered similar to 

our business are not comparable to our business model based on the nature and extent of activities in diverse sectors 

undertaken by listed companies. Therefore, there are no listed companies that may be considered as the peer group of our 

Company. Therefore, investors must rely on their own examination of accounting ratios of our Company for the purposes 

of investment in this Issue. 

 

ISSUE SPECIFIC RISKS 

 

1. The Equity Shares have never been publicly traded and the Issue may not result in an active or liquid market for the 

Equity Shares. Further, the price of the Equity Shares may be volatile, and the investors may be unable to resell the 

Equity Shares at or above the Issue Price, or at all.  

 

Prior to the Issue, there has been no public market for the Equity Shares, and an active trading market on the stock exchanges 

may not develop or be sustained after the Issue. Listing and quotation does not guarantee that a market for the Equity Shares 

will develop, or if developed, the liquidity of such market for the Equity Shares. The market price of the Equity Shares may 

be subject to significant fluctuations in response to, among other factors, variations in our operating results, market 

conditions specific to the industry we operate in, developments relating to India and volatility in the Stock Exchange and 

securities markets elsewhere in the world. 

 

2. There is no guarantee that our Equity Shares will be listed on the Stock Exchanges in a timely manner or at all.  

 

In accordance with Indian law and practice, permission to list the Equity Shares will not be granted until after the Equity 

Shares have been issued and allotted. Approval will require all other relevant documents authorizing the issuing of our 

Equity Shares to be submitted. There could be a failure or delay in listing our Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges. Any 

failure or delay in obtaining the approval would restrict your ability to dispose of your Equity Shares. 

 

3. There are restrictions on daily/weekly/monthly movements in the price of the Equity Shares, which may adversely affect 

a shareholdersô ability to sell, or the price at which it can sell, Equity Shares at a particular point in time.  

 

Once listed, we would be subject to circuit breakers imposed by all stock exchanges in India, which does not allow 

transactions beyond specified increases or decreases in the price of the Equity Shares. This circuit breaker operates 

independently of the index-based market-wide circuit breakers generally imposed by SEBI on Indian stock exchanges. The 

percentage limit on circuit breakers is set by the stock exchanges based on the historical volatility in the price and trading 

volume of the Equity Shares. The stock exchanges do not inform us of the percentage limit of the circuit breaker in effect 

from time to time and may change it without our knowledge. This circuit breaker limits the upward and downward 

movements in the price of the Equity Shares. As a result of this circuit breaker, no assurance may be given regarding your 

ability to sell your Equity Shares or the price at which you may be able to sell your Equity Shares at any particular time. 

 

4. After this Issue, the price of the Equity Shares may be highly volatile, or an active trading market for the Equity Shares 

may not develop.  

 

The price of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges may fluctuate as a result of the factors, including: a. Volatility in 

the Indian and global capital market; b. Companyôs results of operations and financial performance; c. Performance of 

Companyôs competitors, d. Adverse media reports on Company or pertaining refurbished IT products; e. Changes in our 

estimates of performance or recommendations by financial analysts; and f. Significant developments in Indiaôs economic 

and fiscal policies. Current valuations may not be sustainable in the future and may also not be reflective of future valuations 

for our industry and our Company. There has been no public market for the Equity Shares and the prices of the Equity 

Shares may fluctuate after this Issue. There can be no assurance that an active trading market for the Equity Shares will 

develop or be sustained after this Issue or that the price at which the Equity Shares are initially traded will correspond to 

the price at which the Equity Shares will trade in the market subsequent to this Issue. 
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5. You will not be able to sell immediately on Stock Exchange any of the Equity Shares you purchase in the Issue until the 

Issue receives appropriate trading permissions.  

 

The Equity Shares will be listed on the Stock Exchange. Pursuant to Indian regulations, certain actions must be completed 

before the Equity Shares can be listed and trading may commence. We cannot assure you that the Equity Shares will be 

credited to investorôs demat accounts, or that trading in the Equity Shares will commence, within the time periods specified 

in the Prospectus. Any failure or delay in obtaining the approval would restrict your ability to dispose of the Equity Shares. 

In accordance with section 40 of the Companies Act, 2013, in the event that the permission of listing the Equity Shares is 

denied by the stock exchanges, we are required to refund all monies collected to investors. 

 

6. The Issue price of our Equity Shares may not be indicative of the market price of our Equity shares after the issue.  

 

The Issue price of our equity Shares has been determined by book build method. This price is based on numerous factors 

and may not be indicative of the market price of our Equity Shares after the Issue. The market price of our Equity Shares 

could be subject to significant fluctuation after the issue and may decline below the issue price. We cannot assure you that 

you will be able to sell your Equity Shares at or above the Issue price. For further details you may refer section titled ñBasis 

for Issue Priceò beginning on the page 98 of Red Herring Prospectus. Some of the factors which may affect our share price 

without limitations are as follows:  

 

¶ Reports on research by analysts.  

¶ Changes in revenue.  

¶ Variations in growth rate of our financial indicators such as earning per share, income, profit etc.  

¶ General Market Condition.  

¶ Domestic and International Economy. 

 

7. Sale of Equity Shares by our Promoter or other significant shareholder(s) in future may adversely affect the Trading 

price of the Equity Shares.  

 

Any instance of disinvestments of equity shares by our Promoter or by other significant shareholder(s) may significantly 

affect the trading price of our Equity Shares. Further, our market price may also be adversely affected even if there is a 

perception or belief that such sales of Equity Shares might occur. 

 

8. Any future issuance of Equity Shares, or convertible securities or other equity linked instruments by us may dilute your 

shareholding and sale of Equity Shares by shareholders with significant shareholding may adversely affect the trading 

price of the Equity Shares.  

 

We may be required to finance our growth through future equity offerings. Any future equity issuances by us, including a 

primary offering of Equity Shares, convertible securities or securities linked to Equity Shares including through exercise of 

employee stock options, may lead to the dilution of investorsô shareholdings in our Company. Any future equity issuances 

by us or sales of our Equity Shares by our shareholders may adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares, which 

may lead to other adverse consequences including difficulty in raising capital through offering of our Equity Shares or 

incurring additional debt. In addition, any perception by investors that such issuances or sales might occur may also affect 

the market price of our Equity Shares. There can be no assurance that we will not issue Equity Shares, convertible securities 

or securities linked to Equity Shares or that our Shareholders will not dispose of, pledge or encumber their Equity Shares 

in the future. 

 

We may be required to finance our growth through future equity offerings. Any future equity issuances by us, including a 

primary offering of Equity Shares, convertible securities or securities linked to Equity Shares including through exercise 

of employee stock options, may lead to the dilution of investorsô shareholdings in our Company. Any future equity issuances 

by us or sales of our Equity Shares by our shareholders may adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares, which 

may lead to other adverse consequences including difficulty in raising capital through offering of our Equity Shares or 

incurring additional debt. In addition, any perception by investors that such issuances or sales might occur may also affect 

the market price of our Equity Shares. There can be no assurance that we will not issue Equity Shares, convertible securities 

or securities linked to Equity Shares or that our Shareholders will not dispose of, pledge or encumber their Equity Shares 

in the future. 

 

9. Past experience of our Book Runner Lead Manager in Handling Initial Public offerings (IPOs). 

 

Our Book Running Lead Manager Lead Manager has limited experience in handling initial public offerings (IPOs). While 

the merchant banker has successfully managed a few IPOs previously, it is important to note that their track record is 

relatively limited compared to more established and experienced merchant bankers in the industry. 

 

The lack of extensive experience in handling IPOs may pose certain risks and challenges during the process. The success 

of an IPO depends on various factors, including effective marketing, accurate valuation, thorough due diligence, and 
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regulatory compliance. Inexperienced handling of these crucial aspects could potentially result in delays, inefficiencies, or 

suboptimal outcomes for the IPO. 

 

Furthermore, due to limited experience, the BRLM may have a narrower network of potential investors and may face 

challenges in attracting a diverse range of institutional and retail investors. This could impact the demand for our shares 

and potentially affect the overall success of the IPO. 

 

For further details you may refer section titled ñOther Regulatory And Statutory Disclosuresò beginning on the page 235 

of Red Herring Prospectus. 

 

EXTERNAL RISKS  

 

1. The continuing impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business and operations is uncertain and it may be significant 

and continue to have an adverse effect on our business, operations and our future financial performance. 

 

An outbreak of COVID-19 was recognized as a pandemic by the WHO on March 11, 2020. In response to the COVID-19 

outbreak the governments of many countries, including India, had taken and may continue to take preventive or protective 

actions, such as imposing country-wide lockdowns, restrictions on travel and business operations and advising or requiring 

individuals to limit time spent outside of their homes. Temporary closures of businesses were ordered, and numerous other 

businesses were temporarily closed on a voluntary basis as well. For most of Fiscal 2021, the COVID-19 pandemic caused 

widespread and prolonged lockdowns throughout India. The nationwide lockdown in India during March and April 2020 

resulted in the full closure of economic activity (except for essential services) for four weeks in Fiscal 2021,  

 

Further, the lockdown was again imposed by the government in some parts of India during April 2021, which was partially 

relaxed in June 2021, during this lockdown although we have continued with our business, the execution of our business 

operations was delayed by few weeks. We cannot predict the degree to, or the time period over, which our business will be 

affected by the COVID-19 outbreak. If the COVID-19 pandemic persists, whether through the outbreak of new virus strains 

or otherwise, further lockdowns and travel disruptions may occur, factory closures may be required, and we may experience 

lower economic activity levels. There are numerous uncertainties associated with the COVID-19 outbreak and associated 

disruptions to economic activity, including impact on our resources, customers, suppliers and other business partners, and 

each of their financial conditions; however, any material effect on these parties could adversely impact us. 

 

2. Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application or interpretation of 

corporate laws, may adversely affect our business, prospects and results of operations. 

 

The regulatory and policy environment in which we operate is evolving and subject to change. Our business and financial 

performance could be adversely affected by unfavorable changes in or interpretations of existing, or the promulgation of 

new laws, rules and regulations applicable to us and our business. Our business, results of operations and prospects may be 

adversely impacted, to the extent that we are unable to suitably respond to and comply with any such changes in applicable 

law and policy. Any political instability in the countries in which we operate, such as corruption, scandals and protests 

against certain economic reforms, which have occurred in the past, could slow the pace of liberalization and deregulation. 

The rate of economic liberalization could change, and specific laws and policies affecting foreign investment, currency 

exchange rates and other matters affecting investment in India could change as well. 

 

The GoI has passed new laws relating to social security, occupational safety, industrial relations and wages namely, the 

Code on Social Security, 2020 (ñSocial Security Codeò), the Occupational Safety, Health and Working Conditions Code, 

2020, the Industrial Relations Code, 2020 and the Code on Wages, 2019, which consolidate, subsume and replace numerous 

existing central labour legislations, were to take effect from April 1, 2021 (collectively, the ñLabour Codesò). The GoI has 

deferred the effective date of implementation of the respective Labour Codes, and they shall come into force from such 

dates as may be notified. Different dates may also be appointed for the coming into force of different provisions of the 

Labour Codes. While the rules for implementation under these codes have not been finalized, as an immediate consequence, 

the coming into force of these codes could increase the financial burden on our Company, which may adversely impact our 

profitability. For instance, under the Social Security Code, a new concept of deemed remuneration has been introduced, 

such that where an employee receives more than half (or such other percentage as may be notified by the Central 

Government) of their total remuneration in the form of allowances and other amounts that are not included within the 

definition of wages under the Social Security Code, the excess amount received shall be deemed as remuneration and 

accordingly be added to wages for the purposes of the Social Security Code and the compulsory contribution to be made 

towards the employeesô provident fund. 

 

Uncertainty in the applicability, interpretation or implementation of any amendment to, or change in, governing law, 

regulation or policy in the jurisdictions in which we operate, including by reason of an absence, or a limited body, of 

administrative or judicial precedent may be time consuming as well as costly for us to resolve and may impact the viability 

of our current business or restrict our ability to grow our business in the future. For instance, the Supreme Court of India 

has in a decision clarified the components of basic wages, which need to be considered by companies while making 

provident fund payments. Any such decisions in future or any further changes in interpretation of laws may have an impact 



 

Page 47 of 329 

 

on our results of operations. We may incur increased costs and other burdens relating to compliance with such new 

requirements, which may also require significant management time and other resources, and any failure to comply may 

adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects. 

 

3. Malpractices by some players in the industry affect overall performance of emerging Companies.  

 

The industry in which our Company operates is subject to risk associated with unethical business practices such as unethical 

marketing, dishonest advertising, questionable pricing practices, inaccurate claims with regards to safety and efficacy of 

the product etc. Consumersô attitude toward the industry today is dominated by a sense of mistrust, paving a way for 

regulators for stricter entry barriers and introduction of code of conducts; making the entire industry environment regulated 

and controlled. Malpractices by some players in the industry affects the overall performance of the emerging Companies 

like us as the industry norms are applicable to all at parity. Any unethical business practices by any industry player or 

intermediary may impact our business and results of operations. 

 

4. You may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Equity Shares.  

 

Under current Indian tax laws and regulations, capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares in an Indian Company 

are generally taxable in India. Any gain on the sale of shares on a stock exchange held for more than 12 months will not be 

subject to capital gains tax in India if the securities transaction tax (ñSTTò) has been paid on the transaction. The STT will 

be levied on and collected by an Indian stock exchange on which equity shares are sold. Any gain on the sale of shares held 

for more than 12 months to an Indian resident, which are sold other than on a stock exchange and as a result of which no 

STT has been paid, will be subject to long term capital gains tax in India. Further, any gain on the sale of shares held for a 

period of 12 months or less will be subject to capital gains tax in India. Further, any gain on the sale of listed equity shares 

held for a period of 12 months or less which are sold other than on a stock exchange and on which no STT has been paid, 

will be subject to short term capital gains tax at a relatively higher rate as compared to the transaction where STT has been 

paid in India. In Finance Bill 2017, section 10(38) was amended to provide that exemption under this section for income 

arising on transfer of equity share acquired on or after 1st day of October 2004 shall be available only if the acquisition of 

share is chargeable to Securities Transactions Tax (STT) under Chapter VII of the Finance (No 2) Act, 2004. In case this 

provision becomes effective, sale shares acquired on or after 1st day of October 2004 on which STT was not charged will 

attract tax under provisions of Long-Term Capital Gains.  

 

As per Finance Bill 2018, exemption under section 10(38) for income arising from long term gains on transfer of equity 

share shall not be available on or after 1st day of April 2018 if the long-term capital gains exceeds  1,00,000/- p.a. Such 

income arising from long term gains on transfer of equity share on or after 1st day of April 2018 in excess of                                        

 1,00,000/ p.a. shall be chargeable at the rate of 10%. Capital gains arising from the sale of shares will be exempt from 

taxation in India in cases where an exemption is provided under a tax treaty between India and the country of which the 

seller is a resident. Generally, Indian tax treaties do not limit Indiaôs ability to impose tax on capital gains. As a result, 

residents of other countries may be liable for tax in India as well as in their own jurisdictions on gains arising from a sale 

of the shares subject to relief available under the applicable tax treaty or under the laws of their own jurisdiction.  

 

5. Significant differences exist between Indian GAAP and other accounting principles, such as U.S. GAAP and IFRS, 

which may be material to the financial statements, prepared and presented in accordance with SEBI ICDR Regulations 

contained in Red Herring Prospectus.  

 

As stated in the reports of the Auditor included in Red Herring Prospectus under section titled ñRestated Financial 

Statementsò beginning on page 175 the financial statements included in Red Herring Prospectus are based on financial 

information that is based on the audited financial statements that are prepared and presented in conformity with Indian 

GAAP and restated in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, and no attempt has been made to reconcile any of the 

information given in Red Herring Prospectus to any other principles or to base it on any other standards. Indian GAAP 

differs from accounting principles and auditing standards with which prospective investors may be familiar in other 

countries, such as U.S. GAAP and IFRS. Significant differences exist between Indian GAAP and U.S. GAAP and IFRS, 

which may be material to the financial information prepared and presented in accordance with Indian GAAP contained in 

Red Herring Prospectus. Accordingly, the degree to which the financial information included in Red Herring Prospectus 

will provide meaningful information is dependent on familiarity with Indian GAAP, the Companies Act and the SEBIICDR 

Regulations. Any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian GAAP on the financial disclosures presented in Red Herring 

Prospectus should accordingly be limited.  

 

6. The occurrence of natural or man-made disasters could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and 

financial condition. Pandemic, hostilities, terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence could adversely affect 

the financial markets and our business.  

 

The occurrence of natural disasters, including cyclones, storms, floods, earthquakes, tsunamis, tornadoes, fires, explosions, 

pandemic disease, and man-made disasters, including acts of terrorism and military actions, could adversely affect our 

results of operations, cash flows or financial condition. Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war may adversely 

affect the Indian securities markets. In addition, any deterioration in international relations, especially between India and 
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its neighbouring countries, may result in investor concern regarding regional stability which could adversely affect the price 

of the Equity Shares. In addition, India has witnessed local civil disturbances in recent years and it is possible that future 

civil unrest as well as other adverse social, economic or political events in India could have an adverse effect on our 

business. 

 

7. Political instability or a change in economic liberalization and deregulation policies could seriously harm business and 

economic conditions in India generally and our business in particular.  

 

The Government of India has traditionally exercised and continues to exercise influence over many aspects of the economy. 

Our business and the market price and liquidity of our Equity Shares may be affected by interest rates, changes in 

Government policy, taxation, social and civil unrest and other political, economic or other developments in or affecting 

India. The rate of economic liberalization could change, and specific laws and policies affecting the information technology 

sector, foreign investment and other matters affecting investment in our securities could change as well. Any significant 

change in such liberalization and deregulation policies could adversely affect business and economic conditions in India, 

generally, and our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations, in particular.  

 

8. Financial instability in Indian Financial Markets could adversely affect our Companyôs results of operation and 

financial condition.  

 

In this globalized world, the Indian economy and financial markets are significantly influenced by worldwide economic, 

financial and market conditions. Any financial turmoil, say in the United States of America, Europe, China or other 

emerging economies, may have a negative impact on the Indian economy. Although economic conditions differ in each 

country, investorsô reactions to any significant developments in one country can have adverse effects on the financial and 

market conditions in other countries. A loss in investor confidence in the financial systems, particularly in other emerging 

markets, may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets. Indian financial markets have also experienced the 

contagion effect of the global financial turmoil. Any prolonged financial crisis may have an adverse impact on the Indian 

economy, thereby resulting in a material and adverse effect on our Company's business, operations, financial condition, 

profitability and price of its Shares. Stock exchanges in India have in the past experienced substantial fluctuations in the 

prices of listed securities.  

 

9. We cannot guarantee the accuracy or completeness of facts and other statistics with respect to India, the Indian economy 

and our industry contained in the Prospectus.  

 

While facts and other statistics in Red Herring Prospectus relating to India, the Indian economy and our industry has been 

based on various government publications and reports from government agencies that we believe are reliable, we cannot 

guarantee the quality or reliability of such materials. While we have taken reasonable care in the reproduction of such 

information, industry facts and other statistics have not been prepared or independently verified by us or any of our 

respective affiliates or advisors and, therefore we make no representation as to their accuracy or completeness. These facts 

and other statistics include the facts and statistics included in the section titled ñOur Industryò beginning on page 108 of 

Red Herring Prospectus. Due to possibly flawed or ineffective data collection methods or discrepancies between published 

information and market practice and other problems, the statistics herein may be inaccurate or may not be comparable to 

statistics produced elsewhere and should not be unduly relied upon. Further, there is no assurance that they are stated or 

compiled on the same basis or with the same degree of accuracy, as the case may be, elsewhere.  

 

10. Global economic, political and social conditions may harm our ability to do business, increase our costs and negatively 

affect our stock price.  

 

Global economic and political factors that are beyond our control, influence forecasts and directly affect performance. 

These factors include interest rates, rates of economic growth, fiscal and monetary policies of governments, inflation, 

deflation, foreign exchange fluctuations, consumer credit availability, fluctuations in commodities markets, consumer debt 

levels, unemployment trends and other matters that influence consumer confidence, spending and tourism. Increasing 

volatility in financial markets may cause these factors to change with a greater degree of frequency a magnitude, which 

may negatively affect our stock prices.  

 

11. Foreign investors are subject to foreign investment restrictions under Indian law that limits our ability to attract foreign 

investors, which may adversely impact the market price of the Equity Shares.  

 

Under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfers of shares between non-residents and residents 

are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the pricing guidelines and reporting requirements 

specified by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are sought to be transferred, is not in compliance with such pricing 

guidelines or reporting requirements or fall under any of the exceptions referred to above, then the prior approval of the 

RBI will be required. Additionally, shareholders who seek to convert the Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in India into 

foreign currency and repatriate that foreign currency from India will require a no objection/ tax clearance certificate from 

the income tax authority. There can be no assurance that any approval required from the RBI or any other government 

agency can be obtained on any particular terms or at all. 
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12. Natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian economy and cause Our Companyôs business to suffer.  

 

India has experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, tsunami, floods etc. In recent years, the extent and severity 

of these natural disasters determine their impact on the Indian economy. Prolonged spells of abnormal rainfall or other 

natural calamities could have a negative impact on the Indian economy, which could adversely affect our business, 

prospects, financial condition and results of operations as well as the price of the Equity Shares.  

 

13. Terrorist attacks, civil unrests and other acts of violence or war involving India or other countries could adversely affect 

the financial markets, our business, financial condition and the price of our Equity Shares.  

 

Any major hostilities involving India or other acts of violence, including civil unrest or similar events that are beyond our 

control, could have a material adverse effect on Indiaôs economy and our business. Incidents such as the terrorist attacks, 

other incidents such as those in US, Indonesia, Madrid and London, and other acts of violence may adversely affect the 

Indian stock markets where our Equity Shares will trade as well the global equity markets generally. Such acts could 

negatively impact business sentiment as well as trade between countries, which could adversely affect our Companyôs 

business and profitability. Additionally, such events could have a material adverse effect on the market for securities of 

Indian companies, including the Equity Shares.  

 

14. Any downgrading of Indiaôs sovereign rating by an independent agency may harm our ability to raise financing.  

 

Any adverse revisions to India's credit ratings for domestic and international debt by international rating agencies may 

adversely impact our ability to raise additional financing, and the interest rates and other commercial terms at which such 

additional financing may be available. This could have an adverse effect on our business and future financial performance, 

our ability to obtain financing for capital expenditures and the trading price of our Equity Shares. 

 

15. Any change in laws or regulations, including taxation laws, or their interpretation may significantly affect our financial 

statements.  

 

Any change in  Indian  tax  laws  could  have  an  effect  on  our  operations.  For instance, the  Taxation  Laws (Amendment) 

Act, 2019, prescribes certain changes to the income tax rate applicable to companies in India. According to this Act, 

companies can henceforth voluntarily opt in favor of a concessional tax regime (subject to no other special 

benefits/exemptions being claimed), which would ultimately reduce the tax rate (on gross basis) for Indian companies from 

30% to 22% (exclusive of applicable health and education cess and surcharge). Any such future amendments may affect 

our ability to claim exemptions that we have historically benefited from, and such exemptions may no longer be available 

to us. Any adverse order passed by the appellate authorities/ tribunals/ courts would have an effect on our profitability.  

 

The Finance Act, 2020 (ñFinance Actò), has, amongst others things, provided a number of amendments to the direct and 

indirect tax regime, including, without limitation, a simplified alternate direct tax regime. For instance, dividend distribution 

tax (ñDDTò) will not be payable in respect of dividends declared, distributed or paid by a domestic company after March 

31, 2020, and accordingly, such dividends would not be exempt in the hands of the shareholders, both resident as well as 

non-resident and are likely be subject to tax deduction at source. Our Company may or may not grant the benefit of a tax 

treaty (where applicable) to a non-resident shareholder for the purposes of deducting tax at source from such dividend. 

Investors should consult their own tax advisors about the consequences of investing or trading in the Equity Shares.  

 

In addition, we are subject to tax related inquiries and claims. We may be particularly affected by claims from tax authorities 

on account of income tax assessment, service tax and GST that combines taxes and levies by the central and state 

governments into one unified rate of interest with effect from July 1, 2017 and all subsequent changes and amendments 

thereto.  

 

Further, the Government of India has announced the Union Budget for Fiscal 2024 and the Finance Act, 2023, which was 

notified on the e-Gazette on March 31, 2023. The Finance Act, 2023 introduced various amendments to taxation laws in 

India. We cannot predict whether any amendments made pursuant to the Finance Act, 2023 would have any adverse effect 

on our business, financial condition, future cash flows and results of operations. In addition, unfavorable changes in or 

interpretations of existing, or the promulgation of new laws, rules and regulations including foreign investment laws 

governing our business, operations and group structure could result in us being deemed to be in contravention of such laws 

or may require us to apply for additional approvals. We may incur increased costs  relating  to  compliance  with  such  new  

requirements,  which  may  also  require management time and other resources, and any failure to comply may adversely 

affect our business, results of operations and prospects. Uncertainty in the applicability, interpretation or implementation 

of any amendment to, or change in, governing law, regulation or policy, including by reason of an absence, or a limited 

body, of administrative or judicial precedent may be time consuming as well as costly for us to resolve and may affect the 

viability of our current business or restrict our ability to grow our business in the future. 
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We cannot predict whether any new tax laws or regulations impacting our services will be enacted, the likely nature and 

impact of the specific terms of any such laws or regulations or whether, if at all, any laws or regulations would have an 

adverse effect on our business. 
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SECTION IV: INTRODUCTION  

 

THE ISSUE 

The following is the summary of the Issue:  

 

PRESENT ISSUE IN TERMS OF THIS PROSPECTUS 

Equity Shares Offered through 

Public Issue (1) (2) 

84,96,000* Equity Shares aggregating to  3,993.12 lakhs. 

Out of which:  

Issue Reserved for the Market Makers 4,26,000* Equity Shares aggregating to  200.22 Lakhs. 

Net Issue to the Public 80,70,000* Equity Shares aggregating to  3,792.90 lakhs. 

Out of which*   

A. QIB Portion (3) Not more than 40,32,000* Equity Shares aggregating up to  1,895.04 lakhs. 

Of which  

i) Anchor Investor Portion 24,18,000* Equity Shares aggregating to  1,136.46 lakhs. 

ii)  Net QIB Portion  

 

16,14,000* Equity Shares aggregating to  758.58 lakhs. 

of which 

(a) Available for allocation to Mutual 

Funds only (5% of the Net QIB 

Portion). 

81,000* Equity Shares aggregating to  38.07 lakhs. 

(b) Balance of QIB Portion for all 

QIBs including Mutual Funds 

15,33,000* Equity Shares aggregating to  720.51 lakhs. 

B. Non-Institutional Portion Not less than 12,12,000* Equity Shares aggregating to  569.64 lakhs. 

C. Retail Portion Not less than 28,26,000* Equity Shares aggregating to  1,328.22 lakhs. 

Pre and Post ï Issue Equity Shares 

Equity Shares outstanding prior to the 

Issue. 

2,36,87,472 Equity Shares of face value of  5 each. 

Equity Shares outstanding after the 

Issue. 

3,21,83,472* Equity Shares of face value  5 each. 

Use of Net Proceeds by our Company. Please see the section titled ñObjects of the Issueò on page 85 of this Prospectus. 

*Subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment.  

Notes: 

1) The Issue is being made in terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as amended from time to time. 

This Issue is being made by our company in terms of Regulation of 229 (2) of SEBI ICDR Regulations read with 

Rule 19(2)(b)(i) of SCRR wherein not less than 25% of the post ï issue paid up equity share capital of our company 

are being offered to the public for subscription. 

2) The Issue has been authorized by the Board of Directors vide a resolution passed at its meeting held on July 07, 

2023 and by the Shareholder of our Company, vide a special resolution passed pursuant to Section 62(1)(c) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 at the Annual General Meeting held on July 10, 2023. 

3) The SEBI ICDR Regulations permitted the issue of securities to the public through the Book Building Process, 

which stated that, not less than 15% of the Net Issue was available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Non-

Institutional Bidders and not less than 35% of the Net Issue was available for allocation on a proportionate basis 

to Retail Individual Bidders and not more than 50% of the Net Issue was available for allocation on a 

proportionate basis to QIBs, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price. Accordingly, we 

have allocated the Net Issue i.e. not more than 50% of the Net Issue to QIB and not less than 35% of the Net Issue 

was available for allocation to Retail Individual Investors and not less than 15% of the Net Issue was available 

for allocation to Non-institutional bidders. 

Our Company, in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager, has allocated 60% of the QIB Portion to Anchor 

Investors on a discretionary basis in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. One-third of the Anchor Investor 

Portion was reserved for domestic Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received from domestic Mutual Funds at or 

above the Anchor Investor Allocation Price. In the event of under-subscription in the Anchor Investor Portion, the 

remaining Equity Shares were added to the QIB Portion. Further, 5% of the Net QIB Portion was available for allocation 

on a proportionate basis to Mutual Funds only, and the remainder of the QIB Portion was available for allocation on a 

proportionate basis to all QIB Bidders (other than Anchor Investors), including Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being 

received at or above the Issue Price. However, if the aggregate demand from Mutual Funds is less than 5% of the Net QIB 
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Portion, the balance Equity Shares available for allotment in the Mutual Fund Portion was added to the Net QIB Portion 

and allocated proportionately to the QIB Bidders (other than Anchor Investors) in proportion to their Bids.  

For further details, please refer section titled ñIssue Procedureò beginning on page 258 of this Prospectus. 
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

 

 

The following tables set forth summary financial information derived from Restated Financial Statements for the Financial 

Year ended on March 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 

Indian GAAP, the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

 

The summary financial information presented below should be read in conjunction with the sections and notes mentioned 

therein sections titled óOther Financial Informationô and óManagementôs Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions 

and Results of Operationsô beginning on page 215 and 216, respectively of this Prospectus. 
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RESTATED SUMMARY STATEMENT OF ASSET AND LIABILITIES  

(  In Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

 

EQUITY  AND LIABILITIES:  

   

Shareholders' funds:    

Share Capital 36.00 36.00 1.00 

Reserves and Surplus 894.12 218.55 73.36 
 930.12 254.55 74.36 

Non-Current  liabilities:     

Long Term Provisions 4.83 3.08 0.67 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 0.27 (0.02) 0.13 
 5.10 3.06 0.80 

Current  liabilities:     

Short-Term Borrowings 743.70 181.82 162.64 

Trade Payables  -  

(a)Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises - - - 

(b)Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises 321.72 - 17.55 

Other Current Liabilities 119.38 108.21 65.62 

Short-Term Provisions 88.68 11.51 17.02 

 1,273.48 301.54 262.83 
    

TOTAL  2,208.70 559.15 337.99 

ASSETS:    

Non-current  assets:    

Property, Plant and Equipments 36.08 25.10 21.03 

Capital Working In Progress- Intangible Assets 4.50 - - 

Other Non-Current Assets 10.66 9.00 5.50 

 51.24 34.10 26.53 

 

Current  assets: 

   

Inventories 1,282.75 346.48 70.09 

Trade Receivables 572.17 147.56 80.52 

Cash and Bank Balances 140.71 7.91 138.25 

Short-Term Loans and Advances 161.82 23.10 22.60 
 2,157.45 525.05 311.46 
    

TOTAL  2,208.70 559.15 337.99 
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RESTATED SUMMARY STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS  

(  In Lakhs)  

Particulars Financial Year 2023 Financial Year 2022 Financial Year 2021 

Revenue:    

 
Revenue from operations 

 
4,452.98 

 
2,791.90 

 
960.67 

Other Income 0.25 0.60 0.04 

Total 4,453.23 2,792.50 960.71 

Expenses:    

Purchases of traded goods 2,520.18 1,907.14 642.10 

Employee benefits expenses 468.08 223.13 76.25 

Finance costs 54.32 54.31 11.31 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 3.72 2.49 0.50 

Other expenses 588.03 360.46 132.42 

Total 3,634.33 2,547.53 862.58 

 
Profit  before tax 

 
818.90 

 
244.97 

 
98.13 

Tax expense:    

Current Tax -141.13 -61.99 -24.64 

Prior Year Tax -1.92 -2.95 - 

Deferred tax -0.29 0.15 -0.13 

Net Profit/(Loss) for  the year 675.57 180.19 73.36 

 
Earning Per Share: 

-   

- Basic Earning per share 3.03 0.81 0.33 

Corporate Background and Significant 

accounting policies 
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RESTATED SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW S 

 

(  In Lakhs) 
 

PARTICULARS  
Financial Year 2023 Financial Year 2022 Financial Year 2021 

 
A 

 
CASH FLOW  FROM OPERATING  ACTIVITIES  

      

 Profit  After  Tax 675.57 180.19 73.36 

  
Adjustment For Non-Cash &  Non Operating Items: 

   

 Tax Expense 143.34 64.78 24.77 
 Interest  Income - -0.34 -0.00  
 Gratuity  1.75 2.41 0.67 
 Leave encashment - - - 
 Balance written  off    

 Depreciation 3.72 2.49 0.50 

 Operating Profit  before Working  Capital Changes  824.37  249.52  99.30 

 
Adjustment for  Working  Capital:  

      

 (Increase)/Decrease in  Trade Receivables -424.61  -67.04  -80.52  

 (Increase)/Decrease in  Short Term Loans and Advances -138.71  -0.50  -22.60  

 (Increase)/Decrease in  Inventories  -936.27  -276.39  -70.09  

 (Increase)/Decrease in  Long Term Loans and Advances -1.66  -3.50  -5.50  

 Increase/(Decrease) in  Other Current  Liabilities  11.17  42.59  65.62  

 Increase/(Decrease) in Short term Provisions 77.18  -5.51  17.02  

 Increase/(Decrease) in  Trade Payables 321.72  
-1,091.19 

-17.55  
-327.90 

17.55  
-78.52 

 Net Cash Generated from Operations (A) 

 
Less: Tax paid 

 -266.83 

 
-143.05 

 
-409.88 

 -78.38 

 
-64.93 

 
-143.31 

 20.78 

 
-24.64 

 
-3.86  

 

B 

Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) 

 
CASH FLOW  FROM INVESTING  ACTIVITIES  

   

 Addition  to Property, Plant and Equipment  -14.70 -6.55 -21.53 

 Property, Plant and Equipment  under Work  In  Progress -4.50   

 
Interest  Income - 0.34 0.00  

 Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B)  

 

 

 
561.89 

-19.20  

 

 

 
19.18 

-6.20  -21.53 

C CASH FLOW  FROM FINANCING  ACTIVITIES:  
 

 Increase/(Decrease) in  Share Capital 1.00 
 Increase/(Decrease) in  Short-Term Borrowings 162.64 

 Net Cash from Financing Activities (C)  561.89  19.18  163.64 

 
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (D)=(A+B+C) 132.80 -130.34 138.25 

 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the year (E) 7.91 138.25 - 

 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the year (D)+(E) 

 
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

140.71 7.91 138.25 

 Cash in  Hand - 7.74 0.45 
 Bank Balance 140.71 0.17 137.80 

  
TOTAL  

  
140.71 

  
7.91 

  
138.25 
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SECTION V: GENERAL INFORMATION  

 

Our Company was originally incorporated as a private limited company under the Companies Act, 2013 in the name and 

style of ñNewjaisa Technologies Private Limitedò bearing CIN U32106KA2020PTC134935 vide Certificate of 

Incorporation dated June 16, 2020 issued by the RoC, Central Registration Centre.  

 

Subsequently, our Company was converted into public limited company pursuant to the approval of our shareholders at an 

EGM held on May 04, 2023. Consequently, the name of our Company was changed to ñNewjaisa Technologies Limitedò 

and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon conversion from private company to public company was issued 

by RoC, Bangalore, Karnataka on June 27, 2023.  

 

For further details, please refer to the section titled óHistory and Certain Corporate Mattersô beginning on page 142 of this 

Prospectus. 

 

REGISTERED AND CORPORATE OFFICE OF OUR COMPANY  

 

The address and certain other details of our Registered and Corporate Office are as follows: 

 

NEWJAISA TECHNOLOGIES  LIMITED  

207/B2, 2nd Cross Road, J.C, Industrial Estate Bikasipura Main Road,  

Off Kanakpura Road, Near Delhi Public School Bangalore, 560078, Karnataka, India. 

Tel No: 91 99714 33963  

E-mail: cs@newjaisa.com  

Website: www.newjaisa.com   

 

For details of the changes in our Registered and Corporate Office, see ñHistory and Certain Corporate Matters ï Changes 

in the Registered Officeò at page 142. 

 

COMPANY REGISTRATION NUMBER AND CORPORATE IDENTI TY NUMBER 

 

The registration number and corporate identity number of our Company are as follows: 

 

Corporate Registration Number: 134935  

 

Corporate Identification Number: U32106KA2020PLC134935 

 

REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES  

 

Our Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Karnataka at Bangalore which is situated at the following 

address: 

'E' Wing, 2nd Floor, Kendriya Sadana, Kormangala, 

Bangalore-560034, Karnataka, India. 

Tel No: 080-25633105 (Direct), 080-25537449/25633104 

Fax No: +91 8025538531 

Email ID:  roc.bangalore@mca.gov.in    

Website: www.mca.gov.in  

 

DESIGNATED STOCK EXCHANGE  

SME Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited i.e. ñNSE Emergeò 
Exchange Plaza, C/1, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),  
Mumbai - 400 051, Maharashtra, India. Website:  www.nseindia.com  

 

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

The following table sets out details regarding our Board as on the date of this Prospectus:  

 

Sr. 

No. 
Name Designation DIN Address 

1.  Vishesh Handa  Chairman and 

Managing 

Director 

07842847 Villa 71 Villa Scapes Osman Sagar Road 

Gandipet K V Rangareddy Telangana - 500075 

2.  Mukunda Raghavendra 

  

Whole Time 

Director  

10060683 B-12 SBI Colony 40th Main J P Nagar 1st Phase 

Bangalore South Bangalore Karnataka 560078 

http://www.newjaisa.com/
mailto:roc.bangalore@mca.gov.in
http://www.mca.gov.in/
http://www.nseindia.com/
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3.  Ankita Handa Non Executive 

Director 

08690084 Villa 71 Villa Scapes Osman Sagar Road 

Gandipet Gandipet K V Rangareddy Telangana ï 

500075 

4.  Gaurav Jindal Independent 

Director 

06892227 Sector-17, Faridabad Kheri Kalan (113) Kheri 

Kalan Faridabad Faridabad Haryana 121002. 

5.  Purav D Shah Independent 

Director 

05126728 Villa No.36, Villa Scapes, Besides KLR Lane, 

Opp. Signature Villas, Gandipet, K.V 

Rangareddy, Telangana-500075 

 

For further details of our Directors, please refer to the section titled óOur Managementô beginning on page 147 of this 

Prospectus. 

 

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  

Mr. Ashish Nirmal    

Newjaisa Technologies Limited  

207/B2, 2nd Cross Road, J.C, Industrial Estate Bikasipura Main Road,  

Off Kanakpura Road, Near Delhi Public School Bangalore, 560078, Karnataka, India  

Tel No.: +91 99714 33963 

E-mail:  ashish@newjaisa.com  

 

COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE OFFICER  

Mrs. Poonam Jain 

Newjaisa Technologies Limited  

207/B2, 2nd Cross Road, J.C, Industrial Estate Bikasipura Main Road,  

Off Kanakpura Road, Near Delhi Public School Bangalore, 560078, Karnataka, India  

Tel No.: +91 93901 77182  

E-mail:  cs@newjaisa.com  

 

Investor Grievances: 

 

Investors may contact our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer and/or the Registrar to the Issue and/or the 

Book Running Lead Manager, in case of any pre-issue or post-issue related problems, such as non-receipt of letters 

of allotment, credit of allotted Equity Shares in the respective beneficiary account or refund orders, etc. 

 

For all Issue related queries and for redressal of complaints, Applicants may also write to the Book Running Lead Manager. 

All complaints, queries or comments received by Stock Exchange/SEBI shall be forwarded to the Book Running Lead 

Manager, who shall respond to the same. 

 

All grievances relating to the Anchor Investors may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue, giving full details such as 

name of the sole or first Applicant, Bid cum Application Form number, Applicants DP ID, Client ID, PAN, date of the 

Anchor Investor Application Form, address of the Applicant, number of Equity Shares applied for, Bid Amount paid on 

submission of the Anchor Investor Application Form and the name and address of the relevant BRLM where the Anchor 

Investor Application Form was submitted by the Anchor Investor. For all Issue related queries and for redressal of 

complaints, investors may also write to the BRLM. 

 

DETAILS OF KEY INTERMEDIARIES PERTAINING TO THIS ISSUE OF OUR COMPANY  

 

BOOK RUNNING LEAD MANAGER  OF THE ISSUE 

 

 

INDORIENT FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED  

Registered Office Address: A/501, Rustomjee Central Park, Executive Spaces, 

Andheri Kurla Road, Chakala, Mumbai ï 400093, Maharashtra, India. 

Tel No.: +91-79772 12186 

E-mail:  compliance-ifsl@indorient.in  

Investor Grievance Email: wecare@indorient.in   

Website: www.indorient.in   

Contact Person: Mr. Ivor Anil  Misquith 

SEBI Registration No.: INM000012661 

CIN:  U67190DL1993PLC052085 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:ashish@newjaisa.com
mailto:wecare@indorient.in
http://www.indorient.in/
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REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE  

 

 BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED  

S6-2, 6th Pinnacle Business Park, Mahakali Caves Road, next to Ahura Centre, Andheri 

East, Mumbai- 400093, Maharashtra, India 

Tel No.: +91 ï 22 ï 6263 8200 

Fax No. +91 ï 22 ï 6263 8299 

E-mail:  ipo@bigshareonline.com 

Investor Grievance Email: investor@bigshareonline.com  

Website: www.bigshareonline.com  

Contact Person: Mr. Babu Rapheal C 

SEBI Registration No: INR000001385  

CIN:  U99999MH1994PTC076534 

 

LEGAL ADVISOR TO THE ISSUE 

 

 

 

STERLING ASSOCIATES  

B-302, Umarji House, Opposite CritiCare Hospital, Teli Lane, Andheri-East, Mumbai 

400 069, Maharashtra, India. 

Tel No.: +91 91720 75003  

E-mail:  ajay.yadav@sterlingassociates.in 

Contact Person: Mr. Ajay Yadav 

 

STATUTORY AND PEER REVIEW AUDITORS  

 

 

  

M/s. Abhilashi & Co.  

Chartered Accountants 

Shop No. 4 , Near Income Tax Office , Model Town Road ,  

Jalandhar City, Punjab-14401, India 

Tel: +91 97812 66999 

E-mail:  abhilashi.inderjit@gmail.com  

Website: NA 

Contact Person: CA Kuljeet Singh 

Firm Registration No: 016025N 

Membership No: 530259 

Peer Review Certificate No: 015237 

 

ADVISOR TO THE COMPANY :  

 

Name:  Pooja Equiresearch Private Limited 

CIN:  U6712011Hl992PTC068765 

Address: 102/B,Hari Darshan,Bhogilal Fadia Road,Kandivali (W),Mumbai-400067. 

Contact No.: 9930097170 

Email ID:  poojacomex@gmail.com 

Website:  https://www. poojaequiresearch.com/ 

Contact Person:  Mr. Hiten Ramniklal Mehta 

 

UNDERWRITER TO THE ISSUE  

 

 

 

INDORIENT FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED  

Registered Office Address: A/501, Rustomjee Central Park, Executive Spaces, 

Andheri Kurla Road, Chakala, Mumbai ï 400093, Maharashtra, India. 

Tel No.: +91-79772 12186 

E-mail:  compliance-ifsl@indorient.in  

Investor Grievance Email: wecare@indorient.in   

Website: www.indorient.in   

Contact Person: Mr. Ivor Anil Misquith 

SEBI Registration No.: INM000012661 

CIN:  U67190DL1993PLC052085 

 

 

mailto:ipo@bigshareonline.com
mailto:investor@bigshareonline.com
http://www.bigshareonline.com/
mailto:abhilashi.inderjit@gmail.com
mailto:wecare@indorient.in
http://www.indorient.in/
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MARKET MAKER TO THE ISSUE  

 

Name Nikunj Stock Brokers Limited 

Registered Office Address A-92, Ground Floor, Left Portion, Kamla Nagar, New Delhi - 110007 

Tel No.:  011-47030017-18/9999492292 

E-mail:   complianceofficer@nikunjonline.com 

Website:  https://www.nikunjonline.com/   

Contact Person:  Mr. Anupam Suman 

SEBI Registration  INZ000169335 

CIN:  U74899DL19941PLC060413 

NSE Market Maker 

Registration No. 

NSE/MEM/278/06913 

 

BANKER TO OUR COMPANY  

 

IDFC First Bank  

Address: Ground Floor No. 1, (old No. 106 C),  

PID No. 59-89, 30th Cross Road 7th Block Jayanagar,  

Bangalore 560070  

Tel: +91 86556 53535  

E-mail:  sabareesh.balasundharan@idfcfirstbank.com   

Website: www.idfcbank.com 

 

BANKERS TO THE ISSUE/ PUBLIC ISSUE BANK/ REFUND BANKER / SPONSOR BANK 

 

Name HDFC BANK LIMITED 

Address Lodha - I Think Techno Campus, O-3 Level, Next to Kanjurmarg Railway Station, Kanjurmarg 

(East), Mumbai - 400042 

Contact Person  Eric Bacha/ Sachin Gawade / Pravin.Teli / Siddharth Jadhav, Tushar Gavankar  

Tel No.:  +91 022-30752914 / 28 / 29 

E-mail:   siddharth.jadhav@hdfcbank.com, sachin.gawade@hdfcbank.com, eric.bacha@hdfcbank.com, 

tushar.gavankar@hdfcbank.com, pravin.teli2@hdfcbank.com 

Website:  www.hdfcbank.com 

SEBI Registration  INBI00000063 

  

DESIGNATED INTERMEDIARIES  

 

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks (SCSBôs) 

 

The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA process is provided on the website of the 

SEBI (https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes) and updated from time to time. For 

details on Designated Branches of SCSBs collecting the Bid-cum-Application Forms, refer to the above mentioned SEBI 

link. 

 

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks eligible as Sponsor Banks for UPI 

 

The list of Self Certified Syndicate Banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as Investors Bank or Issuer Bank for UPI 

mechanism are provide on the website of SEBI on 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=41   

 

Syndicate SCSB Branches 

 

In relation to ASBA Bids submitted to a member of the Syndicate, the list of branches of the SCSBs at the ASBA Specified 

Locations named by the respective SCSBs to receive deposits of Bid cum Application Forms from the members of the 

Syndicate is available on the website of the SEBI 

(https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=40) and updated from time to 

time. For more information on such branches collecting Bid-cum-Application Forms from the Syndicate at ASBA Specified 

Locations, refer to the above mentioned SEBI link. 

 

Registered Brokers 

 

The list of the Registered Brokers eligible to accept ASBA forms, including details such as postal address, telephone number 

and email address, is provided on the website of the 

SEBIat(https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes), respectively, as updated from time to 

https://www.nikunjonline.com/
mailto:sabareesh.balasundharan@idfcfirstbank.com
http://www.idfcbank.com/
mailto:eric%20bacha
mailto:Siddharth%20Jadhav
mailto:siddharth.jadhav@hdfcbank.com
mailto:sachin.gawade@hdfcbank.com
mailto:eric.bacha@hdfcbank.com
mailto:tushar.gavankar@hdfcbank.com
http://www.hdfcbank.com/
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=41
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=40
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes
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time. 

 

Registrar to the Issue and Share Transfer Agents 

 

The list of the RTAs eligible to accept ASBA Forms at the Designated RTA Locations, including details such as address, 

telephone number and e-mail address, is provided on the website of SEBI i.e. 

(https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=10), respectively, as updated 

from time to time. 

 

Collecting Depository Participants 

 

The list of the CDPs eligible to accept ASBA Forms at the Designated CDP Locations, including details such as name and 

contact details, is provided on the website of SEBI on 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes from time to time. 

 

STATEMENT OF INTER SE ALLOCATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES  

 

Since, Indorient Financial Services Limited is the sole Book Running Lead Manager to this Issue, a statement of inter se 

allocation of responsibilities amongst Book Running Lead Manager is not applicable. 

 

CREDIT RATING  

 

As this is an Issue of Equity Shares, there is no credit rating required for the Issue. 

 

IPO GRADING  

 

Since the Issue is being made in terms of Chapter IX of the ICDR Regulations, there is no requirement of appointing an 

IPO Grading agency. 

 

EXPERT OPINION  

 

Except as stated below, our Company has not obtained any expert opinions: 

 

Our Company has received written consent dated July 31, 2023 from the Statutory Auditors namely, M/s. Abhilashi & Co, 

Chartered Accountant to include their name as an ñexpertò as required under Section 26 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and as defined under Section 2 (38) of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the 

reports of the Statutory Auditors on the Restated Financial Statements, dated July 17, 2023 and the tax benefits statement 

dated July 31, 2023, included in this Prospectus and such consent has not been withdrawn as on the date of this Prospectus. 

 

However, the term ñexpertò shall not be construed to mean an ñexpertò as defined under the U.S. Securities Act. 

 

GREEN SHOE OPTION 

 

No green shoe option is contemplated under the Offer. 

 

DEBENTURE TRUSTEES 

 

This is an Issue of Equity Shares hence appointment of debenture trustees is not required. 

 

MONITORING AGENCY  

 

As per Regulation 262 (1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the requirement of monitoring agency is not mandatory if the 

Issue size is below  10,000 Lakhs. Since the Issue size is below  10,000 Lakhs, our Company has not appointed any 

monitoring agency for this Issue. However, as per Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Audit Committee of our 

Company, would be monitoring the utilization of the proceeds of the Issue. 

 

APPRAISAL AGENCY   

 

The objects of the Issue and deployment of funds are not appraised by any independent agency/ bank/ financial institution. 

 

TYPE OF OFFER 

 

The present Offer is considered to be 100% Book Building Issue. 

 

 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=10
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes
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FILING OF DRAFT RED HERRING PROSPECTUS / RED HERRING PROSPECTUS/PROSPECTUS 

 

The Draft Red Herring Prospectus has been filed with National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Exchange Plaza, C-1, 

Block- G, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051, Maharashtra, India. 

 

The Draft Red Herring Prospectus will not be filed with SEBI, nor will SEBI issue any observation on the Offer Document 

in terms of Regulation 246(2) of SEBI ICDR Regulations. Pursuant to Regulation 246(5) of SEBI ICDR Regulations and 

SEBI Circular Number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2018/011 dated January 19, 2018, a copy of the Red Herring 

Prospectus/ Prospectus will be filed online through SEBI Intermediary Portal at https://siportal.sebi.gov.in. 

 

A copy of the Red Herring Prospectus and this Prospectus, along with the documents required to be filed under Section 26 

& 32 of the Companies Act, 2013 was filed with the RoC Office situated at Registrar of Companies, Karnataka, E' Wing, 

2nd Floor, Kendriya Sadana, Kormangala, Banglore-560034, Karnataka. 

 

A copy of this Prospectus required to be filed under Section 26 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be filed with the RoC at 

its office situated at Registrar of Companies, Karnataka, E' Wing, 2nd Floor, Kendriya Sadana, Kormangala, Banglore-

560034, Karnataka. 

 

Book Building Process 

 

Book Building, with reference to the Issue, refers to the process of collection of Bids on the basis of this Prospectus within 

the Price Band. The Price Band has been determined by our Company in consultation with the Book Running Lead Manager 

in accordance with the Book Building Process. The Issue Price was determined by our Company, in consultation with the 

Book Running Lead Manager in accordance with the Book Building Process after the Bid/ Issue Closing Date. Principal 

parties involved in the Book Building Process are:- 

 

¶ Our Company; 

¶ The Book Running Lead Manager in this case being Indorient Financial Services Limited; 

¶ The Syndicate Member(s) who are intermediaries registered with SEBI/ registered as brokers with NSE and eligible to 

act as Underwriters. The Syndicate Member(s) will be appointed by the Book Running Lead Manager; The Registrar to 

the Issue and; 

¶ The Designated Intermediaries and Sponsor bank. 

 

The SEBI ICDR Regulations have permitted the Issue of securities to the public through the Book Building Process, wherein 

allocation to the public shall be made as per Regulation 253 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

 

The Issue was made through the Book Building Process wherein not more than 50% of the Net Issue shall be available for 

allocation on a proportionate basis to QIBs, provided that our Company may in consultation with the BRLM allocated 60% 

of the QIB Portion to Anchor Investors on a discretionary basis in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations (the 

ñAnchor Investor Portionò), out of which one third was reserved for domestic Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being 

received from domestic Mutual Funds at or above the Anchor Investor Issue Price. 5% of the Net QIB Portion was available 

for allocation on a proportionate basis to Mutual Funds only, and the remainder of the QIB Portion was available for 

allocation on a proportionate basis to all QIB Bidders, including Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received at or 

above the Issue Price. Further, not less than 15% of the Net Issue was available for allocation on a proportionate basis to 

Non-Institutional Bidders and not less than 35% of the Net Issue was available for allocation to Retail Individual Bidders, 

in accordance with the SEBI Regulations, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Issue Price. All potential 

Bidders except Anchor Invesors participated in the Issue through an ASBA process by providing details of their respective 

bank account which will be blocked by the SCSBs. All Bidders are mandatorily required to utilize the ASBA process to 

participate in the Issue. Under-subscription if any, in any category, except in the QIB Category, was allowed to be met with 

spill over from any other category or a combination of categories at the discretion of our Company in consultation with the 

BRLM and the Designated Stock Exchange. 

 

All Bidders, except Anchor Investors, were mandatorily required to use the ASBA process for participating in the 

Issue. In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, QIBs bidding in the QIB Portion and Non-Institutional 

Bidders bidding in the Non-Institutional Portion were not allowed to withdraw or lower the size of their Bids (in 

terms of the quantity of the Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage. Retail Individual Bidders could revise 

their Bids during the Bid/Issue Period and withdraw their Bids until the Bid/ Issue Closing Date. Further, Anchor 

Investors could not withdraw their Bids after the Anchor Investor Bid/Issue Period. Allocation to the Anchor 

Investors was on a discretionary basis. 

 

Subject to valid Bids received at or above the Issue Price, allocation to all categories in the Net Issue, was made on a 

proportionate basis, except for Retail Portion where allotment to each Retail Individual Bidders shall not be less than the 

minimum bid lot, subject to availability of Equity Shares in Retail Portion, and the remaining available Equity Shares, if 

any, shall be allotted on a proportionate basis. Under ï subscription, if any, in any category, was allowed to be met with 



 

Page 63 of 329 

 

spill ï over from any other category or a combination of categories at the discretion of our Company in consultation with 

the Book Running Lead Manager and the Stock Exchange. However, under-subscription, if any, in the QIB Portion was 

not allowed to be met with spill over from other categories or a combination of categories. 

 

 

In terms of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015 and the SEBI (Issue of Capital 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, all the investors (except Anchor Investors) applying in a public issue 

shall use only Application Supported by Blocked Amount (ASBA) process for application providing details of the bank 

account which will be blocked by the Self Certified Syndicate Banks (SCSBs) for the same. Further, pursuant to SEBI 

Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 01, 2018, Retail Individual Investors applying in 

public issue may use either Application Supported by Blocked Amount (ASBA) facility for making application or also can 

use UPI as a payment mechanism with Application Supported by Blocked Amount for making application. For details in 

this regards, specific attention was invited to the section titled ñIssue Procedureò beginning on page 258 of this Prospectus. 

 

The process of Book Building under the SEBI ICDR Regulations is subject to change from time to time and the investors 

were advised to make their own judgment about investment through this process prior to making a Bid or application in the 

Issue. 

 

For further details on the method and procedure for Bidding, please see section titled ñIssue Procedureò on page 258 of 

this Prospectus 

 

Illustration of the Book Building and Price Discovery Process: Bidders should note that this example is solely for 

illustrative purposes and is not specific to the Issue; it also excludes Bidding by Anchor Investors. Bidders can bid at any 

price within the Price Band. For instance, assume a Price Band of 20 to  24 per share, Issue size of 3,000 Equity Shares 

and receipt of five Bids from Bidders, details of which are shown in the table below. The illustrative book given below 

shows the demand for the Equity Shares of the Issuer at various prices and is collated from Bids received from various 

investors. 

 

Bid Quantity  Bid Amount ( ) Cumulative Quantity Subscription 

500 24 500 16.67% 

1000 23 1500 50.00% 

1500 22 3,000 100.00% 

2000 21 5000 166.67% 

2500 20 7500 250.00% 

 

The price discovery is a function of demand at various prices. The highest price at which the Issuer is able to Issue the 

desired number of Equity Shares is the price at which the book cuts off, i.e.,  22.00 in the above example. The Issuer, in 

consultation with the BRLM, may finalise the Issue Price at or below such Cut-Off Price, i.e., at or below  22.00. All Bids 

at or above this Issue Price and cut-off Bids are valid Bids and are considered for allocation in the respective categories. 

 

Steps to be taken by the Bidders for Bidding: 

 

¶ Check eligibility for making a Bid (see section titled ñIssue Procedureò on page 291 of this Prospectus); 

¶ Ensure that you have a demat account and the demat account details are correctly mentioned in the Bid cum Application 

Form; 

¶ Ensure correctness of your PAN, DP ID and Client ID mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form. Based on these 

parameters, the Registrar to the Issue will obtain the Demographic Details of the Bidders from the Depositories. 

¶ Except for Bids on behalf of the Central or State Government officials, residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed 

by the courts, who may be exempt from specifying their PAN for transacting in the securities market, for Bids of all 

values ensure that you have mentioned your PAN allotted under the Income Tax Act in the Bid cum Application Form. 

The exemption for Central or State Governments and officials appointed by the courts and for investors residing in 

Sikkim is subject to the Depositary Participantôs verification of the veracity of such claims of the investors by collecting 

sufficient documentary evidence in support of their claims. 

¶ Ensure that the Bid cum Application Form is duly completed as per instructions given in this Prospectus and in the Bid 

cum Application Form 

 

BID/ ISSUE PROGRAMME 

 

An indicative timetable in respect of the Issue is set out below: 

 

Event Indicative Dates 

Bid/ Issue Opened Date Monday, September 25, 2023 

Bid/ Issue Closed Date Wednesday, September 27, 2023(1) 

Finalization of Basis of Allotment with the Designated Stock Exchange On or about Wednesday, October 04, 
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2023 

Initiation Refunds (if any, for Anchor Investors) / Unblocking of Funds from 

ASBA Account * 

On or about Thursday, October 05, 2023 

Credit of Equity Shares to Demat Accounts of Allottees On or about Friday, October 06, 2023 

Commencement of Trading of The Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange On or about Monday, October 09, 2023 

 
(1) The Anchor Investor Bid/Offer Period was one Working Day prior to the Bid/Offer Opening Date, i.e., September 22, 

2023. 

 

The above timetable is indicative and does not constitute any obligation on our Company or the Book Running Lead 

Manager. Whilst our Company shall ensure that all steps for the completion of the necessary formalities for the listing and 

the commencement of trading of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange are taken within 6 Working Days of the Bid/ 

Issue Closing Date, the timetable may change due to various factors, such as extension of the Bid/ Issue Period by our 

Company, revision of the Price Band or any delays in receiving the final listing and trading approval from the Stock 

Exchange. The Commencement of trading of the Equity Shares will be entirely at the discretion of the Stock Exchange and 

in accordance with the applicable laws. 

 

Bid Cum Application Forms and any revisions to the same were accepted only between 10.00 A.M. to 5.00 P.M. (IST) 

during the Issue Period (except for the Bid/ Issue Closing Date). On the Bid/ Issue Closing Date, the Bid Cum Application 

Forms were accepted only between 10.00 A.M. to 3.00 P.M. (IST) for retail and non-retail Bidders.  

 

Due to the limitation of time available for uploading the Bid Cum Application Forms on the Bid/Issue Closing Date, Bidders 

were advised to submit their applications one (1) day prior to the Bid/ Issue Closing Date and, in any case, not later than 

3.00 P.M. (IST) on the Bid/ Issue Closing Date. Any time mentioned in this Prospectus is IST. Bidders are cautioned that, 

in the event a large number of Bid Cum Application Forms are received on the Bid/Issue Closing Date, as is typically 

experienced in public Issue, some Bid Cum Application Forms may not get uploaded due to the lack of sufficient time. 

Such Bid Cum Application Forms that cannot be uploaded will not be considered for allocation under this Issue. 

Applications will be accepted only on Working Days, i.e., Monday to Friday (excluding any public holidays). Neither our 

Company nor the BRLM is liable for any failure in uploading the Bid Cum Application Forms due to faults in any 

software/hardware system or otherwise. 

 

In accordance with SEBI ICDR Regulations, QIBs and Non-Institutional Applicants were not allowed to withdraw or lower 

the size of their Application (in terms of the quantity of the Equity Shares or the Application amount) at any stage. Retail 

Individual Applicants could revise or withdraw their Bid Cum Application Forms prior to the Bid/ Issue Closing Date. 

Allocation to Retail Individual Applicants, in this Issue will be on a proportionate basis 

 

In case of discrepancy in the data entered in the electronic book vis-à-vis the data contained in the physical Bid Cum 

Application Form, for a particular Applicant, the details as per the file received from Stock Exchange may be taken as the 

final data for the purpose of Allotment. In case of discrepancy in the data entered in the electronic book vis-à-vis the data 

contained in the physical or electronic Bid Cum Application Form, for a particular ASBA Applicant, the Registrar to the 

Issue shall ask the relevant SCSBs/ RTAs / DPs / stock brokers, as the case may be, for the rectified data.  

 

UNDERWRITING AGREEMENT  

 

Our Company and the Book Running Lead Manager to the Issue hereby confirm that, this Issue is 100% underwritten by 

the Underwriter.  

 

Pursuant to the terms of the Underwriting Agreement dated September 16, 2023, obligations of the Underwriter is subject 

to certain conditions specified therein. 

 

The Underwriter has indicated its intention to underwrite the following number of Equity Shares being offered through this 

Issue: 

 

Details of the Underwriter  
No. of shares 

Underwritten*  

Amount 

Underwritten 

(  in Lakhs) 

% of the Total 

Issue Size 

Underwritten  

INDORIENT FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED  

Registered Office Address: A/501, Rustomjee Central Park, 

Executive Spaces, Andheri Kurla Road, Chakala, Mumbai ï 

400093, Maharashtra, India. 

Tel No.: +91-79772 12186 

E-mail:  compliance-ifsl@indorient.in  

Investor Grievance Email: wecare@indorient.in   

Website: www.indorient.in   

84,96,000 3,993.12 

 

 

 

100 

 

 

 

mailto:wecare@indorient.in
http://www.indorient.in/
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Contact Person: Mr. Ivor Anil Misquith 

SEBI Registration No.: INM000012661 

CIN:  U67190DL1993PLC052085 
* Includes 426,000 Equity shares for cash of the Market Maker Reservation Portion which are to be subscribed by the 

Market Maker in its own account in order to claim compliance with the requirements of Regulation 261 of the ICDR 

Regulations, as amended. 

 

As per Regulation 260 of ICDR Regulations, the Book Running Lead Manager has agreed to underwrite to a minimum 

extent of 15% of the Issue out of its own account. 

 

In the opinion of the Board, the resources of the above-mentioned Underwriter are sufficient to enable them to discharge 

their respective underwriting obligations in full. 

 

Changes in Auditors during last 3 Years 

 

M/s. Abhilashi & Co. are appointed as Peer Review Auditors of our Company in compliance with Regulation 229 (3) (b) 

of Chapter IX of ICDR Regulations and hold a valid peer review certificate no. 015237 dated April 28,2023 issued by the 

ñPeer Review Boardò of the ICAI. 

 

Except as mentioned below, there has been no change in the auditors of our Company during the last 3 years: 

 

Sr. 

No. 
Particulars of Auditor  

Date of 

change 
Reason 

1.  M/s. Abhilashi & Co.  

Chartered Accountants 

Shop No. 4, Near Income Tax Office, Model Town Road, 

Jalandhar City, Punjab-14401, India 

Tel: +91 97812 66999 

E-mail:  abhilashi.inderjit@gmail.com  

Contact Person: CA Kuljeet Singh  

Firm Registration No: 016025N 

Membership No: 530259 

Peer Review Certificate No: 015237 

July 10, 

2023 

Appointment as the Statutory 

Auditors of the Company 

2.  M/s. Abhilashi & Co.  

Chartered Accountants 

Shop No. 4, Near Income Tax Office, Model Town Road, 

Jalandhar City, Punjab-14401, India 

Tel: +91 97812 66999 

E-mail:  abhilashi.inderjit@gmail.com  

Contact Person: CA Kuljeet Singh  

Firm Registration No: 016025N 

Membership No: 530259 

Peer Review Certificate No: 015237 

April 25, 

2023 

Appointment as the Statutory 

Auditors of the Company due to 

casual vacancy. 

3.  R Manmohan & Associates, Chartered Accountant 

605, 10th Cross, 7th Block, Jayanagar, Bangalore, 

Karnataka-KA, 560070, India  

Tel: +91 9880173407 

E-mail:  manmohan_r@hotmail.com  

Contact Person: Rajagopal Manmohan 

Membership No: 212570  

Firm Registration No: 023546S 

Peer Review No.: NA 

March 03, 

2023 

Resignation due to pre occupation 

in other assignments and other 

internal reasons. 

4.  R Manmohan & Associates, Chartered Accountant 

605, 10th Cross, 7th Block, Jayanagar, Bangalore, 

Karnataka-KA, 560070, India  

Tel: +91 9880173407 

E-mail:  manmohan_r@hotmail.com  

Contact Person: Rajagopal Manmohan 

Membership No: 212570  

Firm Registration No: 023546S 

Peer Review No.: NA 

September 

30, 2022 

Appointment as the Statutory 

Auditors of the Company.   

5.  R Manmohan & Associates, Chartered Accountant 

605, 10th Cross, 7th Block, Jayanagar, Bangalore, 

Karnataka-KA, 560070, India  

August, 16, 

2022 

Appointment as the Statutory 

Auditors of the Company due to 

casual vacancy  

mailto:abhilashi.inderjit@gmail.com
mailto:abhilashi.inderjit@gmail.com
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Tel: +91 9880173407 

E-mail:  manmohan_r@hotmail.com  

Contact Person: Rajagopal Manmohan 

Membership No: 212570  

Firm Registration No: 023546S 

Peer Review No.: NA 

6.  Jagadeesh Hebbar & Co., Chartered Accountant  

No. 51222 Prestige Falcon City Kanakapura Road, 

Anjanadri Layout Konanakunte, Bangalore, Karnataka 

560062, India  

Tel: +91 8553171847 

E-mail:  cahebbar@gmail.com  

Contact Person: Jagadeesh Hebbar 

Membership No: 242573  

Firm Registration No: 021634S 

Peer Review No.: NA 

June 01, 

2022 

Resignation due to pre occupation 

in other assignments and other 

internal reasons.  

7.  Jagadeesh Hebbar & Co., Chartered Accountant   

No. 51222 Prestige Falcon City Kanakapura Road, 

Anjanadri Layout Konanakunte, Bangalore, Karnataka 

560062, India  

Tel: +91 8553171847 

E-mail:  cahebbar@gmail.com  

Contact Person: Jagadeesh Hebbar 

Membership No: 242573  

Firm Registration No: 021634S 

Peer Review No.: NA 

November 

30, 2021 

Appointment as the Statutory 

Auditors of the Company. 

8.  R Manmohan & Associates, Chartered Accountant 

605, 10th Cross, 7th Block, Jayanagar, Bangalore, 

Karnataka-KA, 560070, India  

Tel: +91 9880173407 

E-mail:  manmohan_r@hotmail.com  

Contact Person: Rajagopal Manmohan 

Membership No: 212570  

Firm Registration No: 023546S 

Peer Review No.: NA 

November 

30, 2021 

Completion of   the   term of   

appointment of R Manmohan & 

Associates, Chartered Accountant    

as   first statutory    auditors    of    

the Company. 

9.  R Manmohan & Associates, Chartered Accountant 

605, 10th Cross, 7th Block, Jayanagar, Bangalore, 

Karnataka-KA, 560070, India  

Tel: +91 9880173407 

E-mail:  manmohan_r@hotmail.com  

Contact Person: Rajagopal Manmohan 

Membership No: 212570  

Firm Registration No: 023546S 

Peer Review No.: NA 

July 06, 

2020 

Appointment of first auditor by 

the Company. 

 

 

WITHDRAWAL OF THE ISSUE  

 

If our Company withdraws the Issue anytime after the Bid/ Issue Opening Date but before the allotment of Equity Shares, 

a public notice within 2 (two) working days of the Bid/ Issue Closing Date, providing reasons for not proceeding with the 

Issue shall be issued by our Company. The notice of withdrawal will be issued in the same newspapers where the pre- Issue 

advertisements have appeared and the Stock Exchange will also be informed promptly. The BRLM, through the Registrar 

to the Issue, will instruct the SCSBs to unblock the ASBA Accounts within 1 (one) working Day from the day of receipt of 

such instruction. 

 

If our Company withdraws the Issue after the Bid/ Issue Closing Date and subsequently decides to proceed with an Issue 

of the Equity Shares, our Company will have to file a fresh Draft Red Herring Prospectus with the stock exchange where 

the Equity Shares may be proposed to be listed. 

 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issue is subject to obtaining (i) the final listing and trading approvals of the Stock 

Exchange with respect to the Equity Shares issued through the Red Herring Prospectus, which our Company will apply for 

only after Allotment; and (ii) the filing of Red Herring Prospectus/ Prospectus with RoC. 
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DETAILS OF THE MARKET MAKING ARRANGEMENT FOR THIS ISSUE  

 

Our Company has entered into Market Making Agreement dated August 25, 2023, with the Book Running Lead Manager 

and Market Maker to fulfill the obligations of Market Making. 

 

Name Nikunj Stock Brokers Limited 

Registered Office Address A-92. Ground Floor, Left Portion. Kamla Nagar, New Delhi - 110007 

Tel No.:  011-47030017-18/9999492292 

E-mail:   complianceofficer@nikunjonline.com 

Website:  https://www.nikunjonline.com/   

Contact Person:  Mr. Anupam Suman 

SEBI Registration  INZ000169335 

CIN:  U74899DL19941PLC060413 

NSE Market Maker 

Registration No. 

NSE/MEM/278/06913 

 

Market Maker Registration No. (SME Segment of NSE ï NSE EMERGE):  

 

Nikunj Stock Brokers Limited, registered with EMERGE platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited will act as 

the Market Maker and has agreed to receive or deliver of the specified securities in the market making process for a period 

of three years from the date of listing of our Equity Shares or for a period as may be notified by any amendment to SEBI 

ICDR Regulations. 

 

The Market Maker shall fulfil the applicable obligations and conditions as specified in the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as 

amended from time to time and the circulars issued by National Stock Exchange of India Limited and SEBI in this matter 

from time to time. 

 

Following is a summary of the key details pertaining to the Market Making arrangement:  

 

(i) The Market Maker(s) (individually or jointly) shall be required to provide a 2-way quote for 75% of the time in a 

day. The same shall be monitored by the stock exchange. Further, the Market Maker(s) shall inform the exchange in 

advance for each and every black out period when the quotes are not being offered by the Market Maker(s). 

 

(ii)  The prices quoted by Market Maker shall be in compliance with the Market Maker Spread Requirements and other 

particulars as specified or as per the requirements of the NSE Emerge (SME platform of NSE) and SEBI from time 

to time. 

 

(iii)  The minimum depth of the quote shall be 1,00,000/-. However, the investors with holdings of value less than  

1,00,000/- shall be allowed to offer their holding to the Market Maker(s) (individually or jointly) in that scrip 

provided that he sells his entire holding in that scrip in one lot along with a declaration to the effect to the selling 

broker. 

 

(iv) The Market Maker shall not sell in lots less than the minimum contract size allowed for trading on the NSE Emerge 

(in this case currently the minimum trading lot size is 3,000 equity shares; however the same may be changed by the 

NSE Emerge from time to time). 

 

(v) After a period of three (3) months from the market making period, the Market Maker would be exempted to provide 

quote if the Shares of Market Maker in our company reaches to 25% of Issue Size. Any Equity Shares allotted to 

Market Maker under this Issue over and above 25% of Issue Size would not be taken in to consideration of computing 

the threshold of 25% of Issue Size. As soon as the Shares of Market Maker in our Company reduces to 24% of Issue 

Size, the Market Maker will resume providing 2 way quotes.  

 

(vi) There shall be no exemption/ threshold on downside. However, in the event the Market Maker exhausts his inventory 

through market making process, NSE may intimate the same to SEBI after due verification. 

 

(vii)  Execution of the order at the quoted price and quantity must be guaranteed by the Market Maker(s), for the quotes 

given by him. 

 

(viii)  There would not be more than five Market Makers for a scrip at any point of time and the Market Makers may 

compete with other Market Makers for better quotes to the investors. 

 

(ix) On the first day of the listing, there will be pre-opening session (call auction) and there after the trading will happen 

as per the equity market hours. The circuits will apply from the first day of the listing on the discovered price during 

the pre-open call auction. 

https://www.nikunjonline.com/
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(x) The Market maker may also be present in the opening call auction, but there is no obligation on him to do so. 

 

(xi) There will be special circumstances under which the Market Maker may be allowed to withdraw temporarily/fully 

from the market ï for instance due to system problems, any other problems. All controllable reasons require prior 

approval from the Exchange, while force-majeure will be applicable for non-controllable reasons. The decision of 

the Exchange for deciding controllable and non-controllable reasons would be final. 

 

(xii)  The Market Maker(s) shall have the right to terminate said arrangement by giving a 3 (three) monthsô notice or on 

mutually acceptable terms to the Merchant Banker, who shall then be responsible to appoint a replacement Market 

Maker(s) and execute a fresh arrangement. In case of termination of the above mentioned Market Making agreement 

prior to the completion of the compulsory Market Making period, it shall be the responsibility of the BRLM to 

arrange for another Market Maker in replacement during the term of the notice period being served by the Market 

Maker but prior to the date of releasing the existing Market Maker from its duties in order to ensure compliance with 

the requirements of regulation 261 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as amended. Further our Company and the BRLM 

reserve the right to appoint other Market Makers either as a replacement of the current Market Maker or as an 

additional Market Maker subject to the total number of Designated Market Makers does not exceed five or as 

specified by the relevant laws and regulations applicable at that particulars point of time. The Market Making 

Agreement is available for inspection at our office from 10.00 A.M. to 5.00 P.M. on working days. 

 

(xiii)  Risk containment measures and monitoring for Market Makers: NSE Emerge will have all margins, which 

are applicable on NSE main board viz., Mark-to-Market, Value-At-Risk (VAR) Margin, Extreme Loss Margin, 

Special Margins and Base Minimum Capital etc. NSE can impose any other margins as deemed necessary from time-

to-time. 

 

(xiv) Punitive Action in case of default by Market Makers: NSE Emerge will monitor the obligations on a real time 

basis and punitive action will be initiated for any exceptions and/or non-compliances. Penalties/ fines may be 

imposed by the Exchange on the Market Maker, in case he is not able to provide the desired liquidity in a particular 

security as per the specified guidelines. These penalties/ fines will be set by the Exchange from time to time. The 

Exchange will impose a penalty on the Market Maker in case he is not present in the market (offering two way 

quotes) for at least 75% of the time. The nature of the penalty will be monetary as well as suspension in market 

making activities/ trading membership. The Department of Surveillance and Supervision of the Exchange would 

decide and publish the penalties/ fines/ suspension for any type of misconduct/ manipulation/ other irregularities by 

the Market Maker from time to time. 

 

(xv) Price Band and Spreads: The price band shall be 20% and the market maker spread (difference between the sell 

and the buy quote) shall be within 10% or as intimated by Exchange from time to time. 

 

(xvi) Pursuant to SEBI Circular number CIR/MRD/DSA/31/2012 dated November 27, 2012, limits on the upper side 

for market makers during market making process has been made applicable, based on the Issue size and as follows: 

 
 

 
Issue Size 

Buy quote exemption 

threshold (including mandatory  

initial inventory of 5% of the 

Issue Size) 

Re-Entry threshold for  buy 

quote (including mandatory initial 

inventory  of 5% of the Issue Size) 

Up to  20 Crore 25% 24% 

 20 Crore to  50 Crore 20% 19% 

 50 Crore to  80 Crore 15% 14% 

Above  80 Crore 12% 11% 

 

The SEBI Circular bearing reference no: CIR/MRD/DP/ 02/2012 dated January 20, 2012, has laid down that for issue size 

up to  250 crores, the applicable price bands for the first day shall be: 

 

a) In case equilibrium price is discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading session shall be 5% 

of the equilibrium price. 

 

b) In case equilibrium price is not discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading session shall be 

5% of the issue price. 
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Additionally, the securities of the Company will be placed in SPOS and would remain in Trade for Trade settlement for 

first 10 days from commencement of trading. The following spread will be applicable on the SME platform. 

 

No. Market Price Slab (In  ) Proposed Spread (in % to Sale price) 

1 Up to 50 9 

2 50 to 75 8 

3 75 to 100 6 

4 Above 100 5 

 

All the above mentioned conditions and systems regarding the Market Making Arrangement are subject to change based 

on changes or additional regulations and guidelines from SEBI and Stock Exchange from time to time. 
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SECTION VI: CAPITAL STRUCTURE  

 

 

The Equity Share capital of our Company, as on the date of this Prospectus and after giving effect to the Issue is set forth 

below: 

               Amount (  in lakhs, except share data) 

Sr. 

No

. 

Particulars Aggregate 

value at face 

value 

( ) 

Aggregate value 

at Issue Price*  

( ) 

A.  AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL (1)   

 3,40,00,000 Equity Shares having face value of  5/-each 1,700.00 - 

 

B.  ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL 

BEFORE THE ISSUE 

  

 2,36,87,472 Equity Shares having face value of  5/-each  1,184.37 - 

 

C.  PRESENT ISSUE IN TERMS OF THIS PROSPECTUS   

 84,96,000 Equity Shares having Face Value of  5/-each at a Premium 

of  42 per share (2) 

424.80 3,993.12 

 Consisting:   

D.  Reservation for Market Maker  ï  

4,26,000 Equity Shares reserved as Market Maker Reservation Portion 

at a price of  47 per Equity Share 

21.30 200.22 

E.  Net Issue to the Public ï  

80,70,000 Equity Shares at a price of  47 per Equity Share 

403.50 3,792.90 

 Of the Net Issue to the Public: (3)   

 At least 28,26,000 Equity Shares aggregating to  1,328.22 lakhs will 

be available for allocation to Retail Individual Investors 

141.30 1,328.22 

 At least 12,12,000 Equity Shares aggregating to  569.64 lakhs will be 

available for allocation to Non-Institutional Investors 

60.60 569.64 

 Not more than 40,32,000 Equity Shares aggregating up to  1,895.04 

lakhs will be available for allocation to Qualified Institutional Buyers, 

five per cent. Of which shall be allocated to mutual funds. 

201.60 1,895.04 

 

F.   ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL 

AFTER THE ISSUE  

  

 3,21,83,472 Equity Shares of face value of  5/- each  1,609.17 

 

G.  SECURITIES PREMIUM ACCOUNT   

 Before the Issue (as on date of this Prospectus) Nil  

 After the Issue 3,568.32 

   *Subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment.  

 

(1) For details in relation to the changes in the authorised share capital of our Company, please refer the section titled 

óHistory and Certain Other Corporate Matters ï Amendments to the Memorandum of Associationô beginning on page 

142 of this Prospectus. 

(2) The Issue has been authorised by our Board vide a resolution passed at its meeting held on July 07, 2023 and by the 

shareholders of our Company vide a special resolution passed pursuant to Section 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 

2013 at the AGM held on July 10, 2023. 

(3) For detailed information on the Net Issue and its allocation various categories, please refer the section titled óThe 

Issueô beginning on page 51 of this Prospectus 

  

Class of the Shares:  

 

Our Company has only one class of share capital i.e. equity shares of face value of  5/- each and all Equity Shares are 

ranked pari-passu in all respect. All Equity Shares issued are fully paid-up as on date of this Prospectus.  

 

Except employee stock options granted pursuant to the Newjaisa ESOP Scheme 2023, there are no outstanding convertible 

securities or any warrant, option or right to convert a debenture, loan or other instrument which would entitle any person 

any option to receive Equity Shares, as on the date of this Prospectus. 
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NOTES TO CAPITAL STRUCTURE  

 

1. Details of changes in authorised share capital: 

 

Since the incorporation of our Company, the authorised share capital of our Company has been altered in the manner 

set forth below: 

 

Particulars of change Date of Shareholders 

Meeting 
AGM/EGM  

From To 

The authorized share capital of our Company on incorporation 

comprised of  10,00,000/-consisting of 100,000 Equity Shares of  

10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each. 

On Incorporation 
__ 

 

 10,00,000/- consisting of 

100,000 Equity Shares  10/- 

(Rupees Ten Only) each. 

 35,00,000/- consisting of 

3,50,000 Equity Shares of  10/- 

(Rupees Ten Only) each. 

March 02, 2021 EGM 

35,00,000/- consisting of 

3,50,000 Equity Shares  10/- 

(Rupees Ten Only) each. 

 36,00,000/- consisting of 

3,60,000 Equity Shares of  10/- 

(Rupees Ten Only) each. 

April 01, 2021 EGM 

 36,00,000/- consisting of 

3,60,000 Equity Shares  10/- 

(Rupees Ten Only) each. 

 15,00,00,000/- (Rupees 

Fifteen Crore only) divided into 

1,50,00,000 (One Crore Fifty 

Lakhs) equity shares of  10/- 

(Rupees Ten Only) each. 

May 04, 2023 EGM 

 15,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen 

Crore only) divided into 

1,50,00,000 (One Crore Fifty 

Lakhs) equity shares of  10/- 

(Rupees Ten Only) each. 

 15,00,00,000/- (Rupees 

Fifteen Crore only) divided into 

3,00,00,000 (Three Crore) 

equity shares of  5/- (Rupees 

Five Only) each. 

July 06, 2023 EGM 

 15,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen 

Crore only) divided into  

3,00,00,000 (Three Crore) equity 

shares of  5/- (Rupees Five 

Only) each. 

 17,00,00,000/- (Rupees 

Seventeen Crore only) divided 

into 3,40,00,000 (Three Crore) 

Forty Lakhs equity shares of  

5/- (Rupees Five Only) each. 

July 06, 2023 EGM 

 

2. History of Equity Share capital of our Company 

 

Date of allotment 

Number of 

Equity 

Shares 

allotted 

Face 

value 

per 

Equity 

Share 

( ) 

Issue price 

per Equity 

Share 

( ) 

Nature of 

considerati

on 

Nature of 

allotment 

Cumulative 

number of 

Equity 

Shares 

Cumulative 

paid-up 

Equity 

Share 

Capital 

( ) 

Incorporation  10,000 10 10 Cash 
Subscription 

of MOA(1) 
10,000 1,00,000/- 

September 02, 2021 3,50,000 10 
Not 

Applicable 
-- 

Bonus 

Shares(2) 
3,60,000 36,00,000/- 

June 05, 2023 22,056 10 2,267 Cash 
Preferential 

Issue(3) 
3,82,056 38,20,560/- 

Pursuant to a resolution of our Board dated July 3, 2023 and Shareholdersô resolution dated July 6, 2023, equity 

shares of face value of  10/- each of our Company were sub-divided into equity shares of face value of  5/- each. 

Consequently, the issued and subscribed share capital of our Company comprising 3,82,056 equity shares of face 

value of  10/- each was sub-divided into 7,64,112 equity shares of face value of  5 each. 

July 17, 2023 2,29,23,360 5 
Not 

Applicable 

Not 

applicable 

Bonus 

Shares(4) 
2,36,87,472 11,84,37,360 

 

(1) Initial subscribers to Memorandum of Association subscribed 10,000 Equity Shares at par as per the details given 

below:  

 

Sr. No.  Name of allottee No. of Equity Shares of Face 

value of  10/- each allotted 

1.   Mrs. Sukriti Vijay 8,000 

2.  Mrs. Prathibha 2,000 

 Total  10,000 
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(2) Bonus allotment of 3,50,000 Equity Shares by way of bonus issue to the existing shareholders in the ratio of 35 

Equity Shares for every 1 Equity Share held by capitalizing  35,00,000/- out of the free reserves of our Company 

and pursuant to the approvals received from our Board vide resolution dated August 09, 2021 and shareholders of 

our Company vide resolution dated August 30, 2021. The details of the allotment are as follows: 

 

Sr. No.  Name of allottee No. of Equity Shares of Face 

value of  10/- each allotted 

1.  Mrs. Sukriti Vijay  2,80,000 

2.   Mrs. Prathibha 70,000 

 Total 3,50,000 

 

(3) The details of preferential allotment of 22,056 Equity Shares made on June 05, 2023 are as follows:  

 

Sr. No.  Name of allottee No. of Equity Shares of Face 

value of  10/- each allotted 

1.  Negen Tech Opportunities Angel Fund 22,056 

 Total 22,056 

 

(4) Allotment of 2,29,23,360  Equity Shares by way of bonus issue to the existing shareholders in the ratio of 30 

Equity Shares for every 1 Equity Share held, on July 17, 2023, by capitalizing  11,46,16,800 out of the free 

reserves and securities  premium of our Company and pursuant to the approvals received from our Board vide 

resolution dated July 07, 2023 and shareholders of our Company vide resolution dated July 10, 2023. The details 

of the allotment are as follows: 

 

Sr. 

No.  

Name of allottee No. of Equity Shares of Face 

value of  5/- each allotted 

1.  Mr. Vishesh Handa 2,05,19,700 

2.  Mr. Mukunda Raghavendra 10,80,060 

3.  Mrs. Ankita Handa 60 

4.  Mrs. Kiran Handa 60 

5.  Mr. Arun Handa 60 

6.  Mr. Gaurav Gupta 60 

7.  Negen Tech Opportunities Angel Fund      13,23,360 

8.  Total  2,29,23,360 

 

3. Issue of shares for consideration other than cash or out of revaluation of reserves 

 

a. Our Company has not issued equity shares for consideration other than cash or out of revaluation of reserves at 

any time since incorporation, except as set out below: 

 

Name of the 

Allottee 

No. of 

Equity 

Shares 

Date of 

Allotment 

No. of 

Equity 

Shares 

Allotted 

Face 

Value 

per 

Equit

y 

Share 

( ) 

Issu

e 

Pric

e 

per 

Equi

ty 

Shar

e 

( ) 

Reason for 

Allotment 

Benefits 

occurred to 

our 

Company 

Mrs. Sukriti 

Vijay 
2,80,000 

September 

02, 2021 

3,50,000(1) 

 

10/- 

 

-- 

 

Bonus issue 

of equity 

shares in the 

ratio of 35:1 

Capitalizatio

n 

of reserves 

and 

surplus 
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Mrs. Prathibha 70,000 

i.e. 35 

Equity 

Shares for 

every 1 

Equity 

Share held 

 

 

Total  3,50,000 

Mr. Vishesh 

Handa 

2,05,19,700 

July 17, 

2023 
2,29,23,360(1) 

5/- 

 

-- 

 

Bonus issue 

of equity 

shares in the 

ratio of 30:1 

i.e. 30 

Equity 

Shares for 

every 1 

Equity 

Share held 

 

Capitalizatio

n of  

of reserves 

and 

surplus 

 

Mr. Mukunda 

Raghavendra 

10,80,060 

Mrs. Ankita 

Handa 

60 

Mrs. Kiran 

Handa 

60 

Mr. Arun Handa 60 

Mr. Gaurav 

Gupta 

60 

Negen Tech 

Opportunities 

Angel Fund      

13,23,360 

Total  2,29,23,360 
(1) Equity Shares were allotted to existing shareholders of our Company pursuant to a bonus issue, through 

capitalization of permitted reserves. 

 

4. Issue of Equity Shares at a price lower than the Issue Price in the last 1 (one) year 

 

Except as mentioned above in under point number 3(a) of óNotes to Capital Structureô, we have not issued any Equity 

Shares at price below Issue Price within last 1 year from the date of this Prospectus. 

 

5. Issue of preference shares or equity shares having superior voting rights 

 

Our Company does not have any preference share capital nor has our Company issued any equity shares having superior 

voting rights compared to all other Equity Shares issued, as on the date of this Prospectus.  

 

6. Issue of Equity Shares pursuant to schemes of arrangement 

 

No Equity Shares have been allotted pursuant to any scheme approved under Section 391-394 of the Companies Act, 

1956 or Section 230-240 of the Companies Act, 2013 as on the date of this Prospectus. 

 

7. Build-up of Promoterôs shareholding, Promoterôs contribution and lock-in  

 

(i) Build-up of Promoterôs shareholding  

 

As on the date of this Prospectus, our Promoters hold an aggregate of 2,23,19,938 Equity Shares, aggregating to 

94.23% of the issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company. For further details, see section 

titled ñOur Promoter and Promoter Groupò on page 167 of this Prospectus.:  

 

Date of 

allotment/ 

Transfer and 

when made 

fully paid -up*  

Nature of 

allotment 

No. of 

Equity 

Shares 

Natur

e of 

Consi

derati

on 

Face 

Value 

per 

Equity 

Share 

( ) 

Issue/ 

Transfe

r  Price 

per 

Equity 

Share 

( ) 

Shareholding % 

Pre-Issue Post-Issue 

Vishesh Handa 

February 18, 

2022 

Equity Shares 

Transferred from 

Mrs. Sukriti Vijay to 

Mr. Vishesh Handa 

by way of gift 

2,88,000 Gift 10/- -- 2.43  1.79 

February 10, 

2023 

Equity Shares 

Transferred from 

54,000 Cash 10/- 71.39/- 0.46  0.34 
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Mrs. Prathibha to 

Mr. Vishesh Handa 

May 04, 2023 

 

Equity Shares 

Transferred from 

Mr. Vishesh Handa 

to Mr. Mukunda 

Raghavendra 

(1) Cash 10/- 10/- (Negligible)  (Negligible)  

May 04, 2023 Equity Shares 

Transferred from 

Mr. Vishesh Handa 

to Mr. Arun Kumar 

Handa 

(1) Cash 10/- 10/- (Negligible) (Negligible)  

May 04, 2023 Equity Shares 

Transferred from 

Mr. Vishesh Handa 

to Mrs. Kiran Handa 

(1) Cash 10/- 10/- (Negligible)  (Negligible)  

May 04, 2023 Equity Shares 

Transferred from 

Mr. Vishesh Handa 

to Mrs. Ankita 

Handa 

(1) Cash 10/- 10/- (Negligible)  (Negligible)  

May 04, 2023 Equity Shares 

Transferred from 

Mr. Vishesh Handa 

to Mr. Gaurav 

Gupta 

(1) Cash 10/- 10/- (Negligible)  (Negligible)  

Pursuant to a resolution of our Board dated July 3, 2023 and Shareholdersô resolution dated July 6, 2023, equity 

shares of face value of  10/- each of our Company were sub-divided into equity shares of face value of  5/- each. 

Consequently, the issued and subscribed share capital of our Company comprising 3,82,056 equity shares of face 

value of  10/- each was sub-divided into 7,64,112 equity shares of face value of  5 each. 

July 17, 2023 Bonus Issue 2,05,19,7

00 

NA 5/- Nil  86.63 63.76 

        

Total (A) 2,12,03,6

90 

   89.51 65.88 

 

Mukunda Raghavendra 

May 04, 2023 Equity Share 

Transferred from 

Mr. Vishesh Handa 

to Mr, Mukunda 

Raghavendra  

1 Cash 10/- 10/- Negligible Negligible 

June 19, 2023 Equity Share 

Transferred from 

Mrs. Prathibha to 

Mr. Mukunda 

Raghavendra 

18,000 Gift 10/- -- 0.15 0.11 

Pursuant to a resolution of our Board dated July 3, 2023 and Shareholdersô resolution dated July 6, 2023, equity 

shares of face value of  10/- each of our Company were sub-divided into equity shares of face value of  5/- each. 

Consequently, the issued and subscribed share capital of our Company comprising 3,82,056 equity shares of face 

value of  10/- each was sub-divided into 7,64,112 equity shares of face value of  5 each. 

July 17, 2023 Bonus Issue 10,80,06

0 

NA 5/- Nil  4.56 3.36 

Total (B)  

11,16,06

2 

   4.71  3.47 

 

Total (A+B) 2,23,19,7

52 

   94.22  69.35 

*All Equity Shares allotted to our Promoter were fully paid-up at the time of allotment 

 

Our Promoter have confirmed to our Company and the Book Running Lead Manager that the Equity Shares held 

 by our Promoter have been financed from their owned funds and no loans or financial assistance from any bank 

or financial institution has been availed of by them for such purpose. 
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(ii)  Details of Promotersô contribution locked in for 3 years: 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 236 and 238 of SEBI ICDR Regulations, an aggregate of 20% of the post issue capital held 

by our Promoters shall be considered as Promoterôs Contribution (ñPromoters Contributionò) and shall be locked-

in for a period of three years from the date of allotment of Equity shares issued pursuant to this Issue. The lock in 

of Promoterôs Contribution would be created as per applicable law and procedure and details of the same shall also 

be provided to the Stock Exchange before listing of the Equity Shares. 

 

As on the date of this Prospectus, our Promoters collectively hold 1,78,56,000 Equity Shares constituting 53.69% 

of the Post-Issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share Capital of our Company, which are eligible for the 

Promotersô contribution. 

 

Our Promoter, Mr. Vishesh Handa, has given written consent to include 64,36,695 Equity Shares held by him and 

subscribed by him as part of Promoters Contribution constituting 20% of the post issue Equity Shares of our 

Company. Further, he has agreed not to sell or transfer or pledge or otherwise dispose of in any manner, the 

Promoters contribution, for a period of three years from the date of allotment in the Issue. 

 

Name of 

the 

Promoter 

Number 

of Equity 

Shares 

locked-in 

Date of 

allotment of 

Equity 

Shares / Date 

of Transfer 

of Equity 

Shares 

Nature of 

allotment 

 

Face 

Value 

per 

Equit

y 

Share 

( ) 

Issue/ 

Acqui

sition/ 

Trans

fer 

Price 

( ) 

% of 

pre- 

Issue 

shareho

lding 

% of 

post- 

Issue 

shareh

olding 

Date up 

to which 

Equity 

Shares 

are 

subject 

to lock-

in 

 Vishesh 

Handa 

64,36,695 July 17, 2023 Bonus Issue 

in the ratio 

of 30:1 

5/- Nil  27.17 20.00 October 

15 2026 

Total  64,36,695      20.00  

 

The minimum Promoterôs contribution has been brought in to the extent of not less than the specified minimum 

lot and from persons defined as ñPromoterò under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. All Equity Shares, which are being 

locked in are not ineligible for computation of Minimum Promoters Contribution as per Regulation 237 of the 

SEBI ICDR Regulations and are being locked in for 3 years as per Regulation 238(a) of the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations i.e. for a period of three years from the date of allotment of Equity Shares in this issue. 

 

Eligibility of Share for Minimum Promoters Contribution in terms of clauses of Regulation 237(1) of SEBI 

ICDR Regulations 

 

Regulation. 

No. 

Promotersô Minimum Contribution Conditions Eligibility Status of Equity 

Shares forming part of 

Promoterôs Contribution 

237(1) (a) (i) Specified securities acquired during the preceding three 

years, if they are acquired for consideration other than 

cash and revaluation of assets or capitalization of 

intangible assets is involved in such transaction 

The minimum Promoterôs 

contribution does not consist of 

such Equity Shares. Hence 

Eligible 

237 (1) (a) (ii)  Specified securities acquired during the preceding three 

years, resulting from a bonus issue by utilization of 

revaluation reserves or unrealized profits of the issuer or 

from bonus issue against Equity Shares which are 

ineligible for minimum promotersô contribution 

The minimum Promoterôs 

contribution does not consist of 

such Equity Shares. Hence 

Eligible 

237 (1) (b) Specified securities acquired by promoters during the 

preceding one year at a price lower than the price at which 

specified securities are being offered to public in the 

initial public offer 

The minimum Promoterôs 

contribution does not consist of 

such Equity Shares. Hence 

Eligible 

237(1) (c) Specified securities allotted to promoter during the 

preceding one year at a price less than the issue price, 

against funds brought in by them during that period, in 

case of an issuer formed by conversion of one or more 

partnership firms, where the partners of the erstwhile 

partnership firms are the promoter of the issuer and there 

is no change in the management: Provided that specified 

securities, allotted to promoter against capital existing in 

The minimum Promoterôs 

contribution does not consist of 

such Equity Shares. Hence 

Eligible 
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such firms for a period of more than one year on a 

continuous basis, shall be eligible 

237 (1) (d) Specified securities pledged with any creditor. Our Promoters have not Pledged 

any shares with any creditors 

Accordingly, the minimum 

Promoterôs contribution does not 

consist of such Equity Shares. 

Hence Eligible. 

 

(iii)  Details of Promotersô Contribution Locked-in for One Year 

 

In terms of Regulation 238(b) and 239 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, in addition to the Minimum Promoters 

contribution which is locked in for three years, as specified above, the entire pre-issue equity share capital held by 

promoters constituting 1,58,83,057 Equity Shares shall be locked in for a period of one year from the date of 

allotment of Equity Shares in this Issue. 

 

In terms of Regulation 241 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Equity Shares which are subject to lock-in shall 

carry inscription ónon-transferableô along with the Ratio of specified non-transferable period mentioned in the face 

of the security certificate. The shares which are in dematerialized form, if any, shall be locked-in by the respective 

depositories. The details of lock-in of the Equity Shares shall also be provided to the Designated Stock Exchange 

before the listing of the Equity Shares.  

 

(iv) The lock-in of Equity Shares held by Negen Tech Opportunities Angel Fund, SEBI Registered Category-I 

Alternative Investment Fund, shall be for a period of one year from the date of allotment. The details of the lock in 

are as follows:   

 

Sr. 

No.  

Nature of allotment  Date of allotment  No. of Equity Shares of 

Face value of  5/- each 

shall be locked in 

Date up to which 

Equity Shares are 

subject to lock-in 

1. Preferential Issue  June 05, 2023 44,112* June 05, 2024 

2. Bonus Issue**   July 17, 2023 13,23,360 July 17, 2024 

 Total  13,67,472  

*Post split of the face value of Equity Shares from  10 per equity share to  5 per equity share  

* *  Bonus Issue in the ratio of 30:1 

 

(v) Other requirements in respect of lock-in 

 

a) Inscription or Recording of non-transferability:  

 

In terms of Regulation 241 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company shall ensure that the lock in is 

recorded by the Depositories for pre-IPO Equity Shares which are in dematerialized form. 

 

b) Pledge of Locked-in Equity Shares: 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 242 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the locked-in Equity Shares held by our 

Promoters, can be pledged with any scheduled commercial banks or public financial institutions as collateral 

security for loans granted by such scheduled commercial banks or financial institutions or a systemically 

important non-banking finance company or a housing finance company as collateral security, provided that:  

 

i. If the Equity Shares are locked-in in terms of clause (a) of Regulation 238, the loan has been granted 

to the Issuer or its Subsidiary for the purpose of financing one or more of the objects of the Issue  

and pledge of Equity Shares is one of the terms of sanction of the loan;  

 

ii.  If the Equity Shares are locked-in in terms of clause (b) of Regulation 238 and the pledge of specified 

securities is one of the terms of sanction of the loan. 

 

Provided that such lock-in shall continue pursuant to the invocation of the pledge and such transferee shall 

not be eligible to transfer the Equity Shares till the lock-in period stipulated in these Regulations has expired. 

 

c) Transfer of Locked-in Equity Shares: 

 

In terms of Regulation 243 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Equity Shares held by our Promoters which 

are locked-in as per the provisions of Regulation 238 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, may be transferred to 

and amongst Promoters or persons/ members of the Promoter Group or to a new promoter or persons in 
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control of our Company, subject to continuation of lock-in in the hands of transferees for the remaining 

period and compliance of SEBI SAST Regulations, as applicable.  

 

In terms of Regulation 243 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Equity Shares held by persons other than our 

Promoters and Promoter Group prior to the Issue may be transferred to any other person holding the Equity 

Shares which are locked-in as per Regulation 239 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, subject to continuation of 

the lock-in in the hands of the transferees for the remaining period and compliance with the SEBI SAST 

Regulations, as applicable.  

 

 



 

Page 78 of 329 

 

 

8. Our Shareholding Pattern 

 

The table below represents the shareholding pattern of our Company as per Regulation 31 of SEBI Listing Regulations: 

 

Summary of Shareholding Pattern as on date of this Prospectus:  
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(I)  (II)  (III)  (IV)  (V) (VI)  (VII) = (IV) 

+ (V) + (VI) 

(VIII)  (IX)  (X) (XI) = (VII)+(X)  (XII)  (XIII)  (XIV)  

(A) Promoter and Promoter 

Group 

5 2,23,19,938 --- --- 2,23,19,938 94.23 2,23,19,938 2,23,19,938 94.23 --- --- --- --- --- --- 2,23,19,938 

(B) Public 2 13,67,534 --- --- 13,67,534 5.77 13,67,534 13,67,534 5.77 --- --- --- --- --- --- 13,67,534 

(C) Non Promoter- Non 

Public 

--- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- 

(C1) Shares underlying DRs --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- 

(C2) Shares held by Employee 

Trusts 

--- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- 

 Total 7 2,36,87,472 --- --- 2,36,87,472 100 2,36,87,472 2,36,87,472 100 Nil  Nil  --- --- --- --- 2,36,87,472 

 Note:  

a) As on the date of this Prospectus 1 Equity Share holds 1 vote. 

b) PAN of the shareholders have been provided by our Company prior to listing of Equity Share on the Designated Stock Exchange. 

c) Our Company will file the shareholding pattern of our Company, in the form prescribed under Regulation 31 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 1 day prior to the listing of the Equity 

Shares. The shareholding pattern will be uploaded on the website of the NSE before commencement of trading of such Equity Shares.  

d) The term ñEncumbranceò has the same meaning as assigned under Regulation 28(3) of SEBI SAST Regulations. 

e) All pre-IPO Equity Shares of our Company will be locked-in prior to listing of Equity Shares on SME Platform of NSE.  
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9. Details of Equity Shares held by our Directors and Key Managerial Personnel  

 

a. Except as set out below, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of our Company are holding any Equity 

Shares and employee stock options in our Company: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Name Designation No. of 

Equity 

Shares 

% of the pre-

Issue Equity 

Share capital 

Number of 

employee 

stock options 

outstanding 

% of the post-

Issue 

expanded 

Equity Share 

Capital 

1.  Vishesh Handa Managing 

Director 

2,12,03,690  89.51 NA 65.88 

2.  Mukunda 

Raghavendra 

Whole Time 

Director 

11,16,062 4.71 NA 3.47 

3.  Ankita Handa Non Executive 

Director 

62 Negligible NA Negligible 

4.  Ashish Nirmal CFO NIL  NIL  11,650 NIL 

Total 2,23,19,814  11,650 69.35 

 

10. Acquisition and sale/transfer of Equity Shares by our Promoters, members of the Promoter Group, or the Directors 

and their relatives in last 6 months: 

 

Except as disclosed below, none of the members of the Promoter Group, the Promoters, or the Directors and their relatives 

have purchased or sold any securities of our Company during the period of six months immediately preceding the date of 

this Prospectus: 

 

Date of 

transaction 

Name of  

 transferor 

Name of 

transferee 

Number of 

Equity Shares  

Face Value 

per Equity 

Share  

( ) 

Transfer Price / 

Issue price per 

Equity Share  

( ) 

May 04, 2023 Mr. Vishesh Handa Mr. Mukunda 

Raghavendra 

1 10/- 10/- 

May 04, 2023 Mr. Vishesh Handa Mr. Arun Kumar 

Handa 

1 10/- 10/- 

May 04, 2023 Mr. Vishesh Handa Mrs. Kiran Handa 1 10/- 10/- 

May 04, 2023 Mr. Vishesh Handa Mrs. Ankita 

Handa 

1 10/- 10/- 

May 04, 2023 Mr. Vishesh Handa Mr. Gaurav Gupta 1 10/- 10/- 

June 19, 2023 Mrs. Prathibha Mr. Mukunda 

Raghavendra 

18,000 10/- Nil *  

*Equity Shares transferred through gift. 

Date of 

Allotment  

Name  * *No. of Equity 

Shares  

Face Value per 

Equity Share ( ) 

Issue price per 

Equity Share ( ) 

July 17, 2023 

Mr. Vishesh Handa 2,05,19,700 5/- Nil  

Mr. Mukunda Raghavendra 10,80,060 5/- Nil  

Mrs. Ankita Handa 60 5/- Nil  

Mrs. Kiran Handa 60 5/- Nil  

Mr. Arun Handa 60 5/- Nil  

 Total 2,15,99,940   

* *  Allotment Equity Shares of  5/- each by way of bonus issue to the existing shareholders in the ratio of 30 Equity Shares 

of  5/- each for every 1 existing Equity Share of  5/- each 
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11. The average cost of acquisition of or subscription to Equity Shares by our Promoters is set forth in the table below: 

 

Name of our Promoters No. of Equity Shares 

held 

Average cost of 

acquisition (in ) 

Mr. Vishesh Handa 2,12,03,690 0.18 

Mr. Mukunda Raghavendra 11,16,062 0.000009 

 

12. None of the Equity Shares of our Company are subject to any pledge as on the date of this Prospectus. 

 

13. There are no other persons belonging to the category ñPerson Acting in Concertò who are holding the Equity Shares of our 
Company more than 5% of the total number of shares as on the date of this Prospectus. 

 

14. Except disclosed below, there are no persons belonging to the category ñPublicò who are holding the Equity Shares of our 

Company more than 1% of the total number of shares as on the date of this Prospectus. 

 

Name of Shareholders  Number of Equity 

Shares held 

% of the pre-Issue paid-up 

Equity Share Capital  

Negen Tech Opportunities Angel Fund  13,67,472 5.77 

Total 13,67,472 5.77 

 

15. Details of Major Shareholders 

 

a) As on the date of the filing of this Prospectus, our Company has 07 (seven) Shareholders who hold Equity Shares. 

 

b) List of shareholders holding 1% or more of the paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company as on date of this 

Prospectus:  

 

Name of Shareholders  Number of Equity 

Shares held 

% of the pre-Issue paid-up 

Equity Share Capital  

Mr. Vishesh Handa 2,12,03,690 89.51 

Mr. Mukunda Raghavendra 11,16,062 4.71 

Negen Tech Opportunities Angel Fund  13,67,472 5.77 

Total 2,36,87,224 99.99 

 

c) List of shareholders holding 1% or more of the Paid-up Capital of our Company as on a date 10 (ten) days prior to the 

date of this Prospectus:  

 

Name of Shareholders  Number of Equity 

Shares held 

% of the pre-Issue paid-up 

Equity Share Capital  

Mr. Vishesh Handa 2,12,03,690 89.51 

Mr. Mukunda Raghavendra 11,16,062 4.71 

Negen Tech Opportunities Angel Fund 13,67,472 5.77 

Total  2,36,87,224 99.99 

 

d) List of shareholders holding 1% or more of the paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company as on a date 1 (one) year 

prior to the date of this Prospectus. 

 

Name of Shareholders  Number of Equity 

Shares of held 

% of the pre-Issue paid-up 

Equity Share Capital  

Mr. Vishesh Handa 2,88,000 80 

Mrs. Prathibha 72,000 20 

Total  3,60,000 100 
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e) List of shareholders holding 1% or more of the paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company 2 (two) years prior to the 

date of filing of this Prospectus: 

 

Name of Shareholders  Number of Equity 

Shares held 

% of the pre-Issue paid-up 

Equity Share Capital  

Ms. Sukrithi Vijay  2,88,000 80 

Mrs. Prathibha 72,000 20 

Total  3,60,000 100 

 

16.   Newjaisa ESOP Scheme 2023   

 

Our Company pursuant to the resolutions passed by our Board on July 03, 2023 and shareholders on July 06, 2023, has 

adopted the Newjaisa ESOP Scheme 2023. Our Company may grant an aggregate number of up to 16,09,174 employee 

stock options under the Newjaisa ESOP Scheme 2023. Upon exercise and payment of the exercise price, the option holder 

will be entitled to be allotted 16,09,174 Equity Share per employee stock option. Accordingly, the number of Equity Shares 

that may be issued under the Newjaisa ESOP Scheme 2023 shall not exceed 16,09,174 equity shares of face value  5/- 

each. The Newjaisa ESOP Scheme 2023 is effective from July 06, 2023. The objectives of Newjaisa ESOP Scheme 2023 

are, among others, to get a share in the value that they help to create for the Company over a period of time, to attract and 

retain talented people, who add to the strength of the Company and to reward employees for good performance in the past 

and to motivate similar performance in the future.  

 

The Newjaisa ESOP Scheme 2023 has been framed in compliance with the SEBI SBEBSE Regulations. As on the date of 

this Prospectus, options have been granted by our Company under the Newjaisa ESOP Scheme 2023. The details of the 

Newjaisa ESOP Scheme 2023 are as follows:  

 

Particulars Details 

Options granted 16,00,992 

Exercise price on options (in )  5/- per employee stock option 

Vesting period Minimum vesting period is 1 year from the date of grant of options,  

Options vested and not exercised Nil  

Options exercised Nil  

The total number of Equity Shares arising as a 

result of exercise of options 

16,00,992, assuming all grants are accepted and exercised. As on the 

date of this Prospectus, no options have been exercised. 

Options forfeited/lapsed Nil  

Variation of terms of options Nil  

Money realized by exercise of options Nil  

Total number of options in force as of 

September 29, 2023 

16,00,992 

Employee-wise detail of options granted to:  

i. Key Managerial Personnel Name of the KMP No. of options 

Mr. Ashish Nirmal  11,650 
 

  

ii.  Senior Managerial Personnel Name of the SMP No. of options 

Mr. Sharadkumar Somani 9,65,504 
 

  

iii.  Any other employee who received a grant 

in any one year of options amounting to 

5%  or  more  of  the options granted during 

the year 

Name of the employee No. of options %  

Mr. Sharadkumar Somani 9,65,504    60.31 

Mrs. Richa Gupta 1,93,100 12.06 

Syed  2,41,376 15.08 

Total 13,99,980 87.44 
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iv. Identified employees who were   granted 

options during any one year equal to or 

exceeding 1% of the issued capital 

(excluding outstanding warrants and 

conversions) of our Company at the time 

of grant 

Name of the employee No. of options %  

Mr. Sharadkumar Somani 9,65,504 4.08 

Syed  2,41,376 1.02 

Total 11,58,604 4.89 

  

Fully diluted Earnings per Equity Share (face 

value  5/- per Equity Share) pursuant to issue 

of Equity Shares on exercise   of   options   

calculated   in   accordance   with applicable 

Accounting Standard for  óEarnings per Shareô 

Not Applicable since no options had been granted, vested or exercised 

as on March 31, 2023 

Lock-in None 

Difference, if any, between employee 

compensation cost calculated using the 

intrinsic value of stock options and the 

employee compensation cost calculated on the 

basis of fair value of stock options and its 

impact on profits and on the Earnings per 

Equity Share ï (face value  5/- per Equity 

Share) 

Not Applicable, since no options had been granted, vested or exercised 

as on March 31, 2023. Further, the employee compensation cost will 

be calculated on the basis of fair value of stock options 

Description    of    the    pricing    formula    

method and significant assumptions used 

during the year to estimate the fair values of 

options, including weighted-average 

information, namely, risk-free interest rate, 

expected life, expected volatility, expected 

dividends and the price of the underlying share 

in market at the time of grant of the option 

Intrinsic Value Method 

Impact on profit and Earnings per Equity Share 

ï (face value  5/- per Equity Share) of the last 

3 years if the accounting   policies   prescribed   

in   the   SEBI SBEBSE Regulations had been 

followed in respect of options granted in the 

last 3 years 

Not applicable since no options had been granted, vested or exercised 

as on March 31, 2023.  

Intention of the Key managerial personnel and 

Whole Time Directors who are holders of 

Equity Shares allotted on exercise of options 

granted to sell their Equity Shares within 3 

months after the date of listing of Equity Shares 

pursuant to the Issue 

Not applicable, since no option have been vested as on the date of this 

Prospectus. 

Intention to sell Equity Shares arising out of an 

employee stock option scheme within three 

months after the listing of Equity Shares, by 

Directors, senior management personnel and  

employees  having  Equity  Shares  arising out 

of an employee stock option scheme, 

amounting to more   than   1%   of   the   issued   

capital   (excluding outstanding warrants and 

conversions) 

Not applicable, since no option have been vested as on the date of this 

Prospectus. 

 

17. Neither the Book Running Lead Manager nor their associates (as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992) hold any Equity Shares of our Company as on the date of this Prospectus. 

 

18. There are no Equity Shares against which depository receipts have been issued. 
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19. Except for Equity Shares that may be allotted pursuant to the conversion of employee stock options granted under the 

Newjaisa ESOP Scheme 2023, the Equity Shares Allotted pursuant to the Issue, there will be no further issue of capital, 

whether by way of issue of bonus shares, preferential allotment, rights issue or in any other manner during the period 

commencing from the date of filing of this Prospectus until the listing of Equity Shares on the Designated Stock Exchange 

pursuant to this Issue. 

 

20. Our Company presently does not have any intention or proposal and is not under negotiations or considerations to alter our 

capital structure for a period of 6 months from the date of opening of the Issue, by way of split/ consolidation of the 

denomination of Equity Shares or further issue of Equity Shares (including issue of securities convertible into exchangeable, 

directly or indirectly, for our Equity Shares) whether on a preferential basis or by way of issue of bonus shares or on rights 

issue basis or by way of further public issue of Equity Shares or qualified institutions placements or otherwise. Provided, 

however, that the foregoing restrictions do not apply to: (a) the issuance of any Equity Shares under the Issue; and (b) any 

issuance, pursuant to the exercise of employee stock options under the Newjaisa ESOP Scheme 2023. Provided further that 

if our Company enters into acquisition(s) or Joint Venture(s) or if the business needs otherwise arise, we may, subject to 

necessary approvals, consider raising additional capital to fund such activities or to use Equity Shares as a currency for 

acquisition or participation in such Joint Ventures or for regulatory compliance or such other scheme of arrangement or any 

other purpose as the Board may deem fit, if an opportunity of such nature is determined by our Board to be in the interest 

of our Company.  

 

21. There have been no financing arrangements whereby our Promoters, Promoter Group, our Directors or their relatives have 

financed the purchase by any other person of securities of our Company other than in the normal course of the business of 

any such entity / individual or otherwise, during the period of 6 months immediately preceding the date of filing of this 

Prospectus.  

 

22. Our Company, our Promoters, our Directors and the Book Running Lead Manager have not entered into any buy-back or 

standby or similar arrangements for the purchase of Equity Shares being offered through the Issue from any person. 

 

23. An over-subscription to the extent of 10% of the Net Issue can be retained for the purpose of rounding off to the nearest 

integer during finalizing the Allotment subject to minimum Allotment, which is the minimum application size.  

Consequently, the actual Allotment may go up by a maximum of 10% of the Net Issue, as a result of which, the post-Issue 

paid-up capital after the Issue would also increase by the excess amount of Allotment so made. In such an event, the Equity 

Shares held by our Promoters and subject to lock-in shall be suitably increased; so as to ensure that a minimum of 20% of 

the post-Issue paid-up capital is locked in.  

 

24. Investors may note that in case of over-subscription, Allotment will be on proportionate basis as detailed under óBasis of 

Allotmentô in the section titled óIssue Procedureô beginning on page 258 of this Prospectus. In case of over-subscription in 

all categories the allocation in the Issue shall be as per the requirements of Regulation 253(2) of SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

 

25. Except employee stock options granted pursuant to the Newjaisa ESOP Scheme 2023, there are no outstanding convertible 

securities or any other right which would entitle any person any option to receive Equity Shares, as on the date of this 

Prospectus. 

 

26. All the Equity Shares of our Company are fully paid-up and there are no partly paid-up Equity Shares as on the date of 

filing of this Prospectus. Further, since the entire Issue Price in respect of the Issue is payable on Application, all the 

successful Applicants will be issued fully paid-up Equity Shares and thus all Equity Shares offered through this Issue shall 

be fully paid-up. 

 

27. As per RBI regulations, OCBs are not allowed to participate in this Issue. 

 

28. As on the date of this Prospectus, we have not raised any bridge loans which are proposed to be repaid from the Net 

Proceeds. 

 

29. Our Company undertakes that at any given time, there shall be only one denomination for our Equity Shares, unless 

otherwise permitted by law.  
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30. Our Company shall comply with such accounting and disclosure norms as specified by NSE, SEBI and other regulatory 

authorities from time to time.  

 

31. An Applicant cannot make an Application for more than the number of Equity Shares being issued through this Issue, 

subject to the maximum limit of investment prescribed under relevant laws applicable to each category of investors. 

 

32. Our Company, Directors, Promoters or members of our Promoter Group shall not make any payments, direct or indirect, 

discounts, commissions, allowances or otherwise under this Issue except as disclosed in this Prospectus. 

 

33. We have 7 (seven) shareholders as on the date of filing of this Prospectus  

 

34. Our Promoters and the members of our Promoter Group will not participate in this Issue. 

 

35. Our Company has not made any public issue since its incorporation and has not made any rights issue of any kind or class 

of securities since its incorporation.  

 

36. Our Company has not revalued its assets since its incorporation. 

 

37. This Issue is being made through the Book Building Method. 

 

38. Except employee stock options granted pursuant to the Newjaisa ESOP Scheme 2023, as on date of this Prospectus, there 

are no outstanding financial instruments or any other rights, that would entitle the existing Promoter or shareholders or any 

other person, any option to receive Equity Shares after the Issue. 

 

39. Our Company shall ensure that transactions in the Equity Shares by our Promoters and the Promoter Group between the 

date of filing this Prospectus and the Issue Closing Date shall be reported to the Designated Stock Exchange within 24 hours 

of such transaction. 

 

For the details of transactions by our Company with our Promoter Group during the Financial Years ended March 31, 2023, 

2022, and 2021 please refer to the paragraph titled óRelated Party Transactionsô in the section titled óFinancial Informationô 

beginning on page 175 of this Prospectus. None of our Directors or Key Managerial Personnel holds Equity Shares in our 

Company, except as stated in the section titled óOur Managementô beginning on page 147 of this Prospectus. 
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SECTION VII: PARTICULARS OF THE ISSUE  
 

OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE 

 

The offer comprises of Fresh issue by our Company (Fresh Issue).   

 

PROCEEDS OF FRESH ISSUE  

 

The following table sets forth the details of the Net Proceeds:  

(  in Lakh) 

Particulars Amount 

Gross Proceeds of the Fresh issue 3,993.12 

Less: offer related expenses in relation to the Fresh issue 500.00 

Net Proceeds  3,493.12 

 

UTILIZATION OF NET PROCEEDS 

 

The following table sets forth the details of the proposed utilisation of the Net Proceeds: 

 

 (  in Lakh) 

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars Estimated 

Amount 

% of Gross 

Proceed 

% of Net 

Proceed 

1 Expansion of refurbishment facility and purchase of plant, 

machinery and equipment 

100.00 2.50% 2.86% 

2 Investment in technology development  200.00 5.01% 5.73% 

3 Branding & Marketing 200.00 5.01% 5.73% 

4 Funding Working Capital requirement 1,545.44 38.70% 44.24% 

5 Repayment of Bank facilities 730.00 18.28% 20.90% 

6 General Corporate purposes # 717.68 17.97% 20.55% 

 TOTAL (Net Proceeds) 3,493.12 87.48% 100.00% 
#The amount utilized for general corporate purpose shall not exceed 25% of the gross proceeds of the Fresh issue. 

 

In addition to the aforementioned objects, our Company expects to receive the benefits of listing of the Equity Shares on the 

NSE Emerge, the SME Platform of National Stock Exchange of India, including among things, the enhancement of our 

Companyôs brand name and creation of a public market in India for our Equity shares. 

 

The main objects and objects incidental and ancillary to the main objects clause of our Memorandum of Association enable our 

Company to: (i) undertake the existing business activities; and (ii) undertake the activities proposed to be funded from the Net 

Proceeds. Further, we confirm that the activities which we have been carrying out till date are in accordance with the objects 

clause of our Memorandum of Association. 

 

PROPOSED SCHEDULE OF IMPLEMENTATION AND  DEPLOYMENT OF NET PROCEEDS  

 

We propose to deploy the Net Proceeds towards the Objects in accordance with the estimated schedule of implementation and 

deployment of funds set forth in the table below: 

(  in Lakh) 

Objects Amount to be funded 

from Net Proceeds* 

Estimated deployment of the Net Proceeds 

FY ï 2024 FY ï 2025 

Expansion of refurbishment facility and 

purchase of plant, machinery and equipment 

100.00 100.00 -- 

Investment in technology development 200.00 100.00 100.00 

Branding & Marketing 200.00 100.00 100.00 

Funding Working Capital requirement 1,545.44 1,545.44 -- 
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Repayment of Bank facilities 730.00 730.00 -- 

General Corporate purposes # 717.68 717.68 -- 

TOTAL  3,493.12 3,293.12 200.00 

#The amount utilized for general corporate purpose does not exceed 25.00% of the gross proceeds of the Offer. 

 

The fund requirements, the proposed deployment of funds and the intended use of the Net Proceeds as set-out above are based 

on our current business plans, management estimates of future growth projections, vendor quotations, current circumstances of 

our business and prevailing market conditions, which are subject to change. The fund requirements and proposed deployment 

of funds described herein have not been appraised by any bank or financial institution or any other independent agency. For 

details on risks involved, see ñRisk Factors ï Our funding requirements and proposed deployment of the Net Proceeds have not 

been appraised by a bank or a financial institution and if there are any delays or cost overruns, we may have to incur additional 

cost to fund the objects of the Offer because of which our business, financial condition and results of operations may be adversely 

affected.ò on page 29. 

 

We may have to revise our funding requirements and deployment from time to time on account of various factors, such as, 

financial and market conditions, competition, business and strategy, negotiation with lenders and our vendors, interest/exchange 

rate fluctuations and other external factors, which may not be within the control of our management. This may entail 

rescheduling or revising the proposed utilisation of the Net Proceeds and changing the allocation of funds from its planned 

allocation including the expenditure for a particular purpose at the discretion of our management, subject to compliance with 

applicable law. For details on risks involved, see ñRisk Factorsò. 

  

We propose to deploy the entire Net Proceeds towards the Objects over financial year 2024 and 2025. However, if the Net 

Proceeds are not completely utilised for the objects stated above by the end of the above-mentioned period, such amounts will 

be utilised (in part or full) in subsequent periods, as determined by us, in accordance with applicable law. 

 

Subject to applicable laws, in the event of any increase in the actual utilisation of funds earmarked for the purposes set forth 

above, such additional funds for a particular activity will be met by way of means available to us, including from internal accruals 

and/or debt arrangements from existing and future lenders. 

 

Means of Finance  

 

We intend to completely finance the Objects from the Net Proceeds. Accordingly, we confirm that we are in compliance with 

the requirements prescribed under Paragraph 9(C)(1) of Part A of Schedule VIII and Regulation  7(1)(e) of the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations and there is no requirement for us to make firm arrangements of finance through verifiable means towards 75% of 

the stated means of finance, excluding the amount to be raised through the Fresh Issue, and existing internal accruals. In case of 

shortfall in the Net Proceeds or any increase in the actual utilisation of funds earmarked for the Objects, our Company may 

explore a range of options including utilising our internal accruals and/ or availing further borrowings. Further, if the actual 

utilisation towards any of the objects is lower than the proposed deployment, such balance will be used for funding other objects 

as mentioned above or towards general corporate purposes to the extent that the total amount to be utilised towards general 

corporate purposes will not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds from the Fresh Issue in accordance with the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations. 

 

DETAILS OF THE OBJECTS OF THE OFFER  

 

EXPANSION OF REFURBISHMENT FACILITY AND PURCHASE OF PLANT , MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT  

 

Our company is engaged in the business of restoring used or pre-owned computers to a functional and marketable condition, 

extending their lifespan and reducing electronic waste. To utilize the business opportunities and to cater to the increase in 

demand for IT refurbished products, weôre setting up a new facility at SY Nos. 38/1B, 39/1, 39/2, and 39/3, Arekere Village, 

Begur Hobli, Bangalore South Taluk, Bangalore-560076, Karnataka, India. The said facility is spread over 28,750 Sq. Ft and is 

being leased out for a period of 5 years.  

 

The facility is being renovated to meet requirements for the refurbishing process. Capital expenditure is being incurred on 

following items (a) Facility renovation of 28,750 Sq Ft. + 4000 Sq Ft. Mezzanine encompassing custom flooring, roofing, fire 

equipment, networking, security and automation features (b) Electrical requirements including transformer, invertors and other 

backup mechanisms (c) 600+ sitting capacity including specially designed ESD compliant workbenches and associated 
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equipment and tools for each department. (d) Special purpose clean room, paint booth, bonding/debonding and other specialized 

facilities which are mandatory to support our processes.  

 

We intend to utilize up to 100.00 Lakh from the Net Proceeds of the Fresh issue towards the above initiative. The difference 

between the project cost and the amount to be funded from net proceeds is being managed from internal accruals and bank 

funding.  

 

Sr. 

No.  

Item  Quotation 

from 

Quotation 

date 

 

Validity 

date 

Total 

Project 

Cost 

(  in  

Lakh)  

Amount to 

be funded 

from Net 

Proceeds 

(  in 

Lakh)  

1  Civil works includes metal structure, 

roofing, brick walls, flooring and tiles, 

ceiling works, washrooms, wall and 

partition works, electrical works 

Shradha 

Enterprises 

Private 

Limited 

July 10, 

2023 

January 

09, 2024 

249.30 100.00 

2 Electrical works Sri 

Mahadeshwar

a Electricals 

July 28, 

2023 

January 

24, 2024 

16.65 

3 Plant, machinery and equipment   Shradha 

Enterprises 

Private 

Limited 

July 10, 

2023 

January 

09, 2024 

112.33 

4 Furniture and fixtures  Shradha 

Enterprises 

Private 

Limited 

July 10, 

2023 

January 

09, 2024 

53.69 

5 Site Landscaping  Shradha 

Enterprises 

Private 

Limited 

July 10, 

2023 

January 

09, 2024 

41.87 

6 Installation of clean room facility and 

related equipment  

M/s Universal 

Clean Room 

Technologies 

June 08, 

2023 

December 

07, 2023 

25.90 

TOTAL   499.74 100.00 

The quotations in relation to the above-mentioned object are valid as on the date of this Prospectus. The quotations mentioned 

above do not include cost of freight, insurance, transportation and /or any other applicable government taxes as these can be 

determined only at the time of placing of orders. Such additional costs shall be funded from the Net Proceeds proposed to be 

utilised towards the financing of the above object or through contingencies, if required.  

 

Our Company shall have the flexibility to deploy the equipmentôs and material at additional manufacturing facility, according 

to the business requirements, which are dynamic, which may evolve with the passage of time and based on the estimates of our 

management. 

 

Our Promoters, Directors, Key Management Personnel or Group Entities have no interest in the proposed procurements, as 

stated above. 

 

In the event that there is a shortfall of funds required for purchase of equipments and funding of other related costs for our new 

facility, such shortfall shall be met out of the amounts allocated for general corporate purposes and/or through internal accruals 

or borrowings from financial institutions, subject to compliance with applicable laws and approvals as may be required. 

 

INVESTMENT IN TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENT  

 

In order to stay ahead of competition and to build a deeper MOAT for the business, we will need to constantly invest in 

technology and develop tools and applications that will enhance our business operations and improve our process efficiency.   
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We plan to invest in building our technology platform specifically focussed on website enhancement to improve customer 

experience, ERP implementation, and proprietary cross platform application development to streamline purchase, operation and 

customer experience. A brief summary on the various technology development initiatives is given below:  

 

(a) ERP: Given bespoke requirement of refurbishing industry, we are further upgrading our ERP application to drive 

efficiency and process improvements. The development will help us to streamline operation decision making, better 

inventory management, automated internal process alignments. It will be further deeply integrated with our physical 

manufacturing process using industry 4.0 best practices, helping in automating our workflows. An integrated view 

across various departments including but not limited to HR, Sales, Purchase, Operations, Customer Support, finance is 

a mandatory requirement for us to build scalable process. 

  

(b) Customer Facing Application Development: Being a direct to customer company, we utilize and will be investing 

in further improving our multi channel customer experience and customer reach out. We will be investing in integration 

with our sales channel partners, our own web and mobile assets and better customer support and warranty experience 

for our customers. 

 

(c) Corporate and Supplier Platform integration: Our business thrives on end-to-end reverse logistics management, 

from purchase of old IT assets from corporate, retail and re-cyclers to providing refurbished product to end use 

customer. Our Purchase side platform helps provide complete transparency, faster processing and seamliness reverse 

logistics management for our supply partners and is very strategic for our growth.   

 

We have hired M/s Fresh Web based on quotation from them dated July 08, 2023 and the said quotation is valid for a period of 

6 (six) months until January 07, 2024. This will be an ongoing engagement and we intend to utilize up to  200.00 Lakh from 

the Net Proceeds of the Fresh issue towards the above initiative. 

 

Sr. 

No 

Item Count  Cost (  

in 

Lakhs) 

per 

month 

Total Cost (  

in Lakhs) for 

2 years  

Amount to be 

funded from 

Net Proceeds 

(  in Lakhs) 

1 Human Resource cost   225.60 175.00 

 Technical Architect Business Analyst 0.5 1.00   

 Business Analyst 1 1.50   

 Senior C++ Developer 1 1.00   

 Senior Developer (Flutter) 1 1.00   

 Senior ERPNext developer 1 1.00   

 Junior ERPNext Developer 2 1.50   

 Senior Testing Engineer (Manual / Automation) 1 1.00   

 Junior Testing Engineer 1 0.60   

 L1 support 2 0.80   

      

2 Server and hardware Cost   25.20 25.00 

 APP server  2 0.18   

 Database Server  1 0.35   

 Load Balance 1 0.03   

 Data Transfer cost  1 0.09   

 Server maintenance cost   1 0.40   

      

 TOTAL    250.80 200.00 
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BRANDING & MARKETING  

 

Our Company is a tech driven full stack D2C IT electronics brand providing quality bespoke refurbished electronics at 

significant discount as compared to new products. We have a significant impact on how our consumers perceive our brand. 

Branding and marketing help us to attract new customers, increase sales, and command a premium price for products and 

services. A strong brand can also help to build customer loyalty and create a sense of community around the brand. 

 

To create recall value and build local credibility, we propose to invest in marketing initiatives such as online and offline 

marketing campaigns, events, conferences and other events as appropriate from time to time to drive leads for our business and 

enhance our business credibility. A brief on all such initiatives is given below : 

 

1.  Advertising on Marketplaces: NewJaisa's presence on established online marketplaces allows the company to tap into 

a wide customer base actively seeking electronic products. Marketplaces offer a ready-made infrastructure for 

transactions and provide an opportunity to showcase positive customer reviews, boosting credibility. 

 

2.  Website: The company's website serves as a digital storefront and a hub of information. Investing in search engine 

optimization (SEO) and user experience optimization will improve the website's visibility on search engines and provide 

a seamless browsing experience. A well-designed website instills confidence in customers, as it reflects the company's 

commitment to quality and professionalism. 

 

3.  Alli ances: Forming strategic alliances with complementary businesses can result in a win-win situation. Collaborating 

with tech service providers, software companies, or accessory manufacturers can create cross-promotional opportunities. 

Such alliances not only introduce NewJaisa to new customer segments but also offer added value to existing customers, 

strengthening brand loyalty. 

 

4.  Targeted Engagement: Different channels attract different customer demographics. By utilizing a mix of channels i.e. 

google, meta etc and influencer marketing tools, NewJaisa intends to tailor its messaging and offerings to suit each 

audience and drive product sales. 

 

Modern marketing techniques allow for detailed tracking and measurement of campaign performance. This data driven approach 

ensures that marketing spends are directed toward strategies yielding the best return on investment.  

We intend to utilize up to  200.00 Lakh from the Net Proceeds of the Fresh issue towards the above initiative in Branding and 

Marketing as per the following details. 

 

Sr. 

No 

Item Cost (  in Lakhs) per 

year 

Estimated Cost  

(  in Lakhs) for 2 years  

1 Brand Awareness  
 

70.00 

 Influencer marketing  7.50  

 Social media management  3.00  

 Search engine marketing  3.60  

 Public relations  9.00  

 Google / Meta Brand awareness campaigns  11.90  

 Total  35.00  

2 Performance marketing    130.00 

 Google ad search campaigns  10.00  

 Google performance max campaigns  12.00  

 Google shopping campaigns  9.00  

 Meta shopping campaigns  12.00  

 Meta Ad campaigns 12.00  
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 Programattic campaigns   10.00  

 TOTAL  65.00  

 G. TOTAL  100.00 200.00 

 

We have received a quotation from M/s ANS Commerce dated July 03, 2023 and the same is and is valid for a period of 6 (six) 

months until January 02, 2024.  

 

FUNDING WORKING CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS   

 

We fund the majority of our working capital requirements in the ordinary course of our business from our internal accruals, net 

worth and financing from various banks and financial institutions. Our Companyôs existing working capital requirement and 

funding on the basis of Restated Financial Statements for Fiscal 2021, Fiscal 2022 and Fiscal 2023 are as stated below: 

 

(  in Lakh) 

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

 Restated Restated Restated 

Current Assets    

Inventories 1282.75 346.48 70.09 

Short Term Loans & Advances 161.81 23.10 22.60 

Trade Receivables 572.17 147.56 80.52 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 140.71 7.91 138.25 

Other Current Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total (I)  2157.44 525.05 311.46 

    

Current Liabilities     

Short Term Borrowings 743.70 181.82 162.64 

Trade Payables 321.72 - 17.55 

Other Current Liabilities 119.38 108.21 65.62 

Short Term Provisions  88.68 11.51 17.02 

Total (II)  1273.48 301.54 262.83 

Net Working Capital (I) ï (II)  883.96 223.51 48.63 

Fund Pattern     

I.  Borrowings for meeting working capital requirements    

- Short term borrowings 743.70 181.82 48.63 

- Long term borrowings Nil  Nil  Nil  

II.  Networth / Internal Accruals 140.26 41.69 Nil  

Note: Pursuant to the certificate dated 30th August, 2023, issued by Abhilashi & Co., Chartered Accountants. 

 

Basis of estimation of working capital requirement 

 

On the basis of our existing working capital requirements and the projected working capital requirements, our Board pursuant 

to its resolution dated July 17, 2023 has approved the business plan for the Fiscal 2024 and Fiscal 2025. The estimated and 

projected working capital requirements for Fiscal 2024 is stated below: 

 

 

Particulars Fiscal 2024 

 Estimated 

Current Assets  

Inventories 3304.76 

Short Term Loans & Advances 275.60 
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Trade Receivables 1531.11 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 297.45 

Other Current Assets 60.00 

Total (I)  5,468.92 

  

Current Liabilities   

Short Term Borrowings 100.32 

Trade Payables - 

Other Current Liabilities 413.40 

Short Term Provisions  137.80 

Total (II)  651.52 

Net Working Capital (I) ï (II)  4,817.44 

Fund Pattern   

I.  Net worth / Internal Accruals / Bank Borrowing 3,271.96 

II.  Issue Proceeds 1545.44 

Note: Pursuant to the certificate dated 30th August, 2023, issued by Abhilashi & Co., Chartered Accountants. 

 

Key assumptions for working capital projections made by Our Company: 

 

The table below sets forth the details of holding levels (in days) for Fiscal 2021, Fiscal 2022, Fiscal 2023 as well as projections 

for Fiscal 2024: 

(in days) 

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 Fiscal 2024 

Inventories 20 40 118 85 

Short Term Loans & Advances 9 3 13 5 

Trade Receivables 15 15 30 19 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 53 1 12 5 

Other Current Assets 0 0 0 1 

Short Term Borrowings 62 24 61 2 

Trade Payables 5 0 23 6 

Other Current Liabilities 28 16 12 9 

Short Term Provisions  7 2 9 3 
1. Inventories days - Average Inventory for the period / Cost of Goods Sold for the period X365 

2. Short Term Loans & Advances - Closing Short Term Loans & Advances for the period / Revenue from Operations for the period X 

365 

3. Trade Receivables - Average Trade Receivable for the period / Revenue from Operations for the period X 365 

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing Cash and Cash Equivalent for the period / Revenue from Operations for the period X 365 

5. Other Current Assets - Closing Other Current Assets for the period / Revenue from Operations for the period X365 

6. Short Term Borrowings - Closing Short term Borrowing for the period Revenue from Operations for the period X365 

7. Trade Payables - Average Trade Payables for the period / Purchases of traded goods for the period X 365 

8. Other Current Liabilities - Closing Other Current Liabilities for the period / Total Expenses for the period X 365 

9. Short Term Provisions - Closing Short Term Provisions for the period / Total Expenses for the period X 365 

 

Note: Pursuant to the certificate dated 30th August, 2023, issued by Abhilashi & Co., Chartered Accountants. 

 

Justification for ñHolding Periodò levels 
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The justifications for the holding levels mentioned in the table above are provided below: 

 

  Particulars Assumption and Justifications 

Inventory  

The Company inventory holding period for financial year 2024 has projected 85 days as compared to 

118 days and 40 days in financial year 2023 and 2022 respectively. Due to inherent nature of the 

business, the Company is required to maintain high level of inventory throughout the year. During 

financial year 2023, the Company had 118 days of inventory primarily driven by the excess supply 

of used IT equipment and the need for the company to capture inventory to support business growth. 

Going forward the company intends to monitor its inventory requirements closely and expects the 

holding period to normalise at 85 days. 

Trade Receivables  

The Company trade receivable days for the financial year 2024 has been projected 19 days in 2024 

as compared to 30 days and 15 days in financial year 2023 and 2022 respectively. The increase in 

Trade receivables is primarily on account of the increase in corporate sales for financial year 2023. 

At this stage the company has made significant progress on its operating model and is now able to 

negotiate better terms with its customers, Accordingly, so while the company intends to expand the 

pool of corporate sales in the current financial year as well, we expect to negotiate better terms on 

such sales and therefore we project trade receivables to normalise at 19 days based on the projected 

business activity.  

Short Term Loans 

and Advances  

Short-Term Loans and Advances majorly consists Advance to suppliers and balance with government 

authorities. Short-Term Loans and Advances have been maintained in line with the projected 5 days 

for the Financial Years 2024 as compared to 13 and 3 days in financial year 2022 and 2023 

respectively.  

Other Current Assets 
There are no ñOther Current Assetsò during financial year 2022 and 2023. In Financial Year 2024, 

the Company has taken one more office on rent this amount represents the rental deposit for the same. 

Trade Payable 

Historically the Company has received credit from its suppliers however the same resulted in high 

cost of purchased goods. During Financial Year 2023, the trade payables stood at  321.72 lakhs 

however the Company aims to reduce the same to 6 with its Minimum Creditor policy which will 

help them sourcing used IT inventory on better pricing terms  

Other Current 

Liabilities 

Other Current Liabilities mainly consists statutory dues, expenses payable to employees and related 

parties and other expenses for payables. The Company is expecting the same to be 9 days for Financial 

Year 2024 as compared to 12 and 16 days during financial year 2022 and 2023 respectively to manage 

the working capital cycle with more efficiency.  

Short Term 

Provisions 

Short Term Provisions mainly consists of provision for tax and provision for warranty. The Company 

is expecting the same to be 3 days for financial year 2024 as compared to 9 days and 2 days for 

Financial Year 2023 and 2022 respectively.   

 

Our Company proposes to utilize upto  1,545.44 Lakh of the Net Proceeds in Fiscal 2024 towards our working capital 

requirements. The balance portion of our working capital requirement for the Fiscal 2024 will be arranged from internal 

accruals/net worth/ borrowings. 

 

BANK FACILITIES  

 

Company started its operation in June 2020, when the first wave of COVID-19 was on peak. The initial phase of operations 

was an exceptional one, when the survival of any industry was in doubt. Whereas 2021-2022 was totally different except for 

the Q1 where company have been able to scale its operation by setting up its plant and hiring more resources. 

 

Our Company has entered into various financing arrangements, including borrowings in the form of long-term loans and cash 

credit facilities. As at September 10, 2023, our total secured borrowings amounted to  906.85 Lakh and unsecured borrowing 

amounted to  24.51 Lakhs. For further details, see ñFinancial Indebtednessò on page 224. Our Company proposes to utilize 

an aggregate amount of 730.00 Lakh from the Net Proceeds towards repayment and / or prepayment, in part or in full, of 

certain outstanding loans of our Company. Payment of interest, prepayment penalty or premium, if any, and other related costs 

may be made by us out of the Net Proceeds. The repayment / prepayment of certain loans by utilizing the Net Proceeds will 

help reduce our outstanding indebtedness. Further, we believe that it will reduce our debt-servicing costs and improve our debt 

equity ratio and enable utilization of internal accruals for further investment in our business growth and expansion.  
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Given the nature of the borrowings and the terms of repayment or pre-payment, the aggregate outstanding amounts under the 

borrowings may vary from time to time and our Company may, in accordance with the relevant repayment schedule, refinance 

or avail additional borrowings from the bank. Further, the amounts outstanding under the borrowings as well as the sanctioned 

limits are dependent on several factors and may vary with the business cycle of our Company with multiple intermediate 

repayments and enhancement of sanctioned  

limits.  

 

The selection of borrowings proposed to be prepaid or repaid amongst our borrowing arrangements availed shall be based on 

various factors, including (i) cost of the borrowing, including applicable interest rates; (ii) any conditions attached to the 

borrowings restricting our ability to prepay/ repay the borrowings and time taken to fulfil, or obtain waivers/ consents for 

fulfilment of such conditions; (iii) terms and conditions of such consents and waivers; (iv) provisions of any laws, rules and 

regulations governing such borrowings; and (v) other commercial considerations including, among others, the amount of the 

loan outstanding and the remaining tenor  of the loan. The pre-payment or scheduled repayment will help reduce our 

outstanding indebtedness and finance cost, assist us in maintaining a favourable debt-equity ratio and enable utilisation of our 

internal accruals for further investment in business growth and expansion. In addition, it will also enable us to raise further 

resources in the future to fund potential business development opportunities and plans to grow and expand our business in the 

future. The following table provides details of certain borrowings availed by our Company as on September 10, 2023, which 

our Company proposes to prepay or repay, fully or partially, from the Net Proceeds:  

 

Name of 

the 

lender**

*  

Date of 

sanction 

letter/ 

facility 

agreement 

Nature of 

borrowin

g 

Sancti

oned 

amoun

t 

(in  

Lakh)  

Outstandin

g amount (  

in Lakhs) 

as on 

September 

10, 2023 

Repaymen

t date / 

schedule 

Interest 

rate (p.a.) 

as at 

September 

10, 2023 

(%)  

Purpos

e of 

raising 

the loan 

Pre-

paym

ent 

penal

ty, if 

any 

IDFC 

First 

Bank 

Limited 

March 18, 

2023 

Working 

Capital 

850 706.56 Revolving 9.20 Workin

g 

capital 

NIL  

IDFC 

First 

Bank 

Limited 

March 18, 

2023 

Term 

Loan 

150 106.54 48 Months 9.20 Toward

s capital 

expendi

ture of 

new 

plant 

Nil  

Capsave 

Finance 

Services 

Private 

Limited 

March 8, 

2023 

Dropline 

Working 

Capital 

Demand 

Loan 

125 93.75 360 Days 14.75 Workin

g 

Capital 

Nil  

*** Additionally, our Company may avail additional loan facilities or draw down existing facilities from time to time to meet 

our business requirements. Accordingly, our Company may utilise the Net Proceeds for repayment/ prepayment of any such 

refinanced facilities (including any prepayment fees or penalties thereon), any additional facilities obtained by our Company 

or working capital facilities outstanding at the time of utilisation of Net Proceeds. 

 

Note: In accordance with Clause 9(A)(2)(b) of Part A of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations which requires a certificate 

from the statutory auditor certifying the utilization of loan for the purposed availed, the Company has obtained the requisite 

certificate dated September 15, 2023 from our Statutory Auditors, Abhilashi & Co, Chartered Accountants. 

 

For further details in relation to the terms and conditions under the aforesaid loan agreements as well as restrictive covenants 

in relation thereto, see ñFinancial Indebtednessò on page 224. 

 

GENERAL CORPORATE EXPENSES  

 

We propose to deploy the balance Net Proceeds aggregating to  717.68. lakhs towards general corporate purposes, subject to 

such utilisation not exceeding 25% of the Gross Proceeds from the Fresh Issue, in compliance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 
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The general corporate purposes for which we propose to utilise the Net Proceeds include meeting day to day expenses include 

short-term working capital requirements, meeting any expense of the Company, including salaries and wages, administration, 

insurance, repairs and maintenance, payment of taxes and duties, meeting expenses incurred in the ordinary course of business 

and towards any exigencies, and any other purpose, as considered expedient and as approved periodically by our Board or a 

duly constituted committee thereof, subject to compliance with applicable law, including the necessary provisions of the 

Companies Act.  

 

The quantum of utilisation of funds towards each of the above purposes will be determined by our Board, based on the amount 

available under this head and our business requirements, from time to time. Our management, in accordance with the policies 

of our Board, shall have flexibility in utilising surplus amounts, if any  

 

Details of funds deployed till date and sources of funds deployed 

 

The funds deployed up to August 31, 2023 pursuant to the object of this Issue as certified by the Auditors of our Company, 

viz. M/s Abhilashi & Co, Chartered Accountants pursuant to their certificate dated September 15, 2023 is given below:  

  

     

Deployment of Funds  Amount 

(  in Lakh)  

Issue related expenses 29.99* 

TOTAL  29.99 

  

Sources of Funds Amount  

(  in Lakh) 

Internal accruals   29.99 

TOTAL  29.99 

 

ESTIMATED OFFER RELATED EXPENSES  

 

The total expenses for this Issue are estimated not to exceed  500.00 Lakh which is 12.52% of Issue Size. The details of Issue 

expenses are tabulated below: 

(  in Lakh) 

Particulars Amount 

% of Total 

Offer 

Expenses 

% of Total 

Issue size 
 

Book Running Lead Manger Fees including Underwriting 

Commission 
430.00 86.00% 10.77%  

Brokerage, selling commission and other uploading fees 10.00 2.00% 0.25%  

Fees payable to Registrar to the Offer 1.00 0.20% 0.03%  

Fees to the auditor / chartered accountant fees 6.00 1.20% 0.15%  

Fees to the legal advisor fees 15.00 3.00% 0.38%  

Advertising and marketing expenses 15.00 3.00% 0.38%  

Fees payable to regulators including stock exchanges 5.00 1.00% 0.13%  

Printing and distribution expenses 2.00 0.40% 0.05%  

Fees payable to Market Maker (for Two Years) 6.00 1.20% 0.15%  

Miscellaneous  10.00 2.00% 0.25%  

TOTAL EXPENSES 500.00 100.00% 12.52%  

 

1) Selling commission payable to the SCSBs on the portion for RIBs and Non-Institutional Bidders which are directly 

procured and uploaded by the SCSBs, would be as follows: 
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Portion for RIBs* 0.25% of the Amount Allotted (plus applicable taxes) 

Portion for Non-Institutional Bidders* 0.15% of the Amount Allotted (plus applicable taxes) 

* Amount Allotted is the product of the number of Equity Shares Allotted and the Issue Price. 

 

Selling commission payable to the SCSBs will be determined on the basis of the bidding terminal ID as captured in the bid 

book of NSE. No additional processing fees shall be payable to the SCSBs on the applications directly procured by them. 

 

2) No processing fees shall be payable by our Company to the SCSBs on the applications directly procured by them. 

 

Processing fees payable to the SCSBs on the portion for RIBs and Non-Institutional Bidders (excluding UPI Bids) which 

are procured by the members of the Syndicate / sub-Syndicate / Registered Broker / CRTAs / CDPs and submitted to SCSB 

for blocking, would be as follows: 

 

Portion for Non-Institutional Bidders*  10 per valid application (plus applicable taxes) 

* Processing fees payable to the SCSBs on the ASBA Form for Non-Institutional Bidder and Qualified Institutional Bidders 

with bids above  5.00 Lakh would be  10 plus applicable taxes, per valid application. 

 

Notwithstanding anything contained above the total processing fee payable under this clause will not exceed  0.5 lakh 

(plus applicable taxes) and in case if the total processing fees exceeds  0.5 lakh (plus applicable taxes) then processing 

fees will be paid on pro-rata basis. 

 

3) Selling commission on the portion for RIBs (upto 2.00 Lakh) and Non-Institutional Bidders which are procured by 

members of the Syndicate Members, Registered Brokers, CRTAs and CDPs or for using 3-in-1 type accounts- linked online 

trading, demat & bank account provided by some of the Registered Brokers would be as follows: 

 

Portion for RIBs* 0.25% of the Amount Allotted (plus applicable taxes) 

Portion for Non-Institutional Bidders* 0.15% of the Amount Allotted (plus applicable taxes) 

* Amount Allotted is the product of the number of Equity Shares Allotted and the Issue Price. 

 

The Selling Commission payable to the brokers will be determined (i) for RIBs and Non-Institutional Bidders (up to  5.00 

Lakh), on the basis of the application form number / series, provided that the application is also bid by the respective 

Syndicate Member. For clarification, if a Syndicate ASBA application on the application form number / series of a 

Syndicate / Sub-Syndicate Member, is bid by an SCSB, the selling commission will be payable to the SCSB and not the 

Syndicate / Sub-Syndicate Member,ô and (ii) for Non-Institutional Bidders (above  5.0 Lakh), Syndicate ASBA Form 

bearing SM Code & Sub-Syndicate Code of the application form submitted to SCSBs for Blocking of the Fund and 

uploading on the Exchanges platform by SCSBs. For clarification, if a Syndicate ASBA application on the application form 

number, is bid by an SCSB, the Selling Commission will be payable to the Syndicate / Sub-Syndicate Member and not the 

SCSB. 

 

Bidding charges payable to Registered Brokers on the applications made using 3-in-1 accounts, would be  10 plus 

applicable taxes, per valid application bid by the Broker. Bidding charges payable to SCSBs on the QIB Portion and Non-

Institutional Bidders (excluding UPI Bids) which are procured by the Syndicate/sub-Syndicate/Registered Broker/RTAs/ 

CDPs and submitted to SCSBs for blocking and uploading would be  10 per valid application (plus applicable taxes). 

Bidding charges payable on the application made using 3-in-1 accounts will be subject to a maximum cap of  1.00 lakh 

(plus applicable taxes). 

 

The selling commission and bidding charges payable to Registered Brokers, the RTAs and CDPs will be determined on 

the basis of the bidding terminal id as captured in the Bid Book of NSE. 

 

Selling commission / bidding charges payable to the Registered Brokers on the portion for RIBs and Non-Institutional 

Bidders which are directly procured by the Registered Broker and submitted to SCSB for processing, would be as follows: 

 

Portion for RIBs and Non-

Institutional Bidders* 

 10 per valid application (plus applicable taxes) 

 

Bidding charges / processing fees for applications made by UPI Bidders would be as under. 
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Payable to members of the Syndicate 

(including their sub-Syndicate 

Members)/ RTAs / CDPs 

 10 per valid application (plus applicable taxes) 

Payable to Sponsor Bank  6 per valid application (plus applicable taxes) The Sponsor 

Banks shall be responsible for making payments to the third 

parties such as remitter bank, NPCI and such other parties as 

required in connection with the performance of its duties under 

applicable SEBI circulars, agreements and other Applicable 

Laws 

 

The total uploading charges / processing fees payable to Members of the Syndicate, RTAs, CDPs, Registered Brokers as 

listed under (4) will be subject to a maximum cap of 3.00 lakh (plus applicable taxes). In case the total uploading 

charges/processing fees payable exceeds 3.00 lakh, then the amount payable to Members of the Syndicate, RTAs, CDPs, 

Registered Brokers would be proportionately distributed based on the number of valid applications such that the total 

uploading charges / processing fees payable does not exceed 3.00 lakh. 

 

All such commissions and processing fees set out above shall be paid as per the timelines in terms of the Syndicate 

Agreement and Escrow and Sponsor Banks Agreement. 

 

The processing fees for applications made by UPI Bidders may be released to the remitter banks (SCSBs) only after such 

banks provide a written confirmation on compliance with SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/51 dated 

April 20, 2022 read with SEBI Circular No: SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/570 dated June 02, 2021 read with SEBI 

Circular No:  

SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/2480/l/M dated March 16, 2021. 

 

INTERIM USE OF NET PROCEEDS   

 

Pending utilisation of the Net Proceeds for the purposes described above, our Company will temporarily invest the Net Proceeds 

in deposits in one or more scheduled commercial banks included in the Second Schedule of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, 

as may be approved by our Board or a duly constituted committee thereof.  

 

In accordance with Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, our Company confirms that it shall not use the Net Proceeds for 

buying, trading or otherwise dealing in shares of any other listed company or for any investment in the equity markets 

 

BRIDGE FINANCING FACILITIES  

 

We have not raised any bridge loans from any bank or financial institution as on the date of Prospectus, which are proposed to 

be repaid from the Net Proceeds. 

 

MONITORING OF UTILISATION OF FUNDS  

 

Proposed size of the Offer is less than 10,000.00 Lakh in terms of Regulation 262 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, appointment 

of a monitoring agency for the purposes of this Offer is not mandatory and hence no Monitoring Agency is being appointed for 

this Issue.  

 

Pursuant to Regulation 32 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, our Company shall on a half yearly basis disclose to the Audit 

Committee the uses and application of the Net Proceeds. Until such time as any part of the Net Proceeds remains unutilized, our 

Company will disclose the utilization of the Net Proceeds under separate heads in our Companyôs balance sheet(s) clearly 

specifying the amount of and purpose for which Net Proceeds have been utilized so far, and details of amounts out of the Net 

Proceeds that have not been utilized so far, also indicating interim investments, if any, of such unutilized Net Proceeds. In the 

event that our Company is unable to utilize the entire amount that we have currently estimated for use out of the Net Proceeds 

in a Fiscal Year, we will utilize such unutilized amount in the next financial year. Further, in accordance with Regulation 32(1)(a) 

of the SEBI Listing Regulations our Company shall furnish to the Stock Exchanges on a half yearly basis, a statement indicating 

material deviations, if any, in the utilization of the Net Proceeds for the objects stated in Prospectus. 
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VARIATIONS IN OBJECTS  

 

In accordance with Section 13(8) and Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, our Company shall not vary the objects of the 

Initial Public Offer without being authorized to do so by the Shareholders by way of a special resolution through a postal ballot. 

In addition, the notice issued to the Shareholders in relation to the passing of such special resolution (ñPostal Ballot Noticeò) 

shall specify the prescribed details as required under the Companies Act. The Postal Ballot Notice shall simultaneously be 

published in the newspapers, one in English and one in Hindi, the vernacular language of the jurisdiction where our Registered 

Office is situated. In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, our Promoters will be required to provide an exit opportunity 

to the Shareholders who do not agree to such proposal to vary the objects, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

and in accordance with such terms and conditions, including in respect of pricing of the Equity Shares, in accordance with our 

Articles of Association, the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI ICDR Regulations. 

 

OTHER CONFIRMATIONS  

 

No part of the Net Proceeds will be paid by our Company as consideration to our Promoters, Promoter Group, our Directors, 

our Key Management Personnel or Group Company. Except in the normal course of business and in compliance with applicable 

law, there are no existing or anticipated transactions in relation to utilisation of Net Proceeds with our Promoters, Promoter 

Group, our Directors, our Key Management Personnel or Group Company. Further, pursuant to the Offer, the Net Proceeds 

received by our Company shall only be utilised for objects identified by our Company and for general corporate purposes and 

none of our Promoters, Promoter Group, Group Companies of our Company, as applicable, shall receive a part of or whole Net 

Proceeds directly or indirectly. 
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BASIS FOR ISSUE PRICE 

Investors should read the following summary with the section titled ñRisk Factorsò, the details about our Company under the 

section titled "Our Business" and its financial statements under the section titled "Financial Information" beginning on page 29, 

121 and 175 respectively of this Prospectus. The trading price of the Equity Shares of Our Company could decline due to these 

risks and the investor may lose all or part of his investment. 

The Price Band, Floor Price and Cap Price has been determined by our Company in consultation with the BRLMs on the basis 

of quantitative and qualitative factors as described below. Issue Price shall be determined by our Company in consultation with 

the Book Running Lead Manager on the basis of the assessment of market demand for the Equity Shares through the Book 

Building Process and on the basis of the qualitative and quantitative factors as described in this section. The face value of the 

Equity Shares is  5/- each and the Floor Price is 8.8 times of the face value and the cap price is 9.4 times of the face value. The 

financial information included herein is derived from our Restated Financial Information.  

For the purpose of making an informed investment decision, the investors should also refer sections titled  ñRisk Factorsò, ñOur 

Businessò and ñRestated Financial Statement ò beginning on pages 29, 121 and 175 respectively of this Prospectus 

QUALITATIVE FACTORS  

We believe the following business strengths allow us to successfully compete in the industry: 

 

a) Proprietary and scalable refurbishment process 

b) Partnership with industry leaders 

c) Highly qualified team with robust experience  

d) Market opportunity from CSR and other ESG linked initiatives 

e) Expansion into new verticals like tablets and other IT products etc  

f) Entry into international market 

For a detailed discussion on the qualitative factors which form the basis for computing the price, please refer to section titled 

"Our Business" beginning on page 121  of this Prospectus. 

QUANTITATIVE FACTORS  

The information presented below relating to our Company is based on the Restated Financial Statements. For details, please 

refer section titled ñFinancial Informationò on page 175 of this Prospectus. 

Some of the quantitative factors which may form the basis for calculating the Issue Price are as follows: 

 

1. Basic & Diluted Earnings per share (EPS) (Face value of Rs. 5 each):  

 

As per the Restated Financial Statements; 

 

Sr. No Period Basic & Diluted Weights 

1 Period ending March 31, 2023 3.03 3 

2 Period ending March 31, 2022 0.81 2 

3 Period ending March 31, 2021 0.33 1 

 Weighted Average  1.84  

Notes : 

(1) Basic and diluted earnings/ (loss) per equity share: Basic and diluted earnings per equity share are computed in 

accordance with Accounting Standard 20 ï ñEarnings per Shareò issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. 

(2) The ratios have been computed as below: 

Å Basic EPS is calculated as Profit/(loss) for the year/period attributable to owners of parent divided by the 

adjusted weighted average number basic equity shares outstanding during the year/period considering the 

issuance of bonus and Split after the balance sheet date 
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Å Diluted EPS is calculated as Profit/(loss) for the year/period attributable to owners of parent divided by the 

adjusted weighted average number of adjusted diluted equity shares outstanding during the year/period. 

(3) Weighted average number of equity shares is the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the 

year/period adjusted by the number of equity shares issued during the year/period multiplied by the time weighting 

factor. The time weighting factor is the number of days for which the specific shares are outstanding as a proportion 

of total number of days during the year/period. 

(4) Weighted average is aggregate of year-wise weighted EPS divided by the aggregate of weights i.e. {(EPS x Weight) for 

each year} / {Total of weights}. 

 

2. Price Earning (P/E) Ratio in relation to the Price Band of Rs 44 to Rs 47 per Equity Share of Face Value of 5/- each fully 

paid up 

 

Particulars (P/E) ratio at the Floor 

Price 

(P/E) ratio at the Cap Price 

P/E ratio based on the Basic & Diluted EPS, as 

restated for Financial Year 2023 

14.52 15.51 

P/E ratio based on the Weighted Average EPS 23.91 25.54 

 

3. Industry P/E ratio  : 

Industry P/E ratio  

Highest NA 

Lowest NA 

Industry Average NA 

Note: There is no industry applicable for this Company and only one company is comparable 

. 

4. Average Return on Net worth (RoNW)* 

 

Sr. No Period RoNW (%) Weights 

1 Period ending March 31, 2023 72.63 3 

2 Period ending March 31, 2022 70.79 2 

3 Period ending March 31, 2021 98.66 1 

 Weighted Average  76.36  

*Restated Profit after tax/Net Worth 

Notes: 

i) Weighted average = Aggregate of year-wise weighted RoNW divided by the aggregate of weights i.e. (RoNW x 

Weight) for each year/Total of weights. 

ii)   Return on Net Worth (%) = Net Profit after tax attributable to owners of the Company, as restated / Restated net 

worth at the end of the year/period March 31, 2023. 

iii)   Net worth means the aggregate value of the paid-up share capital and all reserves created out of the profits and 

securities premium account and debit or credit balance of statement of profit and loss, after deducting the aggregate 

value of the accumulated losses, deferred expenditure and miscellaneous expenditure not written off and non-

controlling interest, as per the Restated Financial Information, but does not include reserves created out of 

revaluation of assets, write- back of depreciation and amalgamation. 

 

5. Net Asset Value (NAV) per Equity Share: 

 

Sr. No NAV as per Equity Share* Amount in    

a) As at March 31, 2023 4.17  

b) As at March 31, 2022 1.14 

c) As at March 31, 2021 0.34 

d) NAV per equity share at floor price 16.06 

 NAV per equity share at cap price 16.85 

e) NAV per equity share after the Issue 16.85 

f) Issue Price 47 
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*As per Restated Financial Statements: a) On post-bonus is  4.17 per share FY 2023.  

Notes:  

Net Asset Value per Equity Share = Net worth as per the Restated Financial Statements / Number of equity shares outstanding 

as at the end of year/period adjusted for bonus and split 

 

6. Comparison of Accounting Ratios with Industry Peers 

 

Name of 

Company 

Face 

Valu

e 

(Rs.) 

EPS* (Rs.) 

(FY23) 

P/E RoNW 

(%)*  

Book 

Value per 

share as 

on 

31.03.2023 

Total 

Income 

(  in 

lakhs) 

Total 

Equity (  

lakhs) 

Net 

Asset 

Value 

per 

Equity 

Share 

( ) 

(FY23) 

Basic Dilut

ed 

NewJaisa 

Technologie

s Limited 

 5 3.03 3.03 15.51*  72.63%  4.17 4453.23 1184.37 4.17 

Peer Group          

Cerebra 

Technologie

s Limited  

10 2.45 2.31 2.45 0.96% 23.70 8620.3 11198.64 23.70 

*Calculated based on the Issue Price. Subject to finalization of basis of allotment. 

  

7. Operational Data Matrices 

Diwali Month Sales 

Description Year 2020-2021 Year 2021-2022 Year 2022-2023 

Units sold (Nos) 1499 3829 5644 

YOY Growth % - 155% 47.40% 

Revenue (  in Lakh) 353.38 760. 75 1,023.91 

YOY Growth - 115% 35% 

Units Sold/ Processed (yoy- Financial Year) 

Description Year 2020 Year 2021 Year 2022 

Units Sold 8,928 24,959 42,043 

YOY Growth % - 180% 69% 

Note: Since inception till July,2023, the Company has processed more than 50,000 unique orders 

(  in Lakh) 

Online / Offline Sales (Financial Year)                                      

Description 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 

Online Sales  684.19 2,003.37 2833.41 

Offline Sales  - - 381.72 

Corporate sales  276.48 788.53 1237.85 

Total Sales  960.67 2,791.90 4,452.98 

Note : The Company is into an online first company with Online sales contributing 90%+ of its sales. The current operations 

of the Company are in Indian market only. 

 

(  in Lakh) 

Product wise Sales (Financial Year) 

Product Description 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 

Laptops/ Chromebooks      296.74      838.60   2,309.75  

Desktops/ Chromeboxes/ Monitors      653.74   1,873.14   1,996.25  


































































































































































































































































































































































































































































